
(next page)→ 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 

Thursday, January 19, 2023 – 6 pm 

General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center 

15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 
 

ZOOM LINK 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85496437320 

Meeting ID:  854 9643 7320 
 

==================================================================== 
 

1. Commencement 

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

1.02 The Invocation 

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 

1.04 BOS Organizational Meeting for Calendar Year 2023 

 a. Election of Chairman for Calendar Year 2023 

  (Chairman will turn the meeting over to the County Administrator who will conduct 

this election.  Upon completion, the meeting will be turned over to the 2023 

Chairman.) 

 b. Election of Vice Chairman for Calendar Year 2023 

 c. Establishment of dates, times and place of regular meetings 

 d. Adoption of Rules and Procedures 

1.05 Agenda Amendment(s) 

1.06 Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

2.01 Approval of Minutes:  November 17 regular and December 20, 2022 Special Board of 

Supervisors Regular Meetings 

2.02 Warrants and Vouchers 

2.03 Treasurer’s Report & Financial Update – for information only  

2.04 Departmental Reports – for information only 

2.05 Davenport Debt Capacity Analysis Budget Amendment  

2.06 Employee Annual Leave Extension  

2.07 Draft FY24 Budget Planning Calendar 

2.08 DMV Select Revenue Resolution & FYE Budget Amendment Resolution 

2.09 Legal Services for Glyndon and Carver Lanes Budget Amendment Resolution 

2.10 Virginia Tourism ARPA Funding for Carpenter Museum/Town of Waverly 

2.11 Rescheduling of the Board of Supervisors Regular February Meeting  

2.12 Atlantic Waste Disposal, Inc. Request for Refund  

2.13 County Purchasing Card Program Policy 

2.14 Victim Witness DCJS OGMS Grant Repayment - $4,357.79 

 

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation  

3.01 Resolution:  Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 90th Birthday  

3.02 Resolution:  Recognition of Mr. Charles “Dan” Hudson’s Retirement – Sussex Sheriff’s 

Office  

3.03 Recognition of Deputy Bonner for Community Assistance  

3.04 Recognition of Deputy for MADD Awards – Sheriff Giles 



3.05 Airfield 4-H Conference Center Update – Millard Stith & Kathy Guindon 

 

4. Public Hearing  
4.01 Conditional Use Permit #2022-04, Howell Godfrey, Jr., Applicant 

 (a)  Public Comments 

 (b)  Board Comments 

 (c)  Action on Public Hearing Item 

 

5. Appointments – none  

  

6. Action Items 
6.01 Sussex County Towns Economic Development Planning Grant - Jeff Sadler   

6.02 Historic Courthouse Analysis Findings and Recommendations, and Phase 2 

Recommendations – Russell Pearlman, Wooten Company; and Andrew Moore, Glave & 

Holmes  

6.03 County Building Improvement Recommendations to House EMS – Russell Pearlman, 

Wooten Company & Jeff Gary, Public Works Director 

6.04 Resolution Designating Shilton R. Butts as County Clerk  

 

7. Citizens’ Comments  
 

8. Unfinished Business – none 

     

9. New Business – none  

 

10. Board Members Comments 

10.01 Blackwater District 

10.02 Courthouse District 

10.03 Henry District 

10.04 Stony Creek District 

10.05 Wakefield District 

10.06 Waverly District 

 

11. Closed Session – none  

   

12. Recess/Adjournment  
12.01 Recess/Adjournment 

12.02 Next Meeting, TBD 

 



 

Page 1 - Minutes of the December 20, 2022 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

 

At a Special Meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors  

Held in the Sussex County Social Services Conference Room on 

Tuesday, December 20, 2022 – 4:00 pm 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Alfred G. Futrell 

Wayne O. Jones  

Susan M. Seward 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

 

BOARD MEMBER ABSENT 

C. Eric Fly, Sr. 

Debbie P. Jones 

Steve White, Tie Breaker 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator/Economic Development Director 

Kelly Moore, Director of Finance 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/Deputy Clerk 

 

Item 1.  Call to order/Determine Quorum (4:10 p.m.) 

 

The December 20, 2022 Special meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was called to 

order by Chair Seward. 

 

Item 2.  Invocation 

 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Futrell. 

 

The Improvement Association staff sang a Christmas carol for the Board members. 

 

Item 3.  The Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

 

Item 4.   Agenda Amendment  

 

There were no agenda amendments. 

 

Item 5.  Approval of Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approved the December 20, 

2022 Special meeting agenda as presented.  All members present voted aye. 



 

Page 2 - Minutes of the December 20, 2022 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Item 6.  Glyndon & Carver Lanes Right-of-Way Certification Resolution 

 

County Administrator Douglas thanked Supervisor W. Jones, Ms. Butts, Ms. Walkup, Attorney 

Gore, and contracted legal and surveying services for working an extended period of time to 

acquire all necessary right-of-way and easements so that these roads could be paved and better 

serve the area residents.  It was noted that a key component of this resolution was the certification 

of all necessary right-of-way and easements.  The last deeds and easements were finalized.  They 

were signed, recorded and transferred. Staff had also worked with VDOT to include a T-turnaround 

at the end of Carver Lane as an alternative to a cul-de-sac.   

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that if the resolution was adopted at the December board 

meeting, VDOT staff pledged to complete some much needed road maintenance prior to 

Christmas, with paving slated in early 2023 (subject to weather conditions).  County Administrator 

Douglas stated that the resolution had been drafted for the Board's consideration for a Rural 

Addition required by VDOT to accept Glyndon and Carver Lanes in Wakefield into the state 

system and provide for necessary paving/upgrades.   

 

Staff recommends approval of the Rural Addition resolution for Glyndon and Carver Lanes.  

 

Resolution #22-152 Rural Addition for Glyndon and Carver Lanes and a  copy of the plat survey 

of Glyndon Lane & Carver Lane Proposed Right-of-Way & Easements were included in the 

Board packet. 

 

VDOT requested a correction to state that the streets were established July 1, 1965. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the Rural 

Addition Resolution #22-152 per State Code §§33.2-335 Requiring Funds for Improvement for 

Glyndon and Carver Lanes, to-wit: 

 

WHEREAS, the street(s) described below was established July 1, 1965, and currently serves 10 

owner occupied dwelling units, and  

 

WHEREAS, the Virginia Department of Transportation has deemed this county’s current 

subdivision control ordinance meets all necessary requirements to qualify this county to 

recommend additions to the secondary system of state highways, pursuant to §33.2-335, Code of 

Virginia, and  

 

WHEREAS, after examining the ownership of all property abutting this street(s), including the 

deeds and related plats, this Board finds no restriction on the use of public funds for the 

improvement of the road, and WHEREAS, after examining the ownership of all properties abutting 

this street, this Board finds that speculative interest does not exist; and  

 



 

Page 3 - Minutes of the December 20, 2022 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

 

WHEREAS, this Board has identified available funding to make improvements required to qualify 

the street(s) for addition to the Secondary System of State Highways, based on the Department’s 

cost estimate of $149,127;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, pursuant to §33.2-335, Code of Virginia, this Board 

requests the following street(s) to be added to the Secondary System of State Highways maintained 

by the Virginia Department of Transportation and hereby guarantees the right-of-way of the 

street(s) to be clear, unencumbered, and unrestricted, which right-of-way guarantee shall include 

any necessary easements required for cuts, fills, and drainage:  

 

Name of Subdivision:       Carver Heights        

 

Name of Street:         Glyndon Lane         

From:          Railroad Avenue         

To:         Carver Lane         

 

Length:         .0347  Miles  

Guaranteed Right  

Of Way Width:         40  Feet  

 

Name of Street:         Carver Lane         

From:          Glyndon Lane         

To:         Dead end          

 

Length:         .0398  Miles  

Guaranteed Right  

Of Way Width:         40  Feet  

 

 

Plat Recorded:  Date: March 6, 1961 , Deed Book: 61 , Page: 141  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board requests the Virginia Department of Transportation to 

improve said street(s) to the prescribed minimum standards, funding said improvements with the 

following funds:  

 

  Source of Funds    Amount  

  Secondary funding    $149,127  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board agrees to reimburse, within 45-days of receiving an 

invoice, all costs that the Virginia Department of Transportation incurs to relocate existing utilities 

within the right-of-way that are discovered during the course of and in conflict with the 

construction, drawing such funds from resources other than those administered by the Department; 

and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board agrees to reimburse, within 45-days of receiving an 

invoice, all costs that the Virginia Department of Transportation incurs in the construction of 



 

Page 4 - Minutes of the December 20, 2022 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

 

necessary improvements to the road that are over and above the estimated cost of improvements 

or to otherwise identify an eligible source of funds administered by the Department to cover such 

costs. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Futrell, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

Absent:  Supervisors Fly, D. Jones 

 

Item 7.  Proposed Legislative Recommendations - David Conmy 

 

Deputy County Administrator Conmy stated that the Board of Supervisors recently granted staff 

the authority to develop a Legislative Program for Sussex County.  He noted that because counties 

are subdivisions of the State and are subject to the Dillon rule, any power that the County has 

comes from the State.   In furtherance of that request, the following legislative wish list has been 

prepared for the Board’s consideration. Generally, this wish list addresses three topics: 

1. The Virginia Department of Corrections’ exemption from making PILOT payments to 

Sussex County for the Sussex I & II prisons 

2. Granting the Town of Waverly the ability to create a vacant building registry.  It was noted 

that all buildings had to be continuously vacant for 12 months or more and meet the 

definition of a derelict building in the Code of Virginia.  This allows any community that 

is empowered, to be able to require the owners of those buildings to register and impose a 

registration fee for processing that registration.  This would help communities track vacant 

buildings.  It also aligned with what's called the Broken Window Theory for best practices.  

He stated that through this request, the Town of Waverly would be added.  The Town of 

Waverly was also recommended by a study recently completed by Virginia Gateway 

Region.  He mentioned that studies noted that it was an option to which basically says that 

a lot of crime and elicit activity tend to follow vacant and abandoned buildings. Mr. Conmy 

stated that he had spoken to the Mayor; she supports it.  He stated that it was an optional 

power bestowed upon Waverly if they chose not to exercise it, they didn't have to.   

3. Endorsing the 2023 Legislative Program of the Virginia Association of Counties (VACo) 

If adopted by the Board of Supervisors, staff would reach out to the County’s state 

legislative delegation (Delegate Otto Wachsmann and Senator Louise Lucas) to request 

that they introduce legislation and/or amendments to effect these changes.  

 

Deputy County Administrator Conmy stated that if the Board adopted the Legislative Policy, he 

will forward it to State Delegation and attend Legislative Committee meetings, if necessary. 

 

There was discussion of the prisons and the different localities affected.  County Administrator 

Douglas stated that Delegate Otto Wachsmann suggested that Mr. Conmy could speak on this 

topic. 

 

Supervisor Tyler discussed having a legislative proposal exclusively for the Town of Waverly.  He 

noted that Sussex serves the entire County.  He asked that it be postponed to next month's meeting 

to allow some dialogue with the towns.  Supervisor Tyler made the motion to exclude the housing 

and vacant building from the policy for that night's meeting (December 20th).    He had no problem 

with the other items.  He noted that it's in May.  The owner has to register and it costs $400??.  

(There was no second to his motion.) 



 

Page 5 - Minutes of the December 20, 2022 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Mr. Conmy noted that he tried to engage in conversations with the towns and had a difficult time 

contacting the towns.   

 

There was discussion that time was a factor due to the DOC portion of the Legislative Policy.  

There was discussion of moving forward and adding the other towns at a later time.  There was 

discussion of the Town of Waverly to ask the Delegate to add the bill.  There was discussion of 

deadline. 

 

It was suggested to reach out to the Mayor of Waverly and Delegate Wachmann to add the bill for 

the Town of Waverly. 

 

A copy of the Draft 2023 Legislative Program was provided to the Board members. 

 

Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the draft 2023 Legislative Program. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the adoption of the 

Sussex County 2023 Legislative Program with the amendment to remove the granting of the Town 

of Waverly the ability to create a vacant building registry from the program policy. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Futrell, W. Jones, Tyler 

Voting nay:  Supervisor Seward 

Absent:  Supervisors Fly, Seward 

 

Item 8.  Proposed Changes to Outside Organizations Funding Guidelines - David Conmy 
 

Deputy County Administrator Conmy stated that the Board of Supervisors adopted a Policy 

Governing Contributions to External Organizations which establishes guidelines and procedures 

related to external organizations that will be funded by the County. Upon implementation of the 

policy during the Fiscal Year 2023 budget cycle, staff identified potential refinements to the policy. 

Generally, these recommendations help clarify policy elements, provide for a more streamlined 

review, and ensure greater equity among the diverse organizations that have historically received 

funding from the County.  

 

The document contains the red-lined changes to the existing policy based upon the 

recommendation of staff.  

 

Mr. Conmy reviewed the policy and the changes.  Some of the requirements include that the 

organization be registered and in good standing with the State and the Internal Revenue Service 

(IRS).  The County is requesting Articles of Incorporation and an audited financial statement.   

 

Mr. Conmy stated that organizations that were contractually obligated to be funded are not subject 

to the policy because there are contractual agreements.  He noted that whenever there's a question 

of whether the policy applies, that determination is made by the County Administrator, Finance 

Director and the Treasurer, collectively. 

 



 

Page 6 - Minutes of the December 20, 2022 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

 

Mr. Conmy stated that the application would be taken out of the policy and be made an electronic 

online application.  He noted that the policy spoke to timeline review.  The organizations are 

currently required to report on a quarterly basis.  Organizations that received 50% of their funding 

from the County would be grandfathered in.   

 

There was discussion of removing unqualified audits from the policy and request organizations to 

share their audit to the Board. 

 

Organizations will be in tiers.  There was inquiry of the definition of an outside agency. 

 

There was discussion that Fire and Rescue are funded by the County; however, they are excluded 

from providing reports.  It was suggested that Fire and Rescue be subjected to the policy, as well, 

be required to provide reports as other organizations in their tier.  It was noted that Fire and Rescue 

are listed under Public Safety. 

 

Staff recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopts the recommended changes to the existing 

policy.   

 

There was inquiry as to why the Airfield 4-H Conference Center was not considered an outside 

agency. 

 

A copy of the Policy Governing Contributions to External Organizations – Proposed Changes 

were provided to the Board members. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the 

recommended changes to the existing policy subject to the changes made by the Board to include 

removing unqualified audits and request organizations to share/provide their to the Board.  All 

Board members present voted aye. 
 

Item 9.  Citizens’ Comments  

 

There were no citizens' comments. 

 

Item 10.  Adjournment 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adjourned the December 20, 

2022 Special Meeting at 5:25 p.m.  All members present voted aye. 



  

 

1 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

At a Regular Meeting of the  

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the General District Courtroom on 

Tuesday, November 17, 2022 at 6 pm 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.   

A. G. Futrell 

Debbie P. Jones 

Wayne O. Jones 

Susan M. Seward 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

Steve White, Tie Breaker 

 

BOARD MEMBER ABSENT 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator 

Jeff Gore, County Attorney 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Jeffrey Gary, Public Works Director 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff 

Eric Danuser, IT Manager (Virtual) 

Faith McClintock, Title                                                                                  

Kelly W. Moore, Finance Director 

Michael Poarch, Planner 

Beverly Walkup, Planning Director 

Matthew Westheimer, Shared Building Official 

Monica J. Whitney, Permit Technician 

Milton Jones, Shared Building Inspector 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

      Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

1.  Commencement  
 

1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum (6:11 p.m.) 

 

Chair Seward called the November 17, 2022 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of 

Supervisors to order. 

 

1.02  The Invocation 

 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Tyler. 

 



  

 

2 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

 

1.04  Agenda Amendments 

 

Supervisor Futrell requested to move Consent Agenda Item 2.06 Animal Services Budget 

Amendment (Shelter Improvements) to Item 6. Action Items, as Item 6.04. 

 

Under Item 3. Recognitions, Supervisor Fly requested to postpone (move) Item. 301 Resolution:  

Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 90th Birthday to the Board's December 15, 2022 regular meeting. 

 

1.05  Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the November 17, 

2022 regular agenda inclusive of under Item 3. Recognitions postponing (moving) Item. 301. 

Resolution:  Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 90th Birthday to the Board's December 15, 2022 regular 

meeting and Consent Agenda Item 2.06 Animal Services Budget Amendment (Shelter 

Improvements) to Item 6. Action Items, as Item 6.04.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Consent agenda 

inclusive of the following: (a) October 20, 2022 regular Board of Supervisors Meeting minutes; 

(b) the Approval of Warrants and Vouchers; (c) the Treasurer’s Report and Financial Update; (d) 

Departmental Reports; (e) Tobacco Commission Grant Resolution; (f) Public Safety Budget 

Amendment; and (g) Approval of Governor's AFID Fund Performance Agreement, Project Arbie 

(Restoration Bioproducts).  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

3.  Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 

 

Vice Chairman W. Jones entered at 6:17 p.m. 

 

3.01 RESOLUTION:  Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 90th Birthday 

 

This item was moved to the December 15, 2022 regular Board meeting. 

 

302 RESOLUTION:  Recognition of Wilborne Baptist Church 155th Anniversary 

 

Wilborne Baptist Church is located on Newville Road near Waverly, Virginia.  The County 

presented a resolution to the Church for its 155th Anniversary. 

 

Ms. Baker, a member of the Wilborne Baptist Church, was present to receive the resolution and 

thanked the Board for their respect for the legacy of Wilborne Baptist Church. 



  

 

3 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by D. JONES and carried:  RESOLVED 

that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Resolution #22-133 Recognizing 

the 155th Anniversary of Wilborne Baptist Church, to-wit: 

 

 WHEREAS, Wilborne Baptist Church is located at 7138 Newville Road outside the Town 

of Waverly, and has been an historical asset of Sussex County for over one and one-half centuries; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, Madison Wilborne, a local third generation free African-American carpenter 

born in 1827, donated the property on which the church was to be built, and the first building was 

erected about 50 yards from its present site; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the donated site was named in honor of Mr. Wilborne and with the initial 

construction of a bush harbor provided a place of worship for families in the community just two 

years after the end of slavery, and was formally deeded in 1872; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the first pastor and organizer of Wilborne Baptist Church was Reverend 

Branch, who served from 1867 to 1882, and 15 pastors have served the church over the years; and  

 

 WHEREAS, other Sussex County churches to grow out of Wilborne Baptist Church 

include Easter Baptist Church and Plank Road Baptist Church; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Wilborne Baptist Church served the educational needs of area African-

American children in the community by providing a one-room school that housed 1st through 5th 

graders in the 1940s and 1950s; and  

 

 WHEREAS, members of Wilborne Baptist Church have actively defended our country and 

served in World War I, World War II, Korean War, Vietnam War, and Gulf War; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Wilborne Baptist Church has promoted the value of higher education and 

provided scholarships over the years, with members graduating from institutions such as the 

University of Virginia, Virginia Tech, Ohio State University, Virginia Commonwealth University, 

Virginia State University, Saint Paul’s College, Morgan State University, North Carolina A&T 

University, Norfolk State University, and Richard Bland College; and  

 

 WHEREAS, under the leadership of Ms. Pauline Giles, Chairperson of the Trustee Board, 

and Deacon Winfred Everson, Chairperson of the Deacon Board, the congregation of Wilborne 

Baptist Church remains active today in providing a place of worship and supporting the community 

and its local charities; and  

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS that Wilborne Baptist Church is recognized for its significant accomplishment in 

reaching the milestone of its 155th anniversary, to be celebrated on November 20, 2022, during its 

11 am Sunday service, and is recognized for its important role over the past one and one-half 

centuries serving the residents of Sussex County.  



  

 

4 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

ADOPTED this 17th day of November 2022, by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors. 

All Board members present voted aye. 

 

3.03  VACo Achievement Award Presentation and Recognition of Building Services Staff 

 

Joe Lerch, VACo Director of Local Government Policy, was in attendance at the meeting and 

recognized Sussex County for its VACo Achievement Award in partnership with Surry County, 

for the joint building services program, one of 29 award recipients throughout Virginia (or 29 

percent of submitted entries) under the 2022 Achievement Award program.  

 

Mr. Lerch gave a brief background of the VACo Achievement Award program. 

 

Building Official Matt Westheimer provided an overview of the joint building services program.  

Mr. Westheimer introduced the building services staff serving Sussex and Surry Counties which 

included Milton Jones (Shared Building Inspector), Monica Whitney (Permit Technician-Sussex) 

and Wanda Pittman (Permit Technician-Surry).  

 

Surry County Administrator Melissa Rollins and Deputy County Administrator David Harrison 

were in attendance as well.  

 

Copies of the VACo Achievement Award email; VACo Achievement Award press release; and 

VACo’s winning Achievement Award submissions document were included in the Board packet. 

 

4.  Public Hearings 
 

4.01  Zoning Amendment #2022-02 Costa Verde Investment, LLC, Applicant 

 

Beverly Walkup, Planning Director, provided the staff report for Zoning Amendment #2022-02 

Costa Verde Investment, LLC, applicant. 

 

The applicant, Costa Verde Investment, LLC under ZA #2022-02 seeks to rezone Tax Parcel 

Number 137-A-15 & 137-A-15A containing a total of 4.91 acres from A-1, General Agricultural 

to I-1, Limited Industrial to accommodate a wholesale business (food warehouse distribution). The 

property is located at 21330 Blue Star Highway in Jarratt in the Election District of Henry District.  

 

The CSX Railroad along its northern side borders the proposed location for the rezoning located 

at 21330 Blue Star Highway in Jarratt. To the west, there is Rideout Equipment Company, Inc., 

which includes two manufactured homes, and 301 self-storage. To the east, there is a 

communication tower and forested land. To the south, Blue Star Highway (Rt. 301) and I-95 runs 

parallel to the site.  

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 



  

 

5 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

The subject property previously operated as a material recycling facility for plastic, cardboard, and 

aluminum under a Conditional Use Permit approved on March 19, 2015. Prior to March 2015, 

there were previous Conditional Use Permits that allowed for the storage of sand, gravel, and 

mineral sands on the property.  

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

The applicant is requesting rezoning to the Limited Industrial District (I-1) to accommodate the 

use of a wholesale food warehouse distribution facility. The applicant proposes to use the existing 

buildings and infrastructure that are already in place.  

 

The parcel is currently zoned General Agricultural District (A-1). The A-1 zoning district does not 

allow for a wholesale business (food warehouse distribution).  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW 

 

The current Comprehensive Plan land use designation for this property is commercial. 

Development at the I-95 interchanges and along U.S. 301 will ideally be concentrated into higher-

density commercial centers, rather than occurring in strips along the area’s major roadways. The 

presence of vacant and/or abandoned commercial structures in the Planning Area provide ample 

opportunities for reuse and should also guide the location of future commercial uses.  

 

The proposed rezoning and use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

ORDINANCE REVIEW 

 

 The current zoning designation for this property is A-1. The district is established to protect land 

and property values, ground water and surface water quality, and other resources. The intent is to 

provide for the continued security of the county’s agricultural sector by encouraging the orderly 

and responsible growth of its livestock, dairy, and poultry industry. Limited residential 

development is anticipated in these areas.  

 

The proposed rezoning designation for this property is I-1. The I-1 district is to permit certain 

industries, which do not in any way detract from residential desirability, to located in any area 

adjacent to residential uses. The limitations on (or provisions relating to) height horsepower, 

heating, flammable liquids or explosives, controlling emissions of fumes, odors and/or noise, 

landscaping, and the number of persons employed are imposed to protect and foster adjacent 

residential desirability while permitting industries to locate near a labor supply.  

 

The applicant is currently proposing to use the site as currently developed. Any expansion of the 

site will require site plan review, including review and consideration of any anticipated additional 

traffic impacts, possible improvements to mitigate and other potential impacts that may be noted 

at the time of review.  

 

AGENCY COMMENTS: 



  

 

6 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

VDOT reviewed the application and noted no concerns with traffic impacts.  VDOT concerns were 

included in the Board packet.  

 

STAFF CONCLUSIONS:  

 

Strengths:  

 

1. Allows an opportunity to bring in more commercial uses in this area.  

2. Repurposes an existing site with buildings and infrastructure (well and septic) already in place. 

3. Adjacent to an existing commercial use (Rideout Equipment Company, Inc.). 

4. Access to Blue Star Highway; Proximity to I-95 interchange; Potential access to the railroad.  

5. Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

Weaknesses:  

 

1. None identified at this time.  

 

The Planning Commission recommends approval for this rezoning. 

 

Staff recommends that the Board approves Zoning Amendment #2022-02 Costa Verde Investment, 

LLC, applicant. 

 

Chair Seward opened the Public Hearing. 

 

Public Comments were heard from Mr. Percy E. Chacon, the owner.  Gabriella was present as the 

translator.  He purchasing the property.  One of the conditions the property is the zoning has to be 

changed. 

 

Chair Seward closed the Public Hearing. 

 

Comments were heard from Supervisor Seward, Tyler, and Futrell. 

 

Copies of the Application for Rezoning/Conditional Zoning Amendment, Application Narrative 

Description and Reason for Rezoning Staff Report, photos of the property, supporting 

documentation and the Notice of the Public Hearing were included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Zoning 

Amendment #2022-02, Costa Verde Investment, LLC. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, Futrell, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

4.02  Building Services Fee Schedule Ordinance Amendment 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that a public hearing has been scheduled and advertised to 

consider a minor change to the Sussex County Building Department Permit Fee Schedule.  



  

 

7 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

In May 2022 the Board of Supervisors adopted an updated building code schedule ordinance, 

which incorporated a new fee schedule as an exhibit (identical to the Surry County fee schedule 

since we share a building services program). This exhibit contained a typographical error related 

to applicable building permit fees for new commercial/industrial construction that needs to be 

corrected to apply the correct fees to commercial/industrial projects. The Surry County Board of 

Supervisors approved a similar resolution correcting this error at its last regular meeting.  

 

Building Official Matt Westheimer noted that there was a small clerical error for the building fee 

for the commercial building.  Mr. Westheimer stated that it was supposed to have been one percent.  

It had been one percent the previous year.  He stated that drafts listed as one percent; however, the 

final draft the field was blank with residential in parenthesis.  He noted that Residential and 

Commercial fees are not the same.  The Commercial Fee should be one percent as in the past.  The 

amended Ordinance is merely a cleanup/correct the Commercial Fee. 

 

Chair Seward opened the Public Hearing.  

 

There were no public comments. 

 

Chair Seward closed the Public Hearing. 

 

There were no Board comments.  

 

Staff recommended adoption of the ordinance to amend the building permit fee schedule at end of 

the public hearing,  

 

Copies of Resolution and Fee Schedule were included in the Board Packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and carried:  RESOLVED 

that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the ordinance amending the Sussex 

County Building Department Permit Fee Schedule, to-wit: 

 

 WHEREAS, the County incurs significant costs administering and enforcing the Uniform 

Statewide Building Code; and  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to § 36-105 of the Code of Virginia, the County may impose 

reasonable fees for the issuance of building permits and for enforcement of the Building Code to 

defray the County’s costs to administer its program; and  

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with state law at its regular meeting of May 19, 2022, the Board 

of Supervisors adopted an updated Building Code Fee Schedule Ordinance, which includes new 

fees applicable to solar voltaic panels; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Building Code Fee Schedule Ordinance incorporated the new fee schedule 

as an Exhibit, which contained a typographical error related to the applicable building permit fees 

for new commercial/industrial construction; and  



  

 

8 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

 WHEREAS, in order to correct the typographical error, the adoption of an amended 

Building Code Fee Schedule is necessary; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this Ordinance was properly advertised, as required by § 15.2-1427 of the 

Code of Virginia; and  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors, that the 

Building Code Fee Schedule Ordinance adopted on May 19, 2022, is hereby amended to correct 

the typographical error related to commercial/industrial building permit fees as shown on the 

attached Sussex County Building Department Permit Fee Schedule, which is incorporated herein.  

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption. 

 

Sussex County Building Department 

Permit Fee Schedule 

 

 A.  Generally. No permit required by the building code to begin work for new construction or 

any other building operation shall be issued until the fees prescribed by this section have 

been paid, nor shall an amendment , for any reason, to a permit be approved until the 

additional fee has been paid.  

B.  Administrative Services.  

 The fees for administrative services shall be as follows:  

 

1. Permit amendments, renewals, extensions, reinstatement and change  

 of ownership/contract change,        $40.00  

 

2.  If an application for a permit is cancelled by written request to the Building Official 

within six months of the application date or within twelve months 

 of the issue date, a refund will be granted. The following  

 fee will be deducted from the refund:       30%  

 

3. Public service request/Staff research/FOIA Fee     Actual Admin Cost/  

           1 hr minimum  

 

C.  Building Permits. Building fees shall be as follows:  

 

1.  State Levy on all applicable permit fees      2.00%  

 

  a.  Base permit fee        $75  

  b.  Minimum permit fee      $75  

 

2.  Re-inspection Fee         $100  

 

3.  Code Investigation Fee        $100  



  

 

9 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

4.  New Construction (Residential and Commercial) Base fee plus:  

 

 Residential: All usable areas constructed; includes finished and   $0.16 per 

unfinished;sq.ft. on site built construction, modular homes,   Finished 

 manufactured homes, additions alterations, remodels, decks,   $.08 per sq.ft. 

 porches, garages, sheds, carports, etc.      Unfinished  

Commercial/industrial: All usable areas constructed; includes finished  

and unfinished; churches, schools, industrialized buildings, etc. .     (same as residential) 

 including patios decks, etc.                   1% of Contract  

 

5.  Swimming Pools         $70.00  

 

6.  Fences around swimming pools and residential fences over 6’ in height  $40.00  

 

7.  Commercial Fence (regardless of height)      $40.00  

 

8.  Signs up to 10 sq ft in surface area, 20 sq ft for a double-sided sign,  

 the top of the sign being 10' or less from the ground    $40.00  

 

 Signs more than 10 sq ft in surface area, 20 sq ft for a double-sided sign,  

 the top of the sign being more than 10' from the ground    $60.00  

 

9.  Demolition or Moved structure       $70.00  

 

10. Chimney          $70.00  

 

11. Commercial re-roofing        $50.00  

 

12. Tents (over 900 square feet)       $80.00  

 

13. Elevator (Initial and annual re-certification)     $50.00  

 

14. Retaining Walls (as defined by the Building Code), Towers, Piers, etc  $50.00  

 

15. Amusement Rides     current:    proposed:  

 a)  Kiddie/ Small mechanical/ Inflatable      $55.00  

 b)  Circular ride or flat less than 20’      $75.00  

 c)  Spectacular Ride        $100.00  

 d)  Coaster exceeding 30’        $200.00  

         Coaster exceeding 60’ 

           $400.00  

         Generator for   

         amusement device  

          $165.00  

 



  

 

10 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

16.  Commercial Plan Review (New Construction)     $250.00     

  Residential Plan Review (New Construction)     $50.00  

17. Commercial Change of Occupancy/Use              Building Permit needed  

 

18. Appeals          $0.00  

 

D. Electrical Permits.  

 

 1. Residential (New Construction)           Base fee plus $.06 per sq. ft.  

 

 2. Electrical Upgrade or relocation of electrical service  $50.00  

 

 3. Temporary Electric Pole (TEP)  $50.00  

 

4. Early meter release (Not a part of any other inspection)  $50.00  

 

5. Connections and Outlets (lights, etc in additions/remodels)  $50.00  

 

6. Commercial (New Construction)       1% of Contract (unchanged)  

 

7. Generator    $75.00 + Gas 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, Futrell, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

5.  Appointments  
 

There were no Appointments.  However, there was discussion regarding the Industrial 

Development Authority Board of Directors' attendance and appointments. 

 

6.  Action Items 

 

6.01 Technology Zone Ordinance 

 

Deputy County Administrator provided the Technology Zone Ordinance. 

 

Section 58.1-3850 of the Code of Virginia authorizes any city, county, or town to establish a 

technology zone or zones by ordinance. Establishment of such a zone authorizes the locality to 

grant tax incentives and certain regulatory flexibility in the technology zone. Establishment of such 

a zone for Sussex County for the Megasite and surrounding area could be a strategic incentive to 

attract future economic development prospects to the zone area. The attached draft ordinance 

provides incentives based on qualifying criteria and is revenue neutral (emphasis added). 

Advertisement notifying the public of this proposed ordinance was included in the Sussex-Surry 

Dispatch newspaper on November 2nd and 9th, 2022.  

 

Deputy County Administrator 

Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance.  



  

 

11 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

A Draft Ordinance to Amend the Code of the County of Sussex, Virginia, to Add a Technology 

Zone and a copy of Public Notice were included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts Ordinance to amend the 

Code of the County of Sussex, Virginia to add a Technology Zone, to-wit: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Code of Virginia §58.1-3850 enables localities to establish Technology 

Zones which help cultivate economic growth by providing tax incentives or regulatory flexibility 

to qualified technology businesses; and  

 

 WHEREAS, a technology zone can be a valuable tool for the encouragement of new and 

expanding business investments in Sussex County; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Sussex County has determined that establishing technology 

zones will serve the public health and welfare of the County and citizens.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Supervisors of Sussex, County, 

Virginia that the Code of the County of Sussex, is amended by adding the following:  

 

TECHNOLOGY ZONE  

 

Sec. 1. Purpose of Technology Zone.  

 

The County of Sussex (or the “County”) has determined that the development of its commercial 

tax base requires incentives, and further determines that an appropriate method of offering 

incentives for the County is to create a Technology Zone.  

 

Sec. 2. Definitions.  

 

For the purpose of this article, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings given 

below, unless clearly indicated to the contrary:  

 

Administrator means the County Administrator or his designee.  

 

Base Year means the calendar year preceding the calendar year in which the applicant 

submits the Technology Zone Program Qualification Application.  

 

Capital Investment means money used by a Technology Business to purchase Fixed Assets 

and not moneys used for day-to-day operating expenses. Fixed Assets owned by the 

Technology Business that are moved into the Technology Zone from another location 

within the County shall not be included in the calculation of Capital Investments.  

 

Employee means a person who is on the payroll of the Technology Business’s 

establishment within the Technology Zone and whose workstation’s primary location is 

within the Technology Zone.  



  

 

12 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

Existing Business means one that was actively engaged in the conduct of trade or business 

in the County prior to an area being designated as a Technology Zone.  

 

Fixed Asset means long-lived tangible property owned by a Technology Business that is 

used by the Technology Business in the production of its income including real estate, 

plant, machinery, and equipment.  

 

Full-Time Employee means an Employee who is employed in a job for an indefinite 

duration at a Technology Business located in a Technology Zone and is required to work 

at least minimum number of hours as determined by the Federal Government to qualify as 

a Full-Time Employee per week for a period consisting of forty-eight (48) consecutive 

weeks. 

 

Seasonal, temporary, leased, contract labor or an Employee whose job function is shifted 

from an existing location within the County to a Technology Business within the 

Technology Zone is not a Full-Time Employee.  

 

Incentive Period means a ten (10) year period during which a Qualified Technology 

Business receives the benefit of Technology Zone incentives.  

 

New Business means a business not previously operating within the County prior to an area 

being designated as a Technology Zone.  

 

Technology Business means a Business whose primary purpose is the research, 

development, or manufacture, distribution and/or design for lease, sale, or license of 

Technology Products, Processes or Related Services. Technology business may also 

include any advanced manufacturing operations utilized in the research and development 

or production of consumer or commercial products, data center operations or information 

technology operations. Technology business may also include distribution and 

warehousing operations, particularly those utilizing automated systems, robotics, or other 

advanced technologies in the warehousing or distribution of products for business or 

consumer use.  

 

Technology Products, Processes or Related Services means engaging in the activities of 

automation, automotive vehicles, automotive components, autonomous vehicles or 

components, batteries, biotechnology, biomedical research, chemicals, computer 

hardware, computer software, defense, electric vehicles or components, electronics, 

energy, environmental, homeland security, manufacturing equipment, advanced materials, 

medical technologies, pharmaceuticals, photonics, electronic-based sub-assemblies and 

components, testing and measurement, telecommunications, systems integration, 

information systems, internet software, or data and data warehousing or training in the 

above concentration areas.  

 

In no case will the use of computers or telecommunication services used by a Business in 

its administrative operations qualify the Business as a Technology Business.  



  

 

13 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

Qualified Technology Business means a Technology Business that has met the 

qualifications set forth in this chapter and continues to meet the required qualifications. 

 

Sec. 3. Administration.  

 

This article shall be administered and enforced by the County Administrator.  

 

An applicant seeking to obtain the benefits of the Technology Zone will hold preliminary 

discussions with the County Administrator and Director of Economic Development, prior to any 

investment, resulting in submittal of a completed Technology Zone Program Qualification 

Application to the Director of Economic Development.  

 

The Director of Economic Development, in consultation with the County Administrator, will 

review the application to determine if the project meets the required criteria for Qualified 

Technology Business and is consistent with the County’s policy for the consideration of 

Technology Zone incentives. Applications must be signed by an official representative of the 

Qualified Technology Business authorized to sign on its behalf.  

 

No incentive application from an Existing Technology Business shall be approved until the 

Commissioner of the Revenue determines that no unpaid taxes are outstanding. Further, an 

Existing Technology Business shall not qualify for Technology Zone incentives by reorganizing 

or changing its form in a manner that does not alter the basis of the Technology Business assets or 

result in a taxable event.  

 

Sec. 4. Boundaries.  

 

The Boundaries of the Technology Zone shall be within the areas described in Appendix A of this 

Chapter.  

 

As technology zones are established by the Board of Supervisors, they shall be further identified 

by reference to the map entitled “Sussex County Technology Zones” which shall be incorporated 

into and made a part of this chapter and all future ordinances establishing a technology zone.  

 

Sec. 5. Incentive Period.  

 

Subject to the requirements of this chapter, Qualified Technology Businesses shall receive the 

benefits of the Technology Zone incentives consecutively for up to a 10-year Incentive Period.  

 

Sec. 6. Eligibility Requirements.  

 

(a) Existing and new businesses. The following requirements shall apply to all businesses 

seeking the Incentives provided in this chapter:  

i.  Business must be engaged in a qualified technology business;  

ii. Wages paid to Full-Time Employees must be at least 25% above the region’s average 

prevailing wage for similar positions in the applicable industry sector, as reported by 



  

 

14 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

the Federal Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) or Occupational Employment and Wage 

Statistics (Virginia Employment Commission);  

iii. Machinery and equipment that is either purchased or leased, must be new to the 

County and associated with a qualifying plant expansion or renovation within the 

Technology Zone;  

iv. Businesses must commit to the creation of at least five net new jobs and at least 

$5,000,000 in Capital Investment (machinery and equipment or real property); or, 

creation of 10 net new jobs and at least $1,000,000 in new Capital Investment; 

v. Businesses must make a capital investment of at least $1,000,000 to be eligible for 

the Business Tangible Personal Property rebate; and  

vi. The increase in capital investment and new or additional full-time positions required 

to qualify must occur within the investment and job creation schedule agreed upon 

between the County Administrator and an official representative of the Qualified 

Technology Business at the time of application.  

(b) Any assets owned by a business which are moved into a technology zone from another 

location within the County shall not be included in the increased new investment.  

 

Sec. 7. Incentives.  

 

Incentives of the Technology Zone must be accessed by the Qualified Technology Business within 

one year of start of operations in the Technology Zone, or within one year of a qualified facility 

expansion or renovation in order to receive the Incentives as outlined in this Chapter.  

 

In the case of a qualified facility expansion or renovation, the rebate shall be limited to 100 percent 

of the tax on the increase in the assessed value over the value from the Base Year assessed value. 

The incentive period cannot be extended solely by relocating within or to another zone or by an 

ownership change. The Treasurer shall issue a rebate within 60 days of receipt of full payment of 

the taxes for each year of the incentive period.  

 

The amount and schedule of incentives shall be as follows:  

 

(a) Machinery & Tools:  

i. 100% rebate on Machinery & Tools Tax Years 1-5; and  

ii.  75% rebate in Years 6-10  

 

(b) Business Tangible Personal Property:  

i.  100% rebate on Business Tangible Personal Property Tax Years 1-5; and  

ii.  75% rebate in Years 6-10  

 

(c) Merchant’s Capital Tax:  

i. 50% rebate on Merchant’s Capital Tax Years 1-5  

 

(d) Waiver of all site development fees (i.e. land disturbance, site plan review)  

 

(e) Waiver of all building permit (i.e. plans review) and inspection fees, including structural, 

electrical, plumbing and mechanical  



  

 

15 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

(f) Waiver of rezoning, conditional use permit, or special exception fees  

 

The amount and schedule of exemption may from time to time be amended in order to sustain the 

economic development priorities established by the County.  

 

Sec. 8. Certification Procedure.  

 

The following certification procedure applies to Technology Businesses seeking to obtain the 

benefits of the technology zone:  

 

(a) A Technology Business must submit a Technology Zone Program Qualification 

Application to the Director of Economic Development for certification as a Qualified 

Technology Business.  

 

(b) After a Technology Business has been certified as a Qualified Technology Business, in 

order to receive a rebate, it must annually submit a Technology Zone Program Annual 

Certification form with qualifying criteria and annual return of machinery and tools, 

business tangible personal property, merchant’s capital tax, a detailed list of assets, along 

with the number of Full-Time Employees employed by the Qualified Technology 

Business, and an official Virginia Employment Commission report for wage verification 

to the Commissioner of Revenue and the County Administrator, by the stated filing date.  

 

(c) The Qualified Technology Business must pay the resulting machinery and tools tax, 

business tangible personal property tax, and merchant’s capital tax, and then the 

allowable portion of these taxes will be rebated. The Commissioner may request 

additional documentation from the business, and that documentation must be received 

within ten days from the date of this request unless the Commissioner agrees, in his/her 

sole discretion, to an extension of time for the submission of such documentation. In no 

case, however, shall the extension exceed 90 days. Failure to request the rebate or to 

submit the required documentation in a timely manner, as determined by the 

Commissioner, shall result in forfeiture of the machinery and tools, business tangible 

personal property, or merchant’s capital tax rebate incentive for that year of the incentive 

period. Neither a sale and lease-back agreement nor a subsequent purchase of equipment 

originally leased shall extend the incentive period beyond the original incentive period. 

 

(d) The rebate of tax on qualifying leased property must be issued directly to the lessor.  

 

Sec. 9. Compliance.  

 

(a) Failure of the Qualified Technology Business to pay in full by the due date any taxes 

imposed by the County shall result in the loss of the exemption or rebate for that calendar 

year. The County Administrator may withdraw the Qualified Technology Business status 

for any business that is not compliant with any ordinance, regulation, or other legal 

requirement pertaining to that business.  

 



  

 

16 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

(b) If a Qualified Technology Business files for bankruptcy during any ten-year Incentive 

Period, this will result in disqualification and the business will be ineligible to receive 

Technology Zone incentives for the remainder of the Incentive Period.  

 

(c) In the event that the Technology Business ceases to be a Qualified Technology Business, 

or removes itself from operation in the County during any year within the first five years 

of the tenyear Incentive Period, it shall be required, except as otherwise provided in this 

ordinance, to Action Items - Page 6 repay a pro-rated portion of incentives received 

within 30 days to the County of Sussex. The pro-rated repayment will be determined by 

the County Administrator and based on the life-to-date percentage of capital investment 

and full-time jobs created in comparison to the commitments made at the time of 

application for Technology Zone incentives.  

 

(d) In the event a Technology Business is unable to continue to meet the eligibility 

requirements within the timeframe established pursuant to Section 6(a)(vi), and the 

business contacts the County Administrator within 90 days of the annual certification and 

filing date, the County Administrator may in his/her discretion, approve an action plan 

for the business which, among other things, may provide the business additional time to 

meet the requirements of a Qualified Technology Business. If the business fails to meet 

the eligibility requirements after the timeframe set forth in the action plan, it shall be 

required to repay 100% of the incentives received within 30 days to the County of Sussex.  

 

Sec. 10. Nonwaiver.  

 

Unless expressly stated herein, this chapter shall not be construed to waive the requirement of any 

ordinance, regulation, or policy of the County, including, but not limited to, those ordinances, 

regulations, and policies that require permits and approvals for land use and construction except 

as expressly mentioned in this chapter. Additionally, unless stated otherwise herein, nothing in this 

chapter shall be construed as waiving the right of the County to enforce its ordinances, regulations, 

or policies to collect any taxes, fees, fines, penalties, or interest imposed by law on a qualified 

technology business or upon real or personal property owned or leased by a Qualified Technology 

Business.  

 

Sec. 11. Zoning Ordinance Not Affected.  

 

This chapter is an economic development incentive and is not a zoning change. Nothing herein 

shall be construed to affect any provision or requirement of the County Zoning Ordinance.  

 

Sec. 12. Education and Promotion.  

 

The County Administrator shall develop strategies and marketing tools to promote the benefits of 

the Technology Zone to the public and potential businesses.  

 

State Law Reference—Virginia Code Section 58.1-3850  

 

This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 



  

 

17 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, Futrell, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

6.02 PPT Deadline Extension Resolution 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that a resolution to extend the personal and real estate 

property tax payment deadline for tax year 2022, as prepared by the County Attorney, was included 

in the packet for the Board’s consideration.   

 

This resolution was requested by Chairwoman Seward with input from Treasurer Cox, to provide 

additional time for tax payments (based on impacts from COVID, inflation, and increased vehicle 

values).  If approved, this resolution will extend the payment deadline from December 5, 2022, to 

March 5, 2023.  

 

Staff recommended that the Board of Supervisors approves Resolution #22-137 to extend the 

personal property tax payment deadline for Tax Year 2022 to March 5, 2022. 

 

A copy of Resolution #22-137 was included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approved Resolution #137 to 

extend the personal and real estate property tax payment deadline for Tax Year 2022 to March 5, 

2023, to-wit:   
 

 WHEREAS, national, state, and local economies have been negatively impacted by the 

COVID-19 pandemic; and  

 

 WHEREAS, due to the recent effect that inflation has had on the value of real estate and 

personal property, the Board of Supervisors wants to provide residents some relief in paying tax bills; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, the real estate and personal property tax payments are due by December 5, 2022, 

subject to penalties and interest for late payments; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 58.1-3916 of the Code of Virginia empowers the Sussex County Board 

of Supervisors to grant by resolution an extension of time, not to exceed 90 days, for the payment of 

real estate and personal property taxes whenever good cause exists; and  

 

 WHEREAS, COVID-19 and the recent effect that inflation has had on the value of real estate 

and personal property constitutes good cause, and the Board of Supervisors wants to provide residents 

some relief in paying tax bills and desires to provide all support possible to the community at this time.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS, VIRGINIA:  

 

§1. That the due date in FY 2022 for the payment of real estate taxes and personal property taxes(to 

include merchant’s capital, machinery & tools, and mobile home taxes, vehicles, trailers, motorcycles 



  

 

18 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

and boats) is hereby extended from December 5, 2022, to March 5, 2023, and that payment can be 

made up to that time without late penalties and interest.  

 

§ 2.  That this resolution shall have no legal impact upon prior delinquencies. 

 

§ 3.  That staff immediately communicate the extension information to the community. 

 

§ 4.  That this resolution is effective upon adoption. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, Futrell, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

6.03 Gro52 Property Buy-Back 

 

The Board of Supervisors approved the sale of 22.5 acres of property on Cabin Point Road in 

October 2020 to Gro52, at a price of $44,586, for the construction of a commercial hemp growing 

facility.  Unfortunately the company has yet to begin construction, and the purchase agreement 

provides for a county buy-back of the property at the original price if the facility is not constructed 

within 24 months of closing.  Because this property is adjacent to county-owned mega site property 

that is extremely important from an economic development perspective for the county, staff 

recommends that the buy-back process be initiated by the County Attorney.  A copy of his 

recommended process, as well as a copy of the sales agreement and plat, are attached for your 

review. 

 

Staff recommends approval to initiate the buy-back process for the Gro52 property on Cabin Point 

Road. 

 

 Copies of the County Attorney email, Gro52 sales agreement, and plat were included in the 

Board packet. 

  
 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves initiating the buy-back 

process for the Gro52 property on Cabin Point Road.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

6.04 Animal Services Budget Amendment (Shelter Improvements) 

 

This item was moved from Item 2. Consent Agenda (Item 2.06) to Item 6. Action Items, as Item 

6.04. 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that a budget amendment for animal shelter improvements 

necessary to maintain state operational compliance, totaling $34,372 was included in the packet 

for the Board's consideration.  

 

The improvements are itemized in an email from the Animal Services Director and are related to 

moisture issues necessitating the replacement of shelter flooring and cat room walls. These costs 

are in addition to improvements completed under a recent donation from Energix related to sealing 

all indoor and outdoor kennel flooring.  



  

 

19 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

Staff recommends approval.  

 

A copy of Resolution #22-130 FY23 Budget Amendment and email from the Animal Services 

Director were included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Animal Services 

Budget Amendment (Shelter Improvements) #22-130, to-wit: 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 

amendment for the Fire, Rescue, & Emergency Services function be and hereby is made for the 

period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. This resolution will appropriate local reserve funds 

to the Animal Services department for animal shelter renovations.  

 

FUND # 100 GENERAL FUND  

 

REVENUE 

Fund 135 Local Reserves  $34,400  

Total Revenues   $34,400  

 

EXPENDITURE  

Fund 100 Administration  $34,400  

Total Expenditures   $34,400 

 

Finance Department Note:  Sufficient documentation has not been met to meet the County’s Small 

Purchase Policy. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward 

Voting nay:  Supervisor Futrell 

Abstained:  Supervisor Tyler 

 

7.  Citizens’ Comments 

 

Comments were heard from Kevin Bracy (Courthouse District) regarding the Animal Shelter; 

buildings on the complex; scrap metal; convenience sites-90 days to rectify problem; and 911 calls 

on vicious dogs. 

 

8.  Unfinished Business  
 

There was no Unfinished Business. 

  

9.  New Business 

 

There was no New Business. 

 

10.  Board Member Comments 



  

 

20 | Page – Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

10.01  Blackwater District –Keep animals current on rabies shots. 

 

10.02 Courthouse District – In regards/response to Waverly District:  noted Grievance Policy for 

problems with employees and Social Services Advisory Board. 

 

10.03 Henry District – Employees at Jarratt Convenience Center - no lights, getting dark earlier; 

asked Administration to expedite getting lights. 

 

10.04 Stony Creek District – Stony Creek Annual Christmas parade 1st Sunday, December 4th; 

wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 

 

10.05 Wakefield District – Have same approach in improving County buildings as for Animal 

Services buildings. 

 

10.06  Waverly District – Personnel Committee – convenience - convenience site employees 

threatened; requested Personnel Committee meeting; letter for Courthouse District; Social 

Services and Social Services Director and Board; vehicle logos. 

 

There was discussion of Board's role regarding personnel. 

 

11. Closed Session 

 

There was no Closed Session. 

 

12.  Adjournment 

 

12.01 Adjournment 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the November 17, 2022 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of 

Supervisors hereby adjourned at 8:15 p.m.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

12.02 Next Meeting 

 

The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting is scheduled to be held, Thursday, December 15, 

2022 at 6 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $572,182.64

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS: CHECK NO. AMOUNTS PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF December 2022 223713-223760 60,779.29$                RUN DATE 12/01/2022

223761-223831 85,856.08$                RUN DATE 12/8/2022

223884 30.00$                       RUN DATE 12/15/2022

223885-223944 147,109.08$              RUN DATE 12/15/2022

223958-223962 8,595.38$                  RUN DATE 12/15/2022

223963 9,620.53$                  RUN DATE 12/22/2022

223964 50.00$                       RUN DATE 12/29/2022

223965-224006 152,423.02$              RUN DATE 12/29/2022

Total Regular Warrants $464,463.38

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS:

223832-222870 5,836.00$                  RUN DATE 12/12/2022

223871-223883 51,768.02$                RUN DATE 12/16/2022

223945-223957 50,115.24$                RUN DATE 12/22/2022

Total Deduction Warrants: $107,719.26

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $572,182.64

January 19, 2023

             WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
CHECKS 

 



















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PAYROLL 
DEDUCTION 

CHECKS 









TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $520,053.41

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS: CHECK NO. AMOUNTS PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF November 2022 223509-223560 121,981.13$              RUN DATE 11/3/2022
223573-223622 97,631.58$                RUN DATE 11/10/2022
223623 7,731.00$                  RUN DATE 11/15/2022
223624 1,174.28$                  RUN DATE 11/15/2022
223638-223676 164,066.08$              RUN DATE 11/21/2022
223677-223712 1,470.00$                  RUN DATE 11/29/2022

Total Regular Warrants $394,054.07

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS:
223561-553572 49,821.93$                RUN DATE 11/16/2022
223625-223637 49,826.91$                RUN DATE 11/23/2022

Total Deduction Warrants: $99,648.84

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $520,053.41

ACH PAYMENTS 
Flores & Associates 26,350.50$                RUN DATE 11/4/2022

December 15, 2022

             WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
CHECKS 

 







































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PAYROLL 
DEDUCTION 

CHECKS 









 

ACH PAYMENTS 
 

 

 

 





2.03

sricks
Highlight





SUSSEX COUNTY - DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 

REVENU.E/EXPENDITURE SUMMARY REPORT 

NOVEMBER 2022 

General Fund FUND BALANCE as of 11/30/22 = $8,096,126 

,._ PRIOR FY-

CURRENT YTD 

ANNUAL MONTH YTDACTUAL Through COLLECTED% 

REVENUES llli ' 
APPROPRIATED ACTIVITY 11/30/2022 11/30/2021 YTD 

Real Estate - 2022 5,511,434 2,654,755 2,725,799 2,866,782 49.5% 

Public Service Corp - 2022 713,720 202,599 202,658 223,682 28.4% 

Personal Property - 2022 3,858,156 1,926,321 1,972,464 1,677,715 51.1% 

Machinery & Tools - 2022 560,919 108,712 108,712 458,429 19.4% 

Local Sales & Use Taxes (net) 1,040,124 90,108 468,795 455,575 45.1% 

Transient Occupancy Tax 80,000 4,234 38,879 35,044 48.6% 

Consumer Utility Taxes 93,000 7,891 32,337 40,368 34.8% 

Business License Taxes 70,050 3,342 15,902 16,476 22.7% 

Motor Vehicle Licenses 229,800 70,397 80,412 88,248 35.0% 

Landfill Tipping Fees 5,550,000 400,445 2,292,093 2,344,194 41.3% 

Delinquent Taxes RE 172,500 20,584 86,626 52,586 50.2% 

Delinquent Tax Personal Property 88,100 6,895 52,646 46,796 59.8% 

Penalties - All Property 115,000 3,141 14,412 12,114 12.5% 

Interest - All Property 30,000 3,257 9,270 9,052 30.9% 

Court Fines 840,000 57,884 287,112 342,137 34.2% 

EMS Billing 300,000 0 6,821 n/a 2.3% 

State 4,122,872 1,147,957 2,466,847 2,369,372 59.8% 

Federal 1,500 0 0 84,077 0.0% 

Transfer in from Reserve 304,331 51,125 304,331 351,047 100.0% 

Designated Use of Fund Balance 3,098,739 0 0 0 0.0% 

I 

PRIOR FY-

CURRENT YTD 
1, 

ANNUAL MONTH YTDACTUAL Through 

EXPENDITURES -
APPROPRIATED ACTIVITY 11/30/2022 11/30/2021 SPENT% YTD 

General Government 3,646,421 203,086 1,137,381 892,591 31.2% 

Judicial Administration 1,290,437 90,294 553,950 477,278 42.9% 

Fire, Rescue, EMS 2,748,996 173,871 1,395,810 1,006,604 50.8% 

Sheriff's Operations & Jail 6,434,447 383,216 2,167,883 2,117,631 33.7% 

Public Works 2,078,465 134,228 966,909 587,943 46.5% 

Health & Welfare 908,783 44,044 265,650 655,019 29.2% 

Education 7,750,121 661,490 2,763,782 2,431,704 35.7% 

Parks Rec & Cultural Enrichment 273,760 1,750 144,880 154,436 52.9% 

Planning/Community Dev 1,413,623 78,155 437,892 298,275 31.0% 

Debt Service 1,581,016 221,443 1,345,256 1,335,757 85.1% 



General Fund 

I
CURRENT ACTUAL 

ANNUAL MONTH 11/30/2022 YTD 11/30/2021 Spent% 

YEAR TO PRIOR FISCAL 

EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT APPROPRIATED ACTIVITY DATE YEAR YTD 

Board of Supervisors 168,687 15,115 61,234 51,688 36.3% 

Administration 2,028,334 72,098 439,741 368,710 21.7% 

Contingency Acct ( 7 /1/22 = $100,000) 21,854 0 0 0 0.0% 

HRA Adm in Fee 5,600 0 0 N/A 0.0% 

HRA Employer Spend 160,000 26,351 91,881 N/A 57.4% 

IT & Central Acct 102,093 192 77,040 23,306 75.5% 

County Attorney 150,000 8,500 50,242 56,004 33.5% 

Registrar/Board of Elections 247,538 19,438 99,280 83,667 40.1% 

Com of Revenue 277,659 20,285 109,280 104,202 39.4% 

Reassessment Services 48,163 9,000 40,815 32,951 84.7% 

Treasurer I 436,493 32,108 167,870 172,063 38.5% 

General Government 3,646,421 203,086 1,137,381 892,591 31.2% 

Courts I 110,423 3,914 41,724 37,748 37.8% 

Clerk of Courts 457,126 31,414 213,622 157,292 46.7% 

Com Atty/Vic Wit 722,888 54,966 298,604 282,237 41.3% 

Judicial Administration 1,290,437 90,294 553,950 477,278 42.9% 

Fire/Rescue/EMS 2,237,671 136,530 1,205,581 835,985 53.9% 

Aminal Control 511,325 37,341 190,229 170,619 37.2% 

Fire, Rescue, EMS 2,748,996 173,871 1,395,810 1,006,604 50.8% 

Court Sec/Spot/FO/E911 4,299,923 223,894 1,343,637 1,291,499 31.2% 

Confinement of Inmates 1,979,571 135,388 761,574 797,252 38.5% 

Crater Crim Justice Aca. 154,954 23,934 62,673 28,880 40.4% 

Sheriff's Operations & Jail 6,434,447 383,216 2,167,883 2,117,631 33.7% 

Building & Grounds 1,045,151 68,348 515,263 192,047 49.3% 

Envir Inspections 197,540 8,280 52,967 76,903 26.8% 

General Works 297,197 11,420 116,590 93,337 39.2% 

Convenience Ctrs. 538,577 46,180 282,089 225,655 52.4% 

Public Works 2,078,465 134,228 966,909 587,943 46.5% 

Health - Outside Agencies 236,615 0 43,149 112,276 18.2% 

Com. Support Services - Outside Agencies 202,815 9,036 91,771 144,445 45.2% 

Local Contrib to DSS 289,353 0 47,684 158,667 16.5% 

Local Contrib to CSA 180,000 35,009 83,046 239,631 46.1% 

Health & Welfare 908,783 44,044 265,650 655,019 29.2% 

Educ Contrib - Outside Agencies 951 0 951 2,982 100.0% 

Local Contrib to Sch Fd 7,749,170 661,490 2,762,831 2,428,722 35.7% 

Edu.cation J 7,750,121 661,490 2,763,782 2,431,704 35.7% 

Library/Cultural - Outside Agencies 204,260 0 101,380 106,076 49.6% 

Recreational Contrib- Outside Agencies 69,500 1,750 43,500 48,360 62.6% 

Parks Rec & Cultural Enrichment 273,760 1,750 144,880 154,436 52.9% 

DHCD UNOS Grt 576,732 56,519 216,854 133,838 37.6% 

Planning/Building/Zoning 483,630 21,636 151,601 176,362 31.3% 

CDBG Pocahantas Grt 283,325 0 12,000 -67,538 4.2% 

Crater Planning Com 8,771 0 8,771 4,895 100.0% 

IDA I 12,500 0 0 0 0.0% 

Va Gateway Region 47,166 0 47,166 47,417 100.0% 

Crater SBDC 1,500 0 1,500 3,300 100.0% 

Planning/Community Dev 1,413,623 78,155 437,892 298,275 31.0% 

Debt Service 1,581,016 221,443 1,345,256 1,335,757 85.1% 

Debt Service 1,581,016 221,443 1,345,256 1,335,757 85.1% 





SUSSEX COUNTY 

TREASURER'S REPORT 

AND 

FINANCIAL UPDATE 

SUBMITTED BY DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

2.03

sricks
Highlight











BUILDING 

INSPECTIONS  

DEPARTMENT 

   December 15, 2022 

& 

January 19, 2023 

Monthly Reports 

 

2.04 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Building department                                                                                    County of Sussex, Virginia   

MATT WESTHEIMER , mcp, cbo                                                                                                                    P. O. Box 1397 Sussex, Virginia 23884 

building official                                                                                                                                                      Fax (434) 246-8259 

(434) 246-4390  

 

 

Sussexcountyva.gov 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  January 4, 2023 

 

TO:  Richard Douglas, County Administrator  

     

FROM: Matt Westheimer, Building Official        

 

SUBJECT: December 2022 - Monthly Report 

 

 

Please accept this as the December 2022 update for the Building Department.   

  

BUILDING ACTIVITY  

 

 December 2022 
 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

7 16 6 7 94 $531,800.75 $8,704.43 

 

 December 2021 
 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

27 13 8 12 65 $9,787,933.00 $26,977.22 

 

 January 2022 – December 2022 (Yearly totals) 

 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

131 169 60 93 1024 $20,080,100.83 $152,471.66 

 

Inspections completed within 24 hours For July 100% 

Plans reviewed within 10 business days For July 100% 

 

 



Building department                                                                                    County of Sussex, Virginia   

MATT WESTHEIMER , mcp, cbo                                                                                                                    P. O. Box 1397 Sussex, Virginia 23884 

building official                                                                                                                                                      Fax (434) 246-8259 

(434) 246-4390  

 

 

Sussexcountyva.gov 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  December 1, 2022 

 

TO:  Richard Douglas, County Administrator  

     

FROM: Matt Westheimer, Building Official        

 

SUBJECT: November 2022 - Monthly Report 

 

 

Please accept this as the November 2022 update for the Building Department.   

  

BUILDING ACTIVITY  

 

 November 2022 
 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

8 13 5 5 77 $6,283,658.40 $69,776.82 

 

 November 2021 
 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

12 8 2 4 72 $1,079,501.00 $3,790.16 

 

 January 2022 – December 2022 (Yearly totals) 

 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

124 153 54 86 930 $19,548,300.08 $143,767.23 

 

Inspections completed within 24 hours For July 100% 

Plans reviewed within 10 business days For July 100% 

 

 



 

Planning Department 
 

 

December 15, 2022  

&  

January 19, 2023 

 

Monthly Reports 

 



 

 

Planning & Zoning Department 

Monthly Report for November and December 2022 
Michael Poarch, County Planner 

Community Development/Special Programs/Grant Administration  

Current Developments 

 Site Work for Waverly Solar LLC Phase I (Substation) 

 Site Work for Pit Crew LLC 

 Site Plan Review for Waverly Solar LLC Phase II, and Phase III  

 ESC Plan Review for Waverly RNG Project- Pipeline 

 ESC Plan Review for Stony Creek Shell Diesel Islands 

 ESC Plan Approval for Waverly RNG Project- Access Road 

 Subdivision/ ESC Plan Review for Evergreen Acres “Section 2” 

 

Sussex County Urgent Need (UNOS) Project 

 Thirteen (13) housing projects have been completed under the UNOS project, including six (6) substantial 

reconstructions and seven (7) rehabilitations. Façade Improvement work for three (3) businesses has been 

completed. 

 Close out for Sussex County Urgent Need (UNOS) Project, per the 12/31/2022 deadline. 
 

Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Project 

 Five (5) housing projects have been completed under the Pocahontas project, including three (3) substantial 

reconstructions and two (2) rehabilitations.   

 One (1) housing rehabilitation project has been negotiated  and is pending Phase II approval from DHCD. 

 Deadline for Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Project Phase I was September 30, 2022.  Pending 

DHCD approval to proceed with Phase II. 

 

Planning & Zoning 

 The Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider the following amendment(s) at its November 

meeting: 

o The Planning Commission recommended approval contingent upon recommended conditions along 

with three additional/revised conditions for Conditional Use Permit #2022-04, Howell Godfrey, Jr, 

applicant to The Board of Supervisors. 

 

 Four (4) Zoning Applications were reviewed and approved for November: two (2) for Garage, one (1) for solar 
rack as an accessory use to a single family dwelling, and (1) for a home occupation. 

 Six (6) Zoning Applications were reviewed and approved for December: three (3) for single family dwelling, one 
(1) for handicap ramp, one (1) for an equipment shed, and one (1) for a pool. 



 

 

 Two (2) new address assignments were issued for new residential construction on Courthouse Road and 
Petersburg Road for December. 

 

Erosion & Sediment Control 

 Required Monthly Land Disturbance Reports to DEQ are up-to-date. 

 One (1) Land Disturbance Application was approved for Waverly Align RNG Project- Access Road.  

 Five (5) E&S projects are active with inspections being made within a two-week period or after each significant 

rainfall event. Periodic inspections are also being done for Agreement in Lieu of an Erosion and Sediment 

Control Plan for single family dwellings.  



PUBLIC WORKS 

DEPARTMENT 

BOS MEETING 

December 15, 2022 

& 

January 19, 2023 

Monthly Reports 

 

Building & Grounds 
Department 

 

2.04 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 

                                                  Solid Waste 
 

                                  
 



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 12/01/2022 12:00 AM to 12/31/2022 11:59 PM

Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons                                                      571.96 

Origin Total                                                     571.96 

DE MSWT                                                      231.30 

DE Special Misc-Tons                                                        24.99 

Origin Total                                                     256.29 

MD CDTC                                                        21.64 

MD MSWT                                                        95.71 

MD POTW Sludge-Tons                                                        19.48 

MD Sludge Indus-Tons                                                        91.89 

MD SludgeIndus-Tons                                                      121.62 

Origin Total                                                     350.34 

NC MSWT                                                  3,645.60 

NC Special Misc-Tons                                                  3,173.56 

Origin Total                                                  6,819.16 

NJ MSWT                                                        66.48 

Origin Total                                                        66.48 

NY MSWT                                                63,116.55 

Origin Total                                                63,116.55 

PA MSWT                                                        67.72 

Origin Total                                                        67.72 

SUSS BUS MSWT                                                        21.89 

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons                                                  1,288.96 

Origin Total                                                  1,310.85 

SUSS RES MSWT                                                      409.80 

Origin Total                                                     409.80 

VA Auto Fluff-Tons                                                  3,029.81 

VA CDTC                                                        98.62 

VA MSWT                                                23,357.86 

VA Off Spec Food-Load                                                      317.38 

VA SludgeIndus-Tons                                                      607.90 

VA Special Misc-Tons                                                      159.73 

VA Spwaste Cover RGC-Tons                                                      142.74 

Origin Total                                                27,714.04 

Totals                                              100,683.19 



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 11/01/2022 12:00 AM to 11/30/2022 11:59 PM

Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons                                                452.31 

Origin Total                                                452.31 

DE MSWT                                                420.11 

DE Sandblast Grit-Tons                                                  28.13 

DE Special Misc-Tons                                                  22.79 

Origin Total                                                471.03 

MD CDTC                                                  46.51 

MD MSWT                                                104.68 

MD Sludge Indus-Tons                                                  44.36 

MD SludgeIndus-Tons                                                  59.06 

Origin Total                                                254.61 

NC CDTC                                                  30.96 

NC MSW-Tons                                                    1.10 

NC MSWT                                            3,853.54 

NC Special Misc-Tons                                            5,306.88 

Origin Total                                            9,192.48 

NJ MSWT                                                  84.98 

Origin Total                                                  84.98 

NY MSWT                                          59,936.47 

Origin Total                                          59,936.47 

PA MSWT                                                  60.96 

Origin Total                                                  60.96 

SC MSWT                                                  18.27 

Origin Total                                                  18.27 

SUSS BUS MSWT                                                  26.33 

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons                                                983.85 

Origin Total                                            1,010.18 

SUSS RES MSWT                                                426.34 

Origin Total                                                426.34 

VA Auto Fluff-Tons                                                109.82 

VA CDTC                                                491.69 

VA DCLN                                                  61.91 

VA MSWT                                          20,706.93 

VA Off Spec Food-Load                                                565.21 

VA SludgeIndus-Tons                                                  13.43 

VA Special Misc-Tons                                                  58.35 

VA Spwaste Cover RGC-Tons                                                491.12 

Origin Total                                          22,498.46 

Totals                                          94,406.09 



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 10/01/2022 12:00 AM to 10/31/2022 11:59 PM

Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons                                                  523.50 

Origin Total                                                  523.50 

DE MSWT                                                  171.39 

DE Sandblast Grit-Tons                                                     64.32 

Origin Total                                                  235.71 

MD Sludge Indus-Tons                                                     48.14 

MD SludgeIndus-Tons                                                     82.53 

Origin Total                                                  130.67 

NC CDTC                                                     49.67 

NC MSW-Tons                                                       0.37 

NC MSWT                                               3,503.75 

NC Special Misc-Tons                                               4,619.40 

Origin Total                                               8,173.19 

NY MSWT                                             51,786.18 

Origin Total                                             51,786.18 

PA MSWT                                                     66.28 

Origin Total                                                     66.28 

SUSS BUS MSWT                                                     27.38 

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons                                               1,052.31 

Origin Total                                               1,079.69 

SUSS RES CDTC                                                       2.45 

SUSS RES MSWT                                                  369.41 

Origin Total                                                  371.86 

VA Auto Fluff-Tons                                                  734.95 

VA CDTC                                                     53.47 

VA MSWT                                             21,833.04 

VA Off Spec Food-Load                                                  161.72 

VA SludgeIndus-Tons                                                     29.15 

VA Special Misc-Tons                                                     43.22 

VA Spwaste Cover RGC-Tons                                                     91.08 

Origin Total                                             22,946.63 

Totals                                             85,313.71 



 

Sheriff’s Department 

 

        

 

 

December 15, 2022 

&  

January 19, 2023 
 

Monthly Reports  

   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Sussex County Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report 
   Month of December 2023 

 
PATROL 
         

 

 
COURTS 
 

   
Court: Judges: 
Circuit Court 2 
General District 6 
JDR Court 3 

 
CIVIL 

                    

 
Fines and Forfeitures $47,662 
Sheriff’s Fees $327.00 
Courthouse Security $6,468.94 

 
Gallons of Fuel Used  2,447.7 gallons 

 
 

 

“ONE FAMILY, ONE MISSION, 
 ONE GOAL” 

 
 

Sherif f E. L. Giles, Sr. 
Sussex County Sheriff’s Office 
P. O. Box 1326 
Sussex, Virginia 23884 

 
                                        Telephone 434-246-5000 
                                        Fax             434-246-5714 
                                        www.sussexsheriffva.com 
                                        Email egiles@susova.us 

CALLS FOR SERVICE 
Type: Total: 
Sheriff 1,362 
Fire 102 
Rescue 225 
Animal Control 72 
Town of Wakefield 14 
Traffic 780 
TOTAL 2,555 

 
Court: 

Days of 
Court: 

Circuit Court 3 
General District 10 
JDR Court 5 

Type: Total: 
Subpoenas Served 270 
Jury Summoned 77 
Criminal Warrants 55 
DMV Notices 4 
Levies 0 
TDO 2 
ECO 2 
Other Civil 130 



 
 
 
 
 
JAIL 
 
During the month of December 2022, our average daily population was 30.61 inmates. The jail booked in 24 
individuals during December2022.  
 
The classification of these inmates as reported by the Commonwealth of Virginia’s LIDS computer system is  
as follows: 
 
Pre- Trial   29 inmates, having been confined a total of 535 days 
Sentenced Misdemeanant  12 inmates, having been confined a total of 73 days 
Sentenced Felons   9 inmates, having been confined a total of 220 days. 
Others   6 inmates, convicted but not sentenced, etc. 
Weekenders  0 inmates serving a misdemeanor sentence.  

 
Transports of inmates for various reasons are listed below: 
 
Court / Jail 16 
Medical 2 
Juvenile 4 
Road Crew 0 
TDO (Mental) 2 
TOTAL 24 

 
  







BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda Item #2.05 
 
Subject: Davenport Debt Capacity Analysis Budget Amendment 
 
Board Meeting Date:   January 19 2023  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:  Staff recommends payment of the attached invoice for services received from 
Davenport & Company, LLC in the amount of $37,560.05 associated with debt capacity and debt 
affordability analyses and deliverables prepared for the Board of Supervisors that were necessary 
to determine the County’s capacity to move forward with various capital projects (administrative 
building/historic courthouse renovation, fire/EMS stations, utility improvements, etc.).  While 
these costs are typically included as part of project debt-related fees, Davenport has requested 
payment now or in multiple payments over 2023, since it is not anticipated that the County will 
move forward with securing debt over the next several months (the board may elect to be 
“reimbursed” for these fees as part of a debt application process).  The attached resolution 
provides the necessary funding to pay the Davenport invoice in its entirety.  
 

Recommendation:  Board approves resolution for payment. 
 
Attachments: Draft Copy of Resolution #22-143 and Davenport Invoice Number PF22-234 
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  The Board approves Resolution #22-143 for payment to Davenport in the 
amount of $37,560.05 for services.                                                 
              
 

              
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

S. White  ___ ___ 
    (Tie Breaker) 

 



RESOLUTION #23-03A 

FY23 BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 

amendment for the General Government and Administration department be and hereby is made 

for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023.  This resolution will appropriate local 

reserve funds for the debt capacity and debt affordability analyses provided by Davenport. 

 

FUND # 100 

GENERAL FUND 

 

REVENUE 

 Fund 135 Local Reserves      $37,560 

 Total Revenues      $37,560 

 

EXPENDITURE 

 Fund 100 Administration     $37,560 

 Total Expenditures      $37,560 

 

 

 

________________________ 

Susan B. Seward, Chairman 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Richard Douglas, Clerk 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

Adopted this 19th day of January, 2023. 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda #2.06 
 
Subject: Request for Leave Carryover 

 
Board Meeting Date:   January 19 2023  
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  As the end of the year approaches, employees have been monitoring their leave 
closely to avoid losing any at the end of the year due to the maximum carryover limits.  Due to 
the lack of staffing, some employees will forfeit many hours if not used by the end of the year.  
This will affect employees that follow County leave policies-which include those under County 
Administration and the Sheriff’s Department. 
 
County Administration and the Sheriff’s Department are requesting an extension to use their 
vacation/annual, holiday and compensatory leave until May 1st.    
 
Please note that the Sheriff’s Department has requested that leave for staff be recorded 
internally effective January 31, 2023 pay period. 
 
Recommendation:   That the Board approves the request for extension to use vacation/annual, 
holiday and compensatory leave until May 1st. 
 
Attachments: Copies of Sheriff Giles’ Letters 
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves the request for extension to use vacation/annual, 
holiday and compensatory leave until May 1st for County Administration and the Sheriff’s 
Department. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 

Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 
     White  ___ ___ 
     (Tie Breaker)                                             
  
 







BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda Item #2.07 
 
Subject: Draft FY24 Budget Planning Calendar 
 
Board Meeting Date:   January 19 2023  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:   Attached for your consideration is the Draft FY24 Budget Planning Calendar for the 
upcoming FY24 fiscal year.    
 

Recommendation:    
 
Attachment: Draft Copy of FY24Budget Planning Calendar 
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  Staff approves FY24 Budget Planning Calendar or make adjustments as 
needed. 
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

S. White  ___ ___ 
    (Tie Breaker) 

 



1/12/2023 10:17 AM 
 

Sussex County 

FY2024 Budget Planning Calendar 

 

November 2022 FY2024 Budget Planning  

December 20, 2022 Distribution of Budget Schedules to County Departments and to 
Outside Agencies with instructions from the County Administrator  

January 21, 2023 Department Budget Schedules and External Agency requests due to 
County Administration  

January - March 2023 Development of Revenue Estimates with Treasurer, Commissioner & 
Finance  

January 30 – Feb. 10, 2023 County Administrator Budget Work Sessions with Departments 

February – April 2023 Preparation of Proposed Operating Budget and 5-Year CIP 

March 2, 2023 Departmental “Big Ticket” Presentations – Administration & 
Constitutional Officers  

March 9, 2023  Board of Supervisors Planning Session/ Retreat 

March 16, 2023 Budget Work Session - Health Insurance & Schools 

March 23, 2023  Budget Work Session - Revenue & Expenditures 

March 30, 2023  Budget Work Session - External Agencies 

April 20, 2023 Present FY2024 Proposed Operating Budget and 5-Year CIP to BOS 
April 26, 2023  Advertise FY2024 Proposed Budget and CY2023 Tax Rates 

May 18, 2023 FY2024 Budget Public Hearing 
June 1, 2023 Adoption of the FY2024 Operating Budget, FY2024 – FY2028 CIP and 

Calendar Year 2023 Tax Rates 



Consent Agenda – Page 19 

BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda Item #2.08 
 
Subject: DMV Select Revenue & FYE Budget Amendment Resolutions 
 
Board Meeting Date:   January 19 2023  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:  Treasurer Cox has requested, and the County Administrator is in agreement, that 
funds be allocated from future DMV-related revenue (estimated to be approximately 
$32,000/year) to provide a salary supplement for her staff to provide the DMV Select services.  
Presently two staff member salaries are less than a customer service position salary at a DMV full 
service center.  The DMV Select opened on October 11th providing residents of Sussex County 
access to selected DMV services through the Treasurer’s office, and has been well received to 
date.  As you may recall, the state requires at least 80 percent of the revenues generated shall 
be appropriated by Sussex County to the Treasurer to compensate for the additional work 
involved with processing transactions, so this request is consistent with the state requirement. 
 
Since the DMV Select has been only been operational since October, it is requested that reserve 
funds be used to provide this supplement through the current fiscal year.  The attached 
resolution provides $18,750 in local reserves for a supplement retroactive to October 1st. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the attached resolutions (#22-146A & #22-
146B) appropriating local reserves to provide for a local supplement for Treasurer staff providing 
DMV Select services retroactive to October 1, 2022. 
 
Attachments: Copies of Resolution #22-146A DMV Select Revenue & #22-146B FYE23 Budget 
Amendment 
 

============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  Board approves Resolutions #22-146A & #22-146B appropriating local 
reserves to provide for a local supplement for Treasurer staff providing DMV Select services 
retroactive to October 1, 2022 
 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
Futrell  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 

S. White  ___ ___ 
    (Tie Breaker) 



 

 

SUSSEX COUNTY RESOLUTION 

At a Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex held at the Courthouse 

therefore, on the 19th day of January 2023. 

PRESENT:         VOTE:  

 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.  

Alfred G. Futrell  

Debbie P. Jones 

Wayne O. Jones, Vice Chairman 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.  

Susan B. Seward, Chair 

 

 

RESOLUTION #23-03D 

WHEREAS, DMV Select opened on October 11, 2022, providing residents of Sussex County 

access to selected DMV services through the Treasurer’s office; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with FY23-24 State Biennial Budget, at least 80 percent of the 

revenues generated shall be appropriated by Sussex County (“County”) to the Office of the 

Treasurer to compensate the Office for the additional work involved with processing 

transactions; and  

WHEREAS, to ensure employees in the Treasurer’s Office are adequately compensated for the 

extra duties, the Treasurer and County agree that 100 percent the first $25,000 in revenue will be 

provided to the County and said funds shall be used to supplement the salaries and fringe 

benefits of employees in the Treasurer’s Office; and  

WHEREAS, any remaining revenue shall be divided with 80 percent appropriated to the 

Treasurer’s Office to support the costs associated with running DMV Select, and 20 percent to 

the County; and  

WHEREAS, this formula shall apply retroactively to October 1, 2022.   

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors for Sussex County, 

Virginia, as follows: 

§1. That 100 percent of the first $25,000 in revenue will be provided to the County and said 

funds shall be used to supplement the salaries and fringe benefits of employees in the Treasurer’s 

Office; and  

§2. Any remaining revenue shall be divided between the parties with 80 percent appropriated to 

the Treasurer’s Office and 20 percent to the County; and  

§3. This formula shall be retroactive to October 1, 2022.   



 

 

 

Approved by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors and effective this 19th day of January, 

2023. 

 

By: _____________________________ 

            Susan Seward, Chair 

 

Attest: _______________________ 

            Clerk to the Board 



RESOLUTION #23-03D 

FYE23 BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 

amendment for the Treasurer’s Office be and hereby is made for the period of July 1, 2022 through 

June 30, 2023.  This resolution will appropriate local reserve funds to the Treasurer’s Office for 

DMV Select salary supplements. 

 

REVENUE 

 Fund 135 Local Reserves    $18,750 

 Total Revenues     $18,750 

 

EXPENDITURE 

 Fund 100 Treasurer’s Office   $18,750 

 Total Expenditures    $18,750 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Susan B. Seward, Chairman 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 

Richard Douglas, Clerk 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

Adopted this 19th day of January, 2023. 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda Item #2.09 
 
Subject: Legal Services for Carver & Glyndon Lanes (Outside Counsel Fees) 
 
Board Meeting Date:   January 19 2023  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:   The Glyndon and Carver Lanes Project was a long standing project with complex 
property ownership issues affecting the acquisition of deeds and easements required to 
complete the project.  VDOT began some of its upgrading work just before the holidays in 
preparation for paving in the Spring.  
 
Outside counsel was retained as recommended by the County Attorney from Attorney F. Adam 
Cherry, III with Randolph, Boyd, Cherry, Vaughn, PLC for legal services regarding this project for 
the Carver Lane and Glyndon Lane Improvement Project.  Enclosed is the first and final itemized 
bill for professional services for all time from May 20 to December 21, 2022.   
 
The attached resolution for budget amendment will appropriate local reserve funds for payment 
of fees.    
 

Recommendation:   That the Board approves resolution appropriate funds for payment in the 
amount of $7,247. 
 
Attachments: Budget Amendment Resolution and Attorney F. Adam Cherry letter and Invoice 
#20341. 
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves resolution appropriate funds for payment. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

S. White  ___ ___ 
    (Tie Breaker) 



RESOLUTION #23-03E

FY23 BUDGET AMENDMENT 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 
amendment for the General Government and Administration department be and hereby is made 
for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023.  This resolution will appropriate local 
reserve funds for legal services regarding the Sussex County condemnations Carver Lane and 
Glyndon Lane Improvement Project. 

FUND # 100 
GENERAL FUND 

REVENUE 

Fund 135 Local Reserves $7,247 
Total Revenues $7,247 

EXPENDITURE 

Fund 100 Administration $7,247 
Total Expenditures  $7,247 

________________________ 
___________________, Chairman 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Richard Douglas, Clerk 
Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Adopted this 19th day of January, 2023. 















BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Consent Agenda Item #2.10 
 
Subject:  Virginia Tourism ARPA Funding for Carpenter Museum/Town of Waverly 
 
Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023 
============================================================================== 
Summary:   Sussex County was awarded $30,000 in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds from 
Virginia Tourism Corporation (VTC) to assist in the revitalization of Virginia’s tourism industry 
with financial resources to overcome the negative impact of COVID-19 and support attracting 
visitors to destinations across the state. Funds are required to be designated for tourism 
marketing, media, public relations, sales, and product development. 
 
Recently, the Town of Waverly initiated discussions with the Miles B. Carpenter Folk Art Museum 
in an effort to restart its operations. This museum celebrated the life and legacy of Miles B. 
Carpenter, who was a Waverly resident and a famous American folk sculptor whose work is 
featured in the Smithsonian American Art Museum. Since the pandemic, the museums’ functions 
have ceased and the board supporting these efforts has had difficulty restarting operations. 
Moreover, the facility has fallen into disrepair. This deprives the community and other would-be 
visitors of a culturally enriching experience and recreational amenity. Recently, however, the 
Town of Waverly has been actively considering acquisition of the facility so that it may once again 
serve as an arts, culture, and recreation destination in the community.  
 
Sussex County, in partnership with the Town of Waverly and Sussex County Chamber of 
Commerce, proposed to use its $30,000 in ARPA funds for tourism product development 
supporting the museum. These funds would be used to bring the facility back into better 
condition with particular emphasis on repair/replacement of structures used for tourism-related 
activities including a pavilion and outdoor stage. Additionally, funds would be used to repair 
and/or upgrade signage and lighting surrounding the facility. 
 
The attached document contains the County’s proposal which was submitted to VTC on 
December 22, 2022.  
 
Recommendation:  This is being provided for informational purposes only. No action is needed. 
 
Attachments: (1) Plan Narrative – Sussex County, (2) Budget Breakdown – Sussex County 
============================================================================= 
ACTION:  That the Board   
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___  
Futrell  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 

White (Tie Breaker)  ___ ___ 



 
 
 
 
 

Board of Supervisors 

 
Susan B. Seward, Chairman 
Wayne O. Jones, Vice-Chair 
C. Eric Fly, Sr. 
Alfred G. Futrell 
Debbie P. Jones 
Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Post Office Box 1397 
20135 Princeton Road 
Sussex, Virginia 23884 

    
 

         Richard Douglas 
                   County Administrator 

        
 

 Telephone: (434) 246-1000 
  Facsimile: (434) 246-6013  
    www.sussexcountyva.gov 

 

Sussex County  
American Rescue Plan Act Tourism Recovery Program 
December 14, 2022 
 
Sussex County, part of Virginia’s Gateway Region (VGR), is strategically centered between Richmond, 
Hampton Roads, and Southside along the I-95 and US-460 corridors. According to the U.S. Census, 
10,829 persons live in Sussex County, which is broken down into the following race and ethnicities: 

- American Indian & Alaska Native: 0.1% 
- Asian: 0.1% 
- Black or African American: 53.4% 
- Hispanic or Latino: 2.8% 

 
 

- Native Hawaiian & Other Pacific Islander: 
0.1% 

- Some Other Race: 0.2% 
- Two or More Races: 2.9% 
- White 40.6%

Much like many other communities during the pandemic, Sussex County’s economy declined. The 
annual unemployment rate for Sussex County in 2020 was 8.6%, nearly double its rate of 4.6% in 2019 
before the onset of the COVID pandemic. This includes significant impacts to the accommodation and 
food services industry – which covers many tourism-related jobs and is the fourth highest employment 
sector in Sussex County according to the Virginia Employment Commission. Moreover, the current 
unemployment rate (6.5% for 2021) still remains higher than the County’s rate prior to the COVID 
pandemic and exceeds the current rate for the Commonwealth (3.9%) and the United States (5.3%). 
Additionally, as most research has indicated, the effects of the pandemic were more acutely deleterious 
to communities of color, which constitute a majority of the County’s population. 
 
While the County is still in a state of recovery, it has begun efforts to kick-start its economic revival, 
including through tourism and in partnership with its four towns, two of which are strategically located 
along the U.S. Highway 460 corridor. According to Virginia Department of Transportation statistics, over 
11,000 vehicles traverse this corridor daily. This creates a prime opportunity to focus on tourism-related 
ventures and for which the community has already seen recent success, including the opening of several 
restaurants and other businesses in the Towns of Waverly and Wakefield. 
 
Recently, the Town of Waverly initiated discussions with the Miles B. Carpenter Folk Art Museum in an 
effort to restart its operations. This museum celebrated the life and legacy of Miles B. Carpenter, who 
was a Waverly resident and a famous American folk sculptor whose work is featured in the Smithsonian 
American Art Museum. Before his death, Mr. Carpenter donated his house and attached property so 
that it could be used for the public’s enjoyment, and so a museum celebrating his legacy was established 
there in 1986. The museum is a Virginia Historic Landmark, and is on the National Register of Historic 
Places. The Folk Art Society of America designated the Museum a national folk art site in May 2000. 
 
The museum offered a variety of art classes and served as a primary focal point for promoting the arts 
in Sussex, Surry, and Prince George Counties in addition to the greater Petersburg tri-cities area. The 

http://www.sussexcountyva.gov/


facility was open year-round and received visitors from all over the United States and world. The site 
includes the First Peanut Museum in the United States, which celebrates the County’s and Town’s history 
as the site of the first commercial peanut cultivation and distribution in the United States. The facility 
also contains the Thomas E. Yancey Nature Trail, which provides an outdoor recreational amenity on the 
site’s 8 acres. In addition to the above activities, the facility hosted numerous flea markets, arts and 
crafts sales, festivals, musical and dance performances, yard sales, and summer art camps. 
 
Since the pandemic, the museums’ functions have ceased and the board supporting these efforts has 
had difficulty restarting operations. Moreover, the facility has fallen into disrepair. This deprives the 
community and other would-be visitors of a culturally enriching experience and recreational amenity. 
Recently, however, the Town of Waverly has been actively considering acquisition of the facility so that 
it may once again serve as an arts, culture, and recreation destination in the community. Given the 
notoriety of Mr. Carpenter and the facility’s adjacency to the significant volume of U.S. Route 460 traffic, 
this represents one of the greatest tourism-related opportunities in the community at this time. Not 
only would restarting this facility be a cultural boost to the community, it would also stimulate additional 
economic activity by creating demand for other existing and future accommodations-related businesses. 
 
Sussex County, in partnership with the Town of Waverly and Sussex County Chamber of Commerce, 
proposes to use its $30,000 in ARPA funds for tourism product development supporting the museum. 
These funds would be used to bring the facility back into better condition with particular emphasis on 
repair/replacement of structures used for tourism-related activities including a pavilion and outdoor 
stage. Additionally, funds would be used to repair and/or upgrade signage and lighting surrounding the 
facility. These activities are summarized in greater detail below and in the attached budget. 
 

1. Update, repair, and/or replace existing pavilion structure (see attached pictures) 
a. Benefit: This would provide a safe sturdy structure for facility activities that may require 

shelter but which could otherwise be held outdoors.  
b. Funding Amount: approximately $10,000 
c. Estimated Timeline: anticipated completion of June 30, 2023 

2. Update, repair, and/or replace existing stage structure (see attached pictures) 
a. Benefit: This would provide a safe sturdy structure that would enhance the public’s 

experience of various arts and cultural events performed outdoors at the site. 
b. Funding Amount: approximately $7,500 
c. Estimated Timeline: anticipated completion of June 30, 2023 

3. Update, repair, and/or replace existing facility signage (see attached pictures) 
a. Benefit: This would provide fresh, attractive, directional signage for visitors and promote 

the facility to other future visitors. 
b. Funding Amount: approximately $5,000 
c. Estimated Timeline: anticipated completion of June 30, 2023 

4. Update, repair, and/or replace existing facility lighting 
a. Benefit: This would make the signage and facility more visible to visitors and travelers, 

especially during non-daylight hours. 
b. Funding Amount: approximately $7,500 
c. Estimated Timeline: anticipated completion of June 30, 2023 



Category Activity Description Timeline Funding Amount

Tourism Product 
Development

Update, repair, and/or replace 
pavilion

We will hire a contractor to assess existing pavilion 
structure and update, repair, or replace based on 
assessment.

January 2022 to July 
2022 10,000.00$             

Tourism Product 
Development

Update, repair, and/or replace  
outdoor stage

We will hire a contractor to assess existing outdoor 
stage structure and update, repair, or replace 
based on assessment.

January 2022 to July 
2022 7,500.00$               

Tourism Product 
Development

Update, repair, and/or replace 
signage

We will hire a contractor to assess existing signage 
and identify additional signage needs. Update, 
repair, or replacement will occur based on 
assessment.

January 2022 to July 
2022 5,000.00$               

Tourism Product 
Development

Update, repair, and/or replace 
lighting

We will hire a contractor to assess existing lighting 
and identify additional lighting needs. Update, 
repair, or replacement will occur based on 
assessment.

January 2022 to July 
2022 7,500.00$               

30,000.00$            

Budget Breakdown - December 14, 2022
Sussex County

Total



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda Item #2.11 
 
Subject: Rescheduling of the Board of Supervisors Regular February Meeting 
 
Board Meeting Date:   January 19 2023  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:   County Administrator Douglas is the co-chairman of the Virginia Local Government 
Management Association (VLGMA).  The VLGMA conference will be February 15th-17th.  The 
February Board meeting is February 16th.  The Deputy County Administrator will be in attendance 
as well.  Due to the conflict in schedule, County Administrator Douglas is requesting that the 
February regular Board meeting be rescheduled to Thursday, February 23rd.    
 

Recommendation:   That the Board approves rescheduling the Board’s regular meeting from 
February 16th to February 23rd. 
 
Attachment: None 
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves rescheduling the Board’s regular meeting from 
February 16th to February 23rd. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

S. White  ___ ___ 
    (Tie Breaker) 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda Item #2.12 
 
Subject: Atlantic Waste Disposal, Inc. Request for Refund 
 
Board Meeting Date:   January 19 2023  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:   Attached is request from Atlantic Waste Disposal for a refund of $380,233.13 for 
M&T taxes related to the landfill. This request is based on overpayment and error on their part, 
and these funds were not included in the FY23 revenue projections. According to the Treasurer, 
this refund will not significantly impact county revenues, and with a refund, M&T revenue will 
still exceed the budgeted amount. 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends approval. 
 
Attachment: Copy of Letter to Chair Seward from the Ms. Boone (Commissioner of the 

Revenue) of the Atlantic Waste Disposal Request Refund, Dated January 9, 2023 
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves Atlantic Waste Disposal request for refund for 
M&T taxes related to the landfill based on an overpayment and error on their part. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

S. White  ___ ___ 
    (Tie Breaker) 





BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda Item #2.13 
 
Subject: County Purchasing Card Program Policy 
 
Board Meeting Date:   January 19 2023  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:   Attached for the Board’s consideration is a purchase card policy that has been 
reviewed and discussed with the management team. This policy was based on similar policies 
from other counties with spending limits recommended by Bank of America. The use of purchase 
cards will provide flexibility for needed department purchases while providing a greater level of 
control (including restricting purchase of certain categories of purchases and easily matching 
purchases with a specific employee), and would replace county credit cards. This policy was 
recommended for approval in the review of our financial policies and operations by 
Davenport/Ann Seward and follows a test period for limited administrative functions. Please let 
me know if you have any questions. 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends approval. 
 
Attachment: Copy of the County Purchasing Card Program Policy 
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves the County Purchasing Card Program Policy. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

S. White  ___ ___ 
    (Tie Breaker) 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY OF SUSSEX 
 
 
 
 

Purchasing Card Program 

Procedures Manual & Guidelines 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

01/09/2023 



Page 2 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

DEFINITIONS / RESPONSIBILITIES ......................................................................................................... 3 

PROGRAM OVERVIEW ............................................................................................................................... 4 

CARDHOLDER GUIDELINES .................................................................................................................... 5 
REQUESTING A P-CARD ......................................................................................................................... 5 
CARD ISSUANCE/ADMINISTRATION.................................................................................................... 5 
CARD CONTROLS AND LIMITS ................................................................................................ 5 

PURCHASE GUIDELINES .......................................................................................................................... 6 
MAKING A PURCHASE...................................................................................................................... 6 
PURCHASE ORDER REQUIRED ............................................................................................................ 6 

ALLOWABLE TYPE OF EXPENSES ........................................................................................................ 7 

UNAUTHORIZED CARD USE .................................................................................................................... 7 
PURCHASE CARD VIOLATIONS ............................................................................................................ 7 
ABUSE/NEGLIGENT USE ......................................................................................................................... 7 
MISUSE OF CARD ...................................................................................................................................... 7 
REVOCATION PROCEDURE ................................................................................................................... 7 

ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS .............................................................................................................. 8 
RECONCILIATION AND PAYMENT PROCESS ................................................................................... 8 
DISPUTED TRANSACTION RESOLUTION ........................................................................................... 8 
LOST OR STOLEN CARDS ...................................................................................................................... 8 
LOST RECEIPTS .................................................................................................................................. 8 

P-C ARD ADMINISTRATIVE FORM ......................................................................................................…9 
DISPUTES .................................................................................................................................... 9 
LOST OR STOLEN P-CARD ........................................................................................................ 9 
LOST RECEIPT ............................................................................................................................ 9 

AGREEMENT TO ACCEPT P-CARD ...................................................................................................... 10 

PURCHASE CARD REQUEST FORM .................................................................................................... 11 



Page 3 

 

 

DEFINITIONS / RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Purchasing Card (P-Card) Program 
A purchasing program designed to cut costs and streamline the purchasing process by reducing paperwork 
and processing time. For purchases under $750 ($1,000 for Department Heads) on behalf of the County.  
Credit limits will be set to $10,000.  (Constitutional Officers may opt-in to this policy).   

 
P-Card 
Commercial purchasing card (charge card) that allows authorized employees to make purchases on behalf of 
the County. 

 
Works 
The Bank of America online system used for P-Card administration. 

 
Cardholder 
An employee approved to make P-Card purchases according to the guidelines established in the policy and 
procedures. The Cardholder is authorized by their Department Head. This employee has read and signed the 
“Agreement to Accept P-Card.” 

• Obtains verbal or written approval from Department Head before making a purchase 
• Accountable for all P-Card transactions 
• Verifies that purchases do not include VIRGINIA SALES TAX 
• Contacts the vendor to resolve any transaction discrepancies 
• Submits all supporting documentation (receipts, packing slips, etc.) within 24 hours to the Department 

Head 
• Responsible for the security of the card 
• Complies with the P-Card policy and procedures 
• Reports lost or stolen P-Card immediately to Bank of America and Program Administrator 
• Surrenders P-Card upon termination and reconciles charges before the final paycheck is issued 

 
 
Department Head 
Must ensure appropriations are available before approving purchases to ensure the annual budget is not 
exceeded.  May or may not be a Cardholder. Collects and reconciles P-Card receipts in Works. 
 

• Authorizes which departmental employee(s) will receive P-Card 
• Responsible for ensuring purchase orders are in place if required 
• Responsible for authorizing P-Card usage and expenditures 
• Conducts an annual review of department Cardholders and reconciles with Program Administrator 
• Collects P-Card from terminated employees and arranges for card cancellation 
• Verifies if any employee transferred into department with P-Card access should retain P-Card 

privileges or if card should be cancelled. Forwards information to Program Administrator 
• Monitors the status of the assigned Cardholder’s P-Cards 
• Responsible for collecting P-Card receipts, reviewing and/or approving posted transactions in Works 
• Reconciles the receipts to the online activity reported for each assigned Cardholder 
• Forwards the transaction report and signed original receipts to the Accounts Payable Clerk for 

processing and payment 
 
 
Program Administrator/Director of Finance 
May or may not be a Cardholder. County employee who is responsible for managing all aspects of the P-Card 
program. 
 
Accounts Payable Clerk 

• Provides training for authorized P-Card users 
• Coordinates the enrollment, changes and termination of P-Cards 
• Notifies the appropriate Department Head of unauthorized P-Card usage 



Page 4 

 

 

PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 

This program introduces a new way of purchasing through electronic invoicing and payment processing using 
Works. 

 
The program allows an authorized Cardholder to acquire materials and supplies needed to maintain the daily 
operations of the County. The objectives of the program are: 

 
1. Reduce cost of processing high volume, low dollar transactions 
2. Reduce approval processing time 
3. Reduce paperwork and documentation e.g. checks, stubs 
4. Eliminate lead time needed to purchase materials and supplies 

 
This program is NOT intended to avoid or bypass appropriate purchasing or payment procedures.  
The County’s Small Purchase Policies, as applicable, must be complied with when purchasing goods 
or services on behalf of the County.  This program is intended to enhance the existing purchasing  
process. 

 
The P-Card program is designed for purchasing materials and supplies with a single transaction limit of $750 
(temporary increases shall be approved by the County Administrator.) 

 
This program is designed to be simple and easy to use for small dollar transactions. Controls are in place to 
provide protection to the Cardholders and the County. 

 
The P-Card can be used for in-store purchases, internet, telephone or fax orders, and can be used with any 
approved vendor or supplier who accepts MasterCard. 

 
Each Cardholder is responsible for the security of the card and accountable for all transactions on 
his/her P-Card. 

1. The card is issued in the employee's name; therefore, the P-Card CAN ONLY be used by the 
Cardholder 

2. Cardholder may not use a personal rewards card of any type (e.g. frequent flyer miles, Plenti, 
Advantage, Fuel Perks, etc.) in connection with County P-Card purchases. 

 
 

THE P-CARD IS NOT TO BE USED FOR PERSONAL PURCHASES 
UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES 

 
 
As we continue to improve the way we conduct business, the use of the P-Card program will help make 
significant reductions in processing small dollar transactions. 

 
Feedback is essential to ensure the ongoing success of the program. We want to know if there are issues 
and welcome your thoughts and suggestions. 

 
If there are any questions about the program or additional information is needed, please contact the Accounts 
Payable Clerk or the Program Administrator. 



Page 5 

 

 

CARDHOLDER GUIDELINES 
 

REQUESTING A P-CARD 
The request for P-Card must be approved by the employee’s Department Head and County 
Administrator: 

A. Employee completes the Purchase Card (P-Card) Request Form (p. 11) 
B. Approved P-Card request forms are forwarded to the Program Administrator 
C. Employee attends scheduled training 
D. Employee signs the “Agreement to Accept P-Card” (p. 10) 
E. The Program Administrator issues P-Card to the employee 

 
NOTE: The employee's signature on the “Agreement to Accept P-Card” indicates an understanding 
of the program and agreement to adhere to the policies and guidelines established for the program. 

 
Although the card is issued in the employee’s name, it is the property of Bank of America. It is to be 
used for County purchases only and in accordance with these guidelines. 

 
 
CARD ISSUANCE/ADMINISTRATION 
All cards will be issued by the Program Administrator with the approval of the Department Head and the County 
Administrator.  

 
County funds are committed each time the P-Card is used. This is a responsibility that needs to be 
taken seriously. 

 
Random audits will be conducted of P-Card activity. Consequences, ranging from revocation of P- 
Card privileges to termination of employment will be invoked for improper use of the program. 

 
 
CARD CONTROLS AND LIMITS 
The P-Card program is designed to give the greatest amount of flexibility for County purchasing needs. 
Any restrictions placed on the card are designed to protect the Cardholders and the County. If a 
Cardholder attempts a purchase which exceeds the spending limit, or from a merchant outside of 
the approved merchant category codes, the transaction will be declined. This ensures the purchase 
is within controls and limits established to safeguard against improper or fraudulent use. 

 
A. The P-Card program has an established single transaction purchase limit of $750 (temporary 

increases shall be approved by the County Administrator) 
B. Cardholders shall not intentionally split a purchase that exceeds the spending limit with the intent of 

processing smaller transactions to avoid the transaction  limit 
C. County Administrator approval is required to increase a Cardholder's single transaction limit.  
D. The Program Administrator restricts items or merchants according to how each department needs 

to use the card 
E. For Unauthorized Card Use, see Page 7. 



Page 6 

 

 

PURCHASE GUIDELINES 
 

MAKING A PURCHASE 
Cardholder should confirm the vendor is entered in the County’s accounting software.  If not, cardholder should 
obtain a W-9 before purchasing good.  Cardholder should also confirm the vendor accepts MasterCard. 

 
All receipts must be signed by the Cardholder and submitted to the Level Manager for reconciliation. 

• In Store Purchases – Cardholder must sign the charge receipt and obtain a detailed receipt as 
supporting documentation 

• Internet Orders – Must be ordered through a County of Sussex network connection. Cardholder 
can ONLY make purchases from “secure sites.” DO NOT SAVE CARD NUMBER ON ANY 
WEBSITE. 

o A secure website uses https://www. The “s” means the website is secure 
o The “lock” symbol indicates the website is secure 

• Telephone Orders – Request a faxed or emailed order confirmation as your receipt. If not 
available, provide a signed written description of the item(s) ordered 

• Fax Orders – Do not fax card number. Cardholder must call and give card number over the 
phone 

 
For out of town travel, Cardholders shall submit paper receipts within 5 days. 

 
Purchases cannot include VIRGINIA SALES TAX.  If vendor requires a sales tax exemption form, contact the 
Program Administrator or Accounts Payable Clerk. 

 
The person whose name is on the P-Card is the only one authorized to use the card. This person is 
also responsible for ensuring that all charges are in compliance with these guidelines. 

 
The Cardholder is responsible for obtaining all documentation (packing slip, etc.) regardless of who receives 
the shipment. 

 
Acceptable receipt documentation includes a signed credit card slip, a sales receipt, packing slip, cash 
register tape or a combination thereof, which contains all of the following: 
• Vendor name 
• Purchase amount 
• Description of the item(s) purchased 
• Date of purchase 
• Cardholder signature 

Please take precautions to store and maintain receipts until it is time to submit them. 
 
If Cardholder cannot produce a receipt, they are required to sign and complete the Lost Receipt section of  the 
P-Card Administrative Form (p. 9.) Cardholder may be required to reimburse the County for undocumented 
purchases if subsequent review indicates the purchase was an unauthorized use. 

 
If there is a discrepancy, refer to the Disputed Transaction Resolution section of this document (p. 8.) 

Habitual failure to retain and tum in receipts will result in revocation of P-Card privileges. 

Department Heads are responsible for spending within their annual appropriation budget 
. 

 
PURCHASE ORDER REQUIRED 

• All transactions over $10,000 per the Small Purchase Policy  

http://www/


Page 7 

 

 

ALLOWABLE TYPE OF EXPENSES 
 
• Subscriptions, books, memberships 
• Office supplies 
• Computer supplies, software 
• Materials, supplies, tools 
• Education and meeting expenses (not including meals) 
• Uniforms 
• Fuel for County vehicles during travel out of town or when County fuel pumps are disabled 

 
 

UNAUTHORIZED CARD USE 
 

PURCHASE CARD VIOLATIONS 
• Cash advances 
• Personal use 
• Contractual and/or professional services, where a contract requires County Administrator approval 
• Donations to charitable organizations 
• Construction trade work 
• Electronic online auction house purchases (eBay, etc.), unless approved by the Department Head in 

advance, in writing 
• Alcoholic beverages 
• Entertainment 
• Payments to individuals and/or employees 
• Prescription drugs and controlled substances 
• Weapons and ammunition (except as approved by the Sheriff/Animal Services Director) 
• Hazardous chemicals, except as needed in the normal operations of a department 
• Gift cards 
• Travel related expenses (hotel, airfare, etc.), without an approved Pre-Travel Expense Voucher 
• Personal travel expenses (in-room movies, mini-bar, alcoholic beverages, etc.) 
• Food, unless prior approval has been obtained 
• Meals for which a per diem has been paid to the employee 
• Meal tips in excess of 20% 

 

ABUSE/NEGLIGENT USE 
• Intentionally splitting a purchase to circumvent delegated authority or transaction limit 
• Failing to maintain receipts and other documentation or approvals 
• Lack of care in protecting card information 
• Allowing others to use the card 

 

MISUSE OF CARD 
• Will result in revocation of P-Card privileges and cancellation of card 
• A Cardholder found to have fraudulently used a P-Card is personally liable for all fraudulent charges and 

is required to reimburse the County for the charges, which may be through payroll deduction 
• Cardholder may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment, and the 

matter may be referred to the Commonwealth Attorney for further action, including criminal prosecution 
• For certain types of fraudulent misuse, employment termination is mandatory and immediate 

 
REVOCATION PROCEDURE 
• Immediately notify the Program Administrator by email 
• Program Administrator will cancel the P-Card with Bank of America 
• Cardholder must surrender card to Program Administrator within 24 hours 



Page 8 

 

 

ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS 
 

RECONCILIATION AND PAYMENT PROCESS 
Record keeping is essential to ensure the success of this program: 

• Receipts must be submitted to the Department Head within 24 hours of purchase 
• Department Head reconciles receipts in Works 
• Department Head reviews, approves and signs P-Card expenses printout 
• The monthly statement billing cycle ends on the last day of every month.  Approved and signed printout 

and all receipts sent to the Accounts Payable Clerk within 7 days of receiving the monthly statement 
• All original receipts will be retained by Finance Department 
• P-Card activity can be audited at any time 
• P-Card transactions may be restricted at year-end 

 
 

DISPUTED TRANSACTION RESOLUTION 
It is the Cardholder’s responsibility to contact the vendor. If the vendor agrees an error has been made, the 
Cardholder’s account should be corrected. The Department Head and P-Card Administrator must be informed 
the transaction is being disputed as a reminder that the item is still pending resolution. Use the Disputes section 
of the P-Card Administrative Form (p. 9) to make a record of all conversations and/or correspondence. 

 

If the vendor does not agree an error has been made, contact the Program Administrator. Provide a copy of 
the completed P-Card Administrative Form noting the amount in question. Keep a copy for your records. 
Disputes should be resolved within 60 days. 

 
 

LOST OR STOLEN CARDS 
The P-Card is the property of Bank of America and should be secured the same as a personal credit card. 
If the card is lost or stolen, report it immediately to the number shown below. Written confirmation of 
cancellation must then be confirmed to the Program Administrator by completing the Lost or Stolen P- 
Card section of the P-Card Administrative Form (p. 9.) Prompt action in this situation can reduce the 
County's liability for fraudulent charges. Upon receipt of the call, the P-Card will be cancelled. Re-issuance 
of the P-Card will be coordinated through the Program Administrator. 

 
During Regular Business Hours Monday – Friday 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 
Program Administrator Kelly Moore 434.246.1006 
Back-Up Program Administrator Titiana Nicholson 434.246.1003 

   
After Business Hours Contact Immediately  
Bank of America Customer Service 800.822.5985 
Cardholder must contact the Program Administrator the next business day to report cancellation of card 

 
 

LOST RECEIPTS 
It is the responsibility of the Cardholder to request a duplicate receipt from the vendor. If unable to obtain 
a duplicate, complete the Lost Receipt section of the P-Card Administrative Form (p. 9.) 



Page 9 

 

 

 P-CARD ADMINISTRATIVE FORM  
Cardholder:   Department:     

Card No.:   Work Phone:     
 
 

Cardholder Signature Date 
 

Department Head Signature Date 
 

Forward the original form to your Level Manager. 
Email copy of signed form to:  Program Administrator: kmoore@sussexcountyva.gov 

 

  DISPUTES  

DISPUTE (check one): 
□ Credit Not Posted (attach Credit Slip) 
□ Duplicate Posting 

□ Incorrect Amount (attach Sales Receipt) 
□ Other 

 

Merchant Name:    Dollar Amount:    

Describe Dispute:    
 
 
 

  LOST OR STOLEN P-CARD  

REASON (check one): 
□ Lost card ☐ Stolen card ☐ Other 

 
Describe Situation:    

 
 
 

NOTE: Cardholder MUST contact Bank of America Customer Service to report missing P-Card. 
Phone No.: 800.316.6056 

Date card was reported to Bank of America:    

Approval for ordering replacement card:    
Department Head Signature and Date 

 
  LOST RECEIPT  
What was Purchased:    Purchase Amount:      

 
Vendor Name and Address:    

 
EXPLANATION:    

 
 

mailto:kmoore@sussexcountyva.gov


Page 10 

 

 

AGREEMENT TO ACCEPT P-CARD 
 
 
The County of Sussex Finance Department is pleased to present you with this Bank of America 
Purchasing Card (“P-Card.”) It represents your Department Head and the County's trust in you. You are 
being entrusted with a powerful and valuable tool and will be making financial commitments on behalf of the 
County. Your signature below is verification that you have read the Purchasing Card Program Procedures 
Manual & Guidelines, and agree to comply with them, as well as with the following responsibilities. You 
also acknowledge that you have received P-Card # xxxx-xxxx-xxxx---- 

1. I understand the card is for County-approved purchases only and I agree not to make any 
personal purchases with this card. 

2. I have received training and a copy of the Purchasing Card Program Procedures Manual & 
Guidelines regarding the proper usage of this card. 

3. I understand that improper use of this card is considered misappropriation of County funds and 
my card can be revoked. Improper use of this card can also result in disciplinary action, up  to 
and including termination of employment and prosecution. 

4. If the card is lost or stolen, I will immediately notify the Program Administrator or Bank of 
America P-Card Customer Service (as determined in the Manual.) If the notification is made 
directly to Bank of America Customer Service, I will confirm to the Program Administrator by 
using the P-Card Administrative Form (p. 11.) 

5. I agree to surrender the P-Card immediately upon termination of employment, whether 
voluntary or involuntary, and I understand my final paycheck will not be issued until I have 
surrendered the P-Card and all charges are reconciled. 

6. The card is issued in my name. I will not allow any other person to use the card. I am 
responsible for any and all charges billed against the card. 

7. All charges will be billed directly to and paid directly by the County. The bank cannot accept 
any money from me directly. Any unapproved charges billed on my P-Card would be 
considered misappropriation of County funds and subject me to disciplinary action, as well as 
payroll deduction for these charges. 

8. I understand I am required to comply with internal control procedures designed to protect  
County assets. This may include being asked to produce the card to validate its existence and 
account number. The County will have access to any and all records related to the use of my 
P-  Card. 

9. Since I am responsible for all charges on the P-Card, I will resolve any discrepancies by 
contacting the vendor. 

10. The charges made against my card are assigned to various General Ledger accounts as 
specified by my Department Head. 

11. When using this card, I will strive to obtain the best value for the County, and will not use any 
personal rewards card for purchases. 

12. My card may be revoked based on change of assignment or location. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Employee Signature Date Employee Printed Name 
 
 
 

Department Head Signature Date 



Page 11 

 

 

County of Sussex 
Purchase Card (P-Card) Request Form 

 
Before submitting this form, please be sure you have read and understand the Purchasing 
Card Program Procedures Manual & Guidelines. By making this request, you agree to go 
through the required training, and abide by these procedures and guidelines. Failure to follow 
the procedures and/or comply with the guidelines may result in revoking of P-Card privileges 
and potentially subject you to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 

 
Employee Name:    
(as it will appear on P-Card) 

 
Department:    

Position:    

For registration purposes:         
(Legal Name) 

 
Work Phone No.:    

Home Address:    

 

 
(You will be contacted by the Program Administrator and asked to provide a 4-digit and/or letter identifier that 
you will need to know if you have to contact Bank of America Customer Service about your card.) 

 

 
 

I have received and read the Purchasing Card Program Procedures Manual & Guidelines, including the 
Agreement to Accept P-Card. I hereby agree to comply with its terms and conditions. I understand that if this 
request is approved, my continued use of the P-Card is at the discretion of my County Administrator and 
Department Head, and also that this program can be modified or discontinued at any time. 

 
 
 

Employee’s Signature Date 
 
 
 

Department Head Signature Date 
 
 
 

County Administrator Signature Date 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda Item #2.14 
 
Subject: Victim Witness DCJS OGMS Grant Repayment - $4,357.79 
 
Board Meeting Date:   January 19 2023  
   
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   Attached for your consideration is a budget amendment that provides payment to 
the State in the amount of $4,357.79, related to a recent routine audit by the Virginia Department 
of Criminal Justice Services of the county’s Victim/Witness Assistance Program (state grant 
funded and managed by Commonwealth’s Attorney). While the audit overall was very positive, 
one finding was $4,357.79 in unallowable costs, with a requirement that these funds be paid by 
February 20th. Staff is currently working with the Commonwealth’s Attorney office to develop a 
MOA to address procurement/financial and other operational areas. 
 

Recommendation:   Staff recommends approval. 
 
Attachments: Budget Amendment Resolution #23-03K 
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves Budget Amendment #23-03K to provide payment 
to the State in the amount of $4,357.79. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

S. White  ___ ___ 
    (Tie Breaker) 



RESOLUTION #23-03K 

FY23 BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 

amendment for the Judicial Administration be and hereby is made for the period of July 1, 2022 

through June 30, 2023.  This resolution will appropriate local reserve funds to Administration to 

return to DCJS for unallowable costs per the state’s FY21 program audit.   

 

FUND # 100 

GENERAL FUND 

 

REVENUE 

 Fund 135        $4,358 

 Total Revenues      $4,358 

 

EXPENDITURE 

 Fund 100 Administration     $4,358 

 Total Expenditures      $4,358 

 

 

 

________________________ 

Susan B. Seward, Chairman 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Richard Douglas, Clerk 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

Adopted this 19th day of January, 2023. 



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Recognitions #3.01 

Subject: RESOLUTION:  Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 90th Birthday 

Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  Per Supervisor Fly’s request, the Board approved this resolution a previous Board 
meeting recognizing Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley on her 90th birthday on September 27th.  Ms. 
Seeley has spent the majority of her adult life in Sussex County.  She has been dedicated to the 
teaching of music to hundreds of children and citizens in the County.   

Supervisor Fly would like to take this opportunity to thank and recognize Mrs. Seeley for the selfless 
giving of herself to provide peace and inspiration to the children and citizens of Sussex County. 

A family member and or friend will be present to accept the resolution. 

Recommendation:     

Attachment:  A copy of the resolution celebrating Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:    None 

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY: 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

S. White ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)

Recognitions - Page 1



Resolution 

Recognizing  
Ms. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 

Now, let it be known that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors do hereby adopt this resolution 
on this Thursday, October 20, 2022 to celebrate the 90th birthday of Nan Ellen Bland Seeley who 
has brought great joy and happiness to so many youth and adults in Sussex County. 

On September 27, 1932, Nan Ellen Bland Seeley was born in Charlottesville, Virginia to Reverend 
Lineous Preston Bland Jr. and Mrs. Ethel Price Heckman Bland. Under the guidance and 
nurturing of her parents, family and friends, Nan Ellen Bland Seeley would grow in stature and 
spiritual strength in preparation for her life long mission of serving others and bringing joy to the 
world in many ways and with the many talents she was given by God.  

Furthermore, let it be known across Sussex County that Mrs. Seeley would pursue and excel in 
her educational endeavors and graduated from Longwood College in 1954, the third oldest public 
college in Virginia and would embark on a life long mission to teach music to God’s children.  

Once again God would move His mighty hand and prepare the path that would allow Mrs. Seeley 
to spend the majority of her adult life in Sussex County, making life better for each of us.  

Let it be known that on June 16, 1956 Nan Ellen Bland would marry Walter Clifton Seeley Jr. and 
out of this blessed union, Nan Ellen Bland Seeley would grow her family with the birth of three 
sons, Mark Evans Seeley, Scott Preston Seeley and Jeffrey Anderson Seeley.  

Now let it be declared that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors does hereby recognize the 
great contributions that Nan Ellen Bland Seeley has and continues to provide to the County of 
Sussex through her selfless community service and her inspiring dedication to the teaching of 
music to the children and citizens of Sussex County.  

We further recognizes that Mrs. Seeley has taught and inspired hundreds of children and adults 
to learn and discover the joy of music and to embrace the inter and outward peace that can only 
be experienced through the gift of music. In this we can truly say that Nan Ellen Bland Seeley has 
brought peace to an unsettled world fulling the promise, “blessed are the peacemakers for they 
shall be called the children of God” 

Therefore, Nan Ellen Bland Seeley, we the Board of Supervisors of Sussex County along with 
her citizens do thank God and recognize that you are a gift from Him to us and we thank you for 
the many gifts you have given to all who have lived and who will live in our great County.  

Therefore, we the Board of Supervisors of Sussex County, do put our hands to paper and order 
the clerk of this Board to spread this resolution across the minutes of this County so that all may 
know and celebrate the 90th birthday of Nan Ellen Bland Seeley. 

Recognitions - Page 2



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.02 

Subject:   Resolution:  Recognition of Mr. Charles “Dan” Hudson Retirement – Sussex Sheriff’s 
Office 

Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Staff received a request from Sheriff Giles to have the Board of Supervisors to 
recognize and adopt a resolution for Mr. Charles “Dan” Hudson—after serving 26 combined years 
in the public service sector of Law Enforcement.  

Fellow co-workers in the Sheriff’s office, the Board, County Administration and county staff 
would like to congratulate Mr. Hudson on this major accomplishment of retiring. 

Recommendation: That the Board approves and adopts the resolution honoring Mr. Charles 
“Dan” Hudson on his retirement. 

Attachment:  Copy of the Resolution #22-147 
============================================================================== 

ACTION:   That the Board approves and adopts the resolution honoring Mr. Charles “Dan” Hudson 
on his retirement. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Recognitions - Page 3



Resolution #22-147 

In Recognition of the Retirement 
Charles “Dan” Hudson 

WHEREAS, Charles “Dan” Hudson began his career in the corrections 
field prior to joining Sussex County Sheriff’s office on September 1, 1997; 
and    

WHEREAS, on June 2, 2000, Mr. Hudson resigned to work for the 
County of Surry with Sheriff Brown as a Patrol Deputy; and 

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2003, he returned to the County of 
Sussex as a Patrol Deputy until he rose through the ranks; and 

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2020, Mr. Hudson was promoted to 
Sergeant;   

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2022, Sergeant Hudson officially retired 
from the Sussex County’s Sheriff’s Office with a combined 26 years of 
service in the public service sector of Law Enforcement. 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors, by 
this recognition, hereby commend and extend our appreciation to Mr. 
Charles “Dan” Hudson on his retirement with best wishes for many happy 
and productive years in the future. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this 
Resolution be spread upon the minutes of this Board meeting this 15th day 
of January 19, 2023. 

Susan B. Seward, Chair 

 Board of Supervisors 

Recognitions - Page 4



Recognitions - Page 5



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.03 

Subject:   Recognition of Deputy Bonner for Community Assistance 

Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023 

============================================================================== 

Summary:    Chairwoman Seward will recognize Deputy Bonner for his quick response and life 
saving measures involving a resident in the Waverly area on October 11th.  A copy of an email 
sent to the County Administrator from the resident that details this medical incident and 
expresses her gratitude to Deputy Bonner and Lifestar, is attached for your review. 

Recommendation:   No action requested 

Attachment: Copy of email from resident   

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  N/A 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Recognitions - Page 6



Recognitions - Page 7



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.04 

Subject:   Recognition of Deputies for the MADD Award – Sheriff Giles 

Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023 

============================================================================== 

Summary:    Sheriff Giles will be in attendance to recognize Patrol Officer Deputy Sheriffs for 
the MADD Award. 

Recommendation:   No action requested 

Attachment:  

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  N/A 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Recognitions - Page 8



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.05 

Subject:   Airfield 4-H Conference Center Update – Millard Stith & Kathy Guindon  

Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   Mr. Millard Stith, the former interim Director of the Airfield 4-H Conference, will be 
in attendance to provide an update and to introduce Dr. Kathy Guindon, the Center Director . 

Recommendation:  N/A 

Attachment:  N/A 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  N/A  

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Recognitions - Page 9



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Public Hearing Item #4.01 

Subject:   Conditional Use Permit #2022-04, Howell Godfrey, Jr., Applicant 

Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023

============================================================================== 

Summary:    The applicant seeks a conditional use permit (CUP) to operate a public shooting 
range on approximately 20 acres of land.  The property is currently owned by the Town of 
Waverly and is the site of the former Waverly airport. 

Recommendation:  The Planning Commission held a public on the application on November 7, 
2022 and recommended approval contingent upon the recommended conditions.  

Attachments:  See attached staff report and application documents. 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:     

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Public Hearing Item - Page 1



Public Hearing Item - Page 2



Public Hearing Item - Page 3



Public Hearing Item - Page 4



Public Hearing Item - Page 5



Public Hearing Item - Page 6



Public Hearing Item - Page 7



Public Hearing Item - Page 8



Public Hearing Item - Page 9



Public Hearing Item - Page 10



Public Hearing Item - Page 11



Public Hearing Item - Page 12



Public Hearing Item - Page 13



Public Hearing Item - Page 14



Public Hearing Item - Page 15



Public Hearing Item - Page 16



Public Hearing Item - Page 17



Public Hearing Item - Page 18



Public Hearing Item - Page 19



Public Hearing Item - Page 20



Public Hearing Item - Page 21



Public Hearing Item - Page 22



Public Hearing Item - Page 23



Public Hearing Item - Page 24



Public Hearing Item - Page 25



Last Edited: 17-Oct-22  Edition 3 

THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR 
SHOOTING RANGE 

 
 
 
 

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE 
 

 

 
THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION 

DBA: THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE 
ADDRESS: 4401 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 23890 

PHONE: (757) 945-6285 
EMAIL: blackwater.osr@gmail.com 

https://www.facebook.com/BOSR460 
 

Chief Range Safety Officer: Breyona Dandridge 

 
DEDICATED TO THE PROMOTION OF SAFETY SPORTSMANSHIP AND 

MARKSMANSHIP

Public Hearing Item - Page 26



Page 2 of 59 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CHAPTER 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION ........................................................................................... 5 
A. Preamble ............................................................................................................................................................... 5 
B. Organizational Chart ............................................................................................................................................. 6 

CHAPTER 2: SAFETY PLAN ....................................................................................................................... 7 
A. Safety Planning ...................................................................................................................................................... 7 
B. Planning for Safety ................................................................................................................................................ 7 
C. The Safety Plan ...................................................................................................................................................... 8 
D. Perimeter Gates, Fencing, and Signs ..................................................................................................................... 9 
E. Firearms Check ...................................................................................................................................................... 9 
F. Ammunition Check ................................................................................................................................................ 9 
G. Safety Plan Reference ......................................................................................................................................... 10 

CHAPTER 3: RANGE OPERATIONS ...................................................................................................... 12 
A. Purpose ............................................................................................................................................................... 12 
B. General ................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

Definitions ............................................................................................................................................................... 12 
C. Facilities for Use .................................................................................................................................................. 13 
D. Range Use Requirements .................................................................................................................................... 13 

Restrictions .............................................................................................................................................................. 13 
E. Allowable Firearms .............................................................................................................................................. 14 
F. Range Safety Officers ........................................................................................................................................... 14 
G. Range Rules ......................................................................................................................................................... 15 

Liability Waiver and Age Restrictions ....................................................................................................................... 15 
H. Range Training Requirements .............................................................................................................................. 15 
I. General Range Rules ............................................................................................................................................ 15 
J. Hours of Operation .............................................................................................................................................. 16 
K. Staff Meetings ..................................................................................................................................................... 16 
L. Alcohol/ Drug Policy ............................................................................................................................................ 17 
M. Personnel Responsibilities ....................................................................................................................................... 17 

Manager .................................................................................................................................................................. 17 
Range Safety Officers ............................................................................................................................................... 17 
Instructors................................................................................................................................................................ 18 
Customer ................................................................................................................................................................. 18 

N. Medical Support .................................................................................................................................................. 19 
O. Hold Harmless Agreement Form ......................................................................................................................... 19 
P. Wavier and Release from Liability Agreement Form ........................................................................................... 19 
Q. Range Use Agreement Form ................................................................................................................................ 19 
R. Range Safety ........................................................................................................................................................ 19 

Range Commands .................................................................................................................................................... 19 
S. Firearms Carry & Handling ................................................................................................................................... 21 
T. Cease Fire Procedure ........................................................................................................................................... 22 
U. Firing Line Rules ................................................................................................................................................... 22 
V. Range Rules Specific to Black Powder Firearms ................................................................................................... 23 
W. NRA Hygiene Guidelines .................................................................................................................................. 24 
X. Emergencies and Incident Reporting ................................................................................................................... 24 

Public Hearing Item - Page 27



Page 3 of 59  

Y. First Aid Procedures ............................................................................................................................................. 24 
Z. Personal Protective Equipment ........................................................................................................................... 24 
AA. Procedure for Cleaning Surfaces Contaminated with Biohazardous Material ................................................ 25 
BB. Facility Operating Procedures ......................................................................................................................... 25 

Main Building - Opening Procedure .......................................................................................................................... 25 
Store/Building - Closing Procedure .......................................................................................................................... 26 
Range - Opening Procedure ..................................................................................................................................... 26 

CC. Range - Operating Procedure .......................................................................................................................... 27 
Making the Line Hot ................................................................................................................................................. 28 
Making the Line Safe ................................................................................................................................................ 28 
Range - Closing Procedure........................................................................................................................................ 29 

APPENDIXES .............................................................................................................................................. 31 
APPENDIX 1: Facilities Use Agreement ......................................................................................................................... 32 
User’s Obligations......................................................................................................................................................... 34 
APPENDIX 2: Safety Incident Report ............................................................................................................................. 37 
APPENDIX 3: Eye Witness Form ................................................................................................................................... 39 
APPENDIX 4: Replacement and Repair Costs ............................................................................................................... 41 
APPENDIX 5: Emergency Report Sheet ........................................................................................................................ 42 

EMERGENCY COMMUNCATIONS ............................................................................................................................. 42 
IMMEDIATE RESPONES FOR INJURIES OR ILLNESS .................................................................................................. 42 
COORDINATION ....................................................................................................................................................... 44 
HELICOPTER MEDICAL EVACUATION (MEDEVAC) ................................................................................................... 44 
RANGE EMERGENCY RESPONSE PACKET ................................................................................................................. 44 

APPENDIX 6: Range Use Agreement ............................................................................................................................ 45 
APPENDIX 7: Waiver and Release from Liability Agreement ....................................................................................... 47 
APPENDIX 8: Release, Wavier, Indemnification, Hold Harmless, and Assumption of Risk Agreement ....................... 49 
APPENDIX 9: Range Inspection Checklist ..................................................................................................................... 50 
APPENDIX 10: Range Safety Brief ................................................................................................................................. 51 

A. Purpose of The Shooting Event ....................................................................................................................... 51 
B. Range Layout and Limits ................................................................................................................................. 51 
C. Range Safety Rules .......................................................................................................................................... 51 
D. FIRING LINE COMMANDS ................................................................................................................................ 54 
E. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES ............................................................................................................................. 55 

APPENDIX 11: Fence Patrol Log ................................................................................................................................... 56 
APPENDIX 12: Range Layout ........................................................................................................................................ 57 

Site Layout ............................................................................................................................................................... 57 
Rifle Range ............................................................................................................................................................... 58 
Handgun/ Shotgun Range ........................................................................................................................................ 59 

Public Hearing Item - Page 28



Page 4 of 59  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY 
BLANK 

Public Hearing Item - Page 29



Page 5 of 59  

CHAPTER 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

A. Preamble 
 
This procedure outlines the rules and regulations governing the use of the outdoor gun range located 
at the BOSR facility with the physical address of 4392 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 23890.  
While shooting incidents are rare on ranges, the following range rules and regulations are 
established to ensure safety and discipline for individuals using the range as well as the safety for 
our neighbors and surrounding properties.  

Public Hearing Item - Page 30



Page 6 of 59  

B. Organizational Chart 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Public Hearing Item - Page 31



Page 7 of 59  

CHAPTER 2: SAFETY PLAN 
 

A. Safety Planning 
 
The expression “safety is no accident” implies the necessity of planning. During weekly range 
operating personnel staff meetings, safety shall be the first order of business. Observations made 
during the preceding week shall be discussed and suggestions made to correct or improve 
effectiveness will be evaluated. A written record shall be maintained of suggestions that are adopted 
for inclusion in the next revision of this Safety Plan. This plan is a living document, that will be 
continually evolving, undergoing constant change as safety procedures are enhanced. 
 
This document has been printed and distributed to all range personnel and members, plus notices 
shall be made both verbally and in writing that copies are available for public review and for purchase 
at a nominal fee. The annual review date for this document is January 15, at which time this 
document will be formally reviewed, modified and updated with, if necessary, with revisions formally 
approved by the Board of Directors. 
 
ALWAYS POINT FIREARMS IN A SAFE DIRECTION 
 
The SAFE direction on this facility is straight down when approaching or departing a range. The SAFE 
direction when on a range is downrange. As this facility is surrounded by populated areas, an 
unintentional discharge, if carrying the firearm with the muzzle pointed upward, could result in 
property damage or personal injury. 
 

B. Planning for Safety 
 
All elements of a safety plan must fit into an integrated package. Safety is a function of what is best 
described as "the Four E's": which include evaluation, engineering, education, and enforcement. 

 
Another purpose of this plan is to continually evaluate the needs of range operating personnel, 
members and general public shooters as it relates to existing and planned use of the facility (desired 
activities and procedures). Safety rules will vary somewhat with each activity, i.e., rifle, pistol, trap, 
skeet, sporting clays, and then there are more subtle differences as it pertains to rim-fire and center-
fire firearms. 

 
Since there will be a variety of live-fire activities conducted at this facility, each one must be 
evaluated as it relates to the overall operation.  The primary reason for this constant vigilance and 
planning is based on design criteria. For example, a smallbore rifle range used for high power rifle, 
may defeat the original design criteria and would likely result in damage to the range, and possibly 
create a safety hazard involving projectile escapement.  Hence, it is necessary to engineer (construct 
or modify) the range(s) lo accommodate a particular live-fire activity. The use of a range facility 
outside its original design limits, violates acceptable 
engineering practices and breeches the basic concept of this safety plan.  Range operating personnel 
must be constantly vigilant to ensure that firearms and ammunition calibers used on a particular 
range are authorized.  (See Ammunition Check Section for a notation of authorized firearms/calibers).  
While it is a good practice to engineer a range to accommodate multiple shooting activities, each 
must be evaluated against engineering concepts to ensure the activity IS acceptable for a particular 

Public Hearing Item - Page 32



Page 8 of 59  

range. 
 

With the engineering phase complete, education of both range operating personnel and members, 
general public shooters or customers is the next step.  Training focuses on special criteria to help 
range operating personnel become proficient in spotting potential hazards and take timely corrective 
action. During live-firing activities, education and training are constant and ongoing. 

 
All range operating personnel will be trained in the teaching methods of basic marksmanship in rifle, 
pistol, and shotgun as currently prescribed by the National Rifle Association of America's Basic 
Firearms Education Courses.   Training shall include periods of instruction designed to qualify range 
personnel as Range safety officers and Safety officers. This training will be designed to enhance safety 
and reduce risks. Such training also provides greater opportunity for beginning shooters to obtain 
additional instruction on the basic elements of safety and marksmanship. 

 
The safety of range operating personnel, members and the general public or customers is primary 
and the reasoning behind the aforementioned training programs.  Those persons using this facility 
expect to have an enjoyable and safe experience.  It will be our goal to ensure that will be the case. 
 
Safety rules and emergency procedures shall be written and prominently posted about the facility, to 
include the final part of the four E's, enforcement. 

 
Enforcement procedures constitute actions taken to correct errant behavior and shall become an 
important part of the safely plan.  All range operating personnel, members and the general public or 
customers shall be notified of penalties that may be imposed for violating established operating and 
safety rules and regulations. 

 
Enforcement includes two types of control: Passive: meaning single shooter no supervision; or Active: 
meaning either a range safety officer is in charge or any customer of instructors are on hand to 
maintain close supervision. Passive control is practiced more frequently on ranges where individual 
members, qualified to do so, are allowed individual unsupervised access. At this facility unsupervised 
access will only be approved by the Board of Directors, once the individual concerned has 
demonstrated the desired level of competency, and will be considered an exception rather than the 
rule. Individuals receiving this privilege will be carefully instructed and evaluated. Those individuals 
receiving this approval will be maintained in a separate log signed personally by the facility manager. 
Even with this privilege, a second competent individual must accompany the person that will be 
shooting to be available to make a call for assistance if it should become necessary. 

 
For all public shooting and basic firearms education exercises, active control shall be required and will 
be implemented on this facility. 

 
C. The Safety Plan 
 

The facilities provided are available to club members, organizations, and the general public. The 
general public shooters will normally be limited to those facilities designated for use by the public. An 
assigned range safety officer will always be required for any general public activities. Access on to the 
ranges shall be through the main office or other points so designated 
on or within the facility. 

 

Public Hearing Item - Page 33



Page 9 of 59  

D. Perimeter Gates, Fencing, and Signs 
 

Weekly, the facility manager will cause a physical check of the perimeter fence, gates and signs.  An 
assigned range volunteer or employee of the range will physically patrol the fence to ensure the 
fence is intact and the signs on the fence are current and legible.  A report of the results of the check 
will be made to the facility manager and the facility manager will record the results of the patrol in 
the appropriate log.  Once per quarter, minimum, the facility manager will accompany the individual 
making the fence patrol.  (See Appendix 10 for sample log to record the results of the patrols.) 

 
A pathway to accomplish this patrol will be cleared just inside the fence wide enough to 
accommodate a vehicle. The path for the vehicle is necessary not only to accomplish the patrol, but 
to effect repairs. 

 
The timing of the patrols will be varied as to the time of day and the day of the week. Patrols may be 
made more often if deemed appropriate by the facility manager. The fence patrols will be made only 
during times that the range is in a non-firing status. 

 
Reports indicating a break in the fence or the loss or destruction of signs on the fence will be repaired 
within two working days. Spare wire and signs will be maintained for this purpose. 

 
It is recommended the individual making this patrol carry a "point-and-shoot” or digital camera 
capable of taking medium range telephoto photographs. Anyone observed in or around the property 
or the fence giving the appearance of causing or doing damage to the fence shall be photographed.  
The photographs will be released to the local law enforcement agency having jurisdiction to 
investigate the trespass or of the damage to the property; i.e., the fence or the signs on the fence. 

 
E. Firearms Check 
 

All firearms shall be visually checked by either a safety officer or range safety officer, as appropriate, 
prior to their use. This activity involves the observation of the members or general public customers 
as they arrive at the field or range to ensure that firearm actions are open and said firearm is not 
loaded.  Signs shall inform visitors to the range, that firearms must be unloaded prior to entry into 
the parking lot. Further, that all firearm actions must be open prior to removal from the conveyance 
in which they were transported to the range. Cased firearms may remain cased until they are taken 
to the field or range firing line.  Upon taking their place on a range firing line within the facility, their 
firearms will be visually checked by a range safety officer as it is uncased (or carried) and set into a 
gun rack, or carried onto a field, or up to a firing point. Prior to removing a firearm form the case in 
which it is carried to the range, the action will be opened. 
 

F. Ammunition Check 
 

Range safety officers (rifle and handgun) will check the ammunition intended to be used by the 
customer to verify it is a gauge or caliber that has been approved for use on that field or range and 
that the ammunition is the proper gauge or caliber for the firearm to be used. No Armor Piercing, 
Incendiary, or Tracer Ammunition may be fired on these ranges: 
 

a. Handgun/ Shotgun Range 

Public Hearing Item - Page 34



Page 10 of 59  

i. All currently recognized handgun ammunition, .22 cal. LR rimfire through .45 Government 
calibers may be used. 

ii. Many rifle cartridges have been adapted to handgun use; i.e., in the Thompson Center 
Contender and the Remington XP100, etc. these firearms are also permitted to be used on 
this range. 

iii. Rifles firing the .22 cal LR rimfire and the .22 cal Winchester Rimfire Magnum cartridges 
may also be fired on this range. 

iv. In all cases, range safety officers will have the authority to stop anyone from firing any 
caliber when the shooter demonstrates insufficient skill or control of the firearm where the 
fired bullets are not striking on or near the target and may cause damage to the range 
equipment or barriers. 

v. Members and general public customers that are required to stop firing, as cited above, will 
be encouraged to use a substantially smaller caliber until they demonstrate a sufficient 
level of skill where they can return to the larger caliber. 

 
b. Rifle Range 

i. All currently recognized rifle ammunition, up to .308 caliber may be used. 
ii. In all cases, range safety officers will have the authority to stop anyone from firing any 

caliber when the shooter demonstrates insufficient skill or control of the firearm where the 
fired bullets are not striking on or near the target and may cause damage to the range 
equipment or barriers. 

iii. Members and general public customers that are required to stop firing, as cited above, will 
be encouraged to use a substantially smaller caliber until they demonstrate a sufficient 
level of skill where they can return to the larger caliber. 

 
G. Safety Plan Reference 

 
All range management and operating personnel shall be required to reference this safety plan during 
the planning phase of any modifications to existing ranges, prior to effecting any new installations, or 
the construction and use of any existing facility or any use of any range or field, that ensures such use 
would not be outside current design specifications. 
 
Any revisions made to this document shall include a record of when and by whom said revisions were 
made and accompanied by signatures of the Board of Directors and corporate officers approving 
same. 
 
All revisions shall stipulate which portions are superseded and/ or replaced and all previous copies 
distributed shall be destroyed and. Or public notice given to those possessing same to destroy 
outdated material. The review date for this document is                                                          , 
And thereafter on January 15 of each succeeding year. Updated copies of this document will then be 
ready right after the first of March following the annual review. 
 
Any exceptions to the rules or regulations as defined herein shall be noted and advisory bulletins 
issued to specify the duration of such exceptions and the implications, if any. Exceptions may be 
found after each rule to which a specific exception might apply. For example, alcoholic beverages 
may be consumed on the premises during parties and award presentations so long as all ranges are 
closed and all firearms are secured. (if this provision were to be considered, it is obvious that strict 
and positive controls must be imposed.) 

Public Hearing Item - Page 35



Page 11 of 59  

 
The consequence of a person’s failure to comply with the provisions of this safety plan may result in 
additional instruction, a warning, the suspension of range privileges for a specified period of time, 
permanent suspension of range privileges or legal action. If range operating personnel or an 
employee is involved in inappropriate behavior, disciplinary actions may warrant verbal and/ or 
written warnings, and/ or dismissal. A notation of said disciplinary actions, if any, shall become a part 
of the range operating personnel or employee’s personnel record. 
 
 
  

Public Hearing Item - Page 36



Page 12 of 59  

CHAPTER 3: RANGE OPERATIONS 
 

A. Purpose 
 
This procedure outlines the rules and regulations governing the use of the outdoor gun range located 
at the BOSR facility with the physical address of .  
While shooting incidents are rare on ranges, the following range rules and regulations are 
established to ensure safety and discipline for individuals using the range as well as the safety for 
our neighbors and surrounding properties. 
 

B. General 
 
Live fire conducted at the range is designed to provide authorized personnel access to a facility where 
they can become proficient with firearms and practice both individual and group shooting sports. 
 
Individuals using the range shall become familiar with these safety rules and procedures prior to 
using the range. The range safety rules and procedures help to provide range supervision and allow 
for enforcement of these rules to reduce or eliminate incidents from occurring. 
 
All users are required to abide by and enforce these rules. All users are expected to politely point out 
to any user in violation of these rules, the nature of the violation, request they stop and if continued 
violation occurs, report the incident along with the violators name, if possible, to the Range safety 
officer on duty or the Surry County Sherriff's Department for further action. 
 

Definitions 
Approved Firing:  deliberate, controlled and aimed fire, which results in every shot hitting the impact 
berm. 
 
Firing Line: that part of the range where shooting benches are placed designated as a Live Fire 
Activities area. 
 
Live Fire Activities:  an activity that involves the firing of a gun. Individuals involved in a live fire 
activity include the shooter, Range safety officer, and supporting personnel such as score keepers, 
timers, and other individuals participating in a shooting activity on a Hot Range. 
 
Range safety officer: an employee or designee of BOSR that is charged with monitoring and 
enforcing all rules outlined in this SOP as they pertain to the outdoor range use. 
 

Rapid Firing:  firing more than two shots in a one second period. 
 
Uncontrolled Firing: firing from the hip, firing a rifle/carbine/shotgun without the butt of the stock 
against the shooter's shoulder, or any other type of firing in which the firearm is not aimed by having 
the shooter's eye aligned with the firearm sights and the sights aligned with an approved target. 
 
Cease Fire:  shooters stop shooting, firearms are cleared of all ammunition and placed on shooting 
bench with actions open and muzzle pointed down range. 
 

Public Hearing Item - Page 37



Page 13 of 59  

Hot Range: no Cease Fire is in effect; guns may be handled and fired. 
 
Cease Fire Range: Cease Fire is in effect, stay away from shooting benches and NO HANDLING 
FIREARMS. 
 

C. Facilities for Use 
 
Live-fire shooting is normally limited to the following ranges and equipment: 

1. Handgun/ Shotgun Range: Handguns up to .45 caliber and shotguns any gauge. (No magnum, tracer 
or armor-piercing ammunition) 

2. Rifle Range: Rifles smaller than .50 caliber centerfire. (No tracer or armor-piercing ammunition) 
 

D. Range Use Requirements 
 
The use of the BOSR outdoor gun range is covered by these Standard Operating Procedures (SOP's). 
These SOPs define what every person engaged in live-fire activities must know prior to being 
permitted to use the outdoor range facility.  These SOPs define what every member and public 
participant must know to utilize the BOSR outdoor range. These SOPs are available from the BOSR 
office and websitehttps://www.facebook.com/BOSR460. 
 
Restrictions 
The following are strictly prohibited on BOSR property: 

1. ALL CELL PHONES SILENT. To be courteous to all shooters concentrating on hitting their 
target on the range, all cell phones are to be placed on silent. 

2. No shooting at wildlife. 
3. No shooting cross-range. 
4. Shooters may not consume alcoholic beverages or drugs (including prescription and over-

the-counter medications) that will affect his or her ability to participate with a maximum 
state of awareness and in a completely safe manner, before or during live fire activities. The 
Range safety officer will deny range access to anyone that is or appears to be in violation. 

5. 50 BMG CALIBER FIREARMS ARE PROHIBITED  
6. FIRING OF ARMOR-PIERCING OR TRACER AMMUNITION IS PROHIBITED. Armor 

piercing ammunition means a projectile or projectile core which may be used in a 
firearm and which is constructed entirely, excluding the presence of traces of other 
substances, of tungsten alloys, steel, iron, brass, bronze, beryllium copper, or a 
combination of tungsten alloys, steel, iron, brass, bronze, or beryllium copper. 

7. No bullet impacts off the range, into buildings, signs, storage containers, sheds, or any 
other structure or range feature not a BOSR approved impact area. 

8. No repeated misses of the target board, or bullet strikes that ricochet causing a danger of 
bullets leaving the range. 

9. No disruptive activities, such as loud music or children that are not supervised properly on 
the firing line. 

10. No loaded firearms are allowed on the BOSR property other than on the Firing Line 
under a Hot Range condition 

a. Exceptions to this are for BOSR employees, BOSR members and customers who 
are properly licensed Virginia Carry & Conceal Licensed individuals, and Law 
Enforcement personnel. 

 

Public Hearing Item - Page 38



Page 14 of 59  

E. Allowable Firearms 
 

1. Handguns up to 45 Long Colt do not need to be checked in with the Range safety 
officer on duty. 

2. Handguns with a caliber of .45 and larger along with AK and AR style pistols must be 
checked in with the Range safety officer on duty. 

3. Rifles (shoulder fired) - all calibers with the exception of those identified in the 
"Restrictions" section above. 

4. Muzzle loaders - all types. Those individuals shooting muzzle loaders must check in with the 
RSO for bench assignments so as to not interfere with other shooters with the smoke 
discharge when firing. 

5. Shotguns - all types. 
 

F. Range Safety Officers 
 
All RSO on duty are required to have taken the NRA Range safety officer training and possess a 
certificate identifying them as an NRA certified RSO. 
 
Range Safety Officers (RSO) are required as part of open shooting at the outdoor range. Everyone 
using the BOSR range must first watch the safety video and receive a validated video card to be 
used as a challenge system by the RSO before anyone can start a live fire scenario.  A designated 
RSO will be in charge of the firing line(s) and range at all times. 
 
The RSO on duty is tasked with: 

• Ensuring that all BOSR members, guests, and customers adhere to the rules and SOPs in this 
document. 

• Stopping and addressing any and all unsafe behavior. The RSO will address an individual to 
inform and point out all unsafe behavior and ensure that they are aware of any safety 
concerns.  The RSO may call a "Cease Fire" and address the entire line at his/her discretion. 

• Escorting anyone (to include members) off the range if the person(s) is deemed a safety 
risk to others on the range. 

• Require anyone shooting on the range be given additional training before being allowed to 
shoot on the range again. 

• Reporting to BOSR management any incidents on the range to include: 
o Accidental discharges 
o Personal injuries such as slide bites, forehead scope hits, and etc. that draw blood 
o Trespassers - to include wildlife, pets, and unauthorized people 
o Any other incidents deemed reportable 

Public Hearing Item - Page 39



Page 15 of 59  

G. Range Rules 
 
The rules for using the range are outlined as follows, along with noting any unique rules. 
 
Liability Waiver and Age Restrictions 
 
All users of the BOSR range must fill out and sign a liability waiver on each day that they use the range.  
Members must have a current and signed liability waiver on file before using the range. 
• Individuals under age 18 are prohibited from entering all range facilities. 
• Individuals ages 18 - 20 will be permitted to use the range for shotguns or rifles only if not 

accompanied by an adult 21 or older. 
• BOSR rules on age and gun possession are in line with federal and state laws. 
• Individuals under the age of 21 who possess a handgun will not be allowed on the range and will be 

asked to leave the property unless accompanied by someone 21 or older. 
 

H. Range Training Requirements 
 
All potential users of the BOSR range must complete a range orientation.  The orientation may be one 
or any combination of a safety video, in-person briefing, and formal classroom training. The amount 
of training will be determined by the BOSR management and/or RSO on duty. 
 
Each potential user of the BOSR range will be given a card indicating that they have seen the required 
safety video which is endorsement for use of the range. Members will only be issued their membership 
card upon completion of watching the required safety video. 
 
NOTE: The RSO on duty is tasked with the authority to require anyone shooting on the range be given 
additional training before being allowed to shoot on the range again and revoking their range use 
endorsement card. 
 

I. General Range Rules 
 

1. Everyone is required to adhere to the written Range Safety Operating Procedures (SOP). 
2. All scheduled event use of the range shall take precedence over any individual or personal 

activity - NO EXCEPTIONS. 
3. All vehicles shall be parked in the designated parking area, unless authorized by the BOSR 

management. 
4. Range is to be used as posted, or as directed by the RSO on duty. 
5. BOSR members must sign in at the desk prior to using the range and must have their 

membership card in their possession in order to receive discounts & benefits. 

6. All patrons must sign in at the desk, and pay for their range use, targets, ammunition, and any other 
consumables that they may need on the range, as a receipt is necessary to show the RSO on duty in 
order to get an assigned bench. Signing in at the desk prior to using the range also allows for any 
updates on special activities that may need to be made known to everyone. 

7. Targets may be purchased in the store. Personal targets may be used if they meet the 
requirements of BOSR. Plastic bottles, glass targets, tin or aluminum cans, explosive targets, and 
any other exotic items may not be used as targets at any time without the permission of the BOSR 
management and then only in a closed range or shoot/match scenario.  Each shooter on the 

Public Hearing Item - Page 40



Page 16 of 59  

range must clean up their bench and targets down range prior to leaving - this will be enforced 
by the RSO on duty. 

8. Exercise caution not to accidentally discharge guns in the direction of range property, range 
signs, and stationary furniture. 

9. All shooting can only be done from the firing line. 
10. Offhand, sitting, and prone shooting of center fire rifles is only allowed by 

allocated bench positions assigned or observed by the RSO. 
11. If your rounds are not going to hit solidly in the berm - DO NOT FIRE! 
12. Police up your brass and spent caps when finished shooting.  All targets are to be removed 

from down range when finished shooting - but only during an RSO called "Cease Fire". 
13. All shooters and spectators on the firing lines and staging areas must wear ear and eye 

protection. Safety ear and eyewear is available for rent in at the desk. 
14. As part of the range safety procedures, all safety rules will be followed. 
15. Vaping is prohibited on the range. 
16. ALL firearms must be unloaded, cased, or actions open when taken to and from the firing line. 
17. Inexperienced shooters are to advise the RSO if assistance is needed. 
18. When a "Cease Fire" is called by an RSO, stop all shooting and wait for instruction from the RSO. 
19. NO firearms are to be handled or moved until the RSO gives a Hot Range command. All firearms 

in need of cleaning or repair during a "Cease Fire" must move to a designated repair area as 
identified by the RSO. 

20. Firing in a careless manner will not be tolerated. Shoot at your target only. Do not shoot at any 
elevation that will allow a bullet to travel over the backstop berm.  Any bullet strikes to facility 
equipment, structures, or the like other than a designated target carry a fine/fee to cover costs of 
replacement and/or repairs. Those individuals firing in a careless manner will be dismissed from 
the range for the rest of the day.  A Safety Incident Report will be filled out by the RSO and will be 
reported via radio to the staff & desk clerk for collection of fees. See "Replacement and Repair 
Costs" chart at the end of this document to be used by the RSO to determine fines/fees to be 
assessed. 

21. NO open carry of a loaded firearm on your person is allowed. The RSO and staff along 
with Law Enforcement personnel are the exception. 

22. RSO commands and range rules must be accepted at this range.  Challenge to any rule or RSO 
command may be made in writing or in person to the BOSR management. 

23. Any adult supervising a child will not be allowed to shoot on the range leaving the child 
unsupervised. 

24. The minimum age to shoot on the range by one's self is 18 for rifle/shotgun and 21 for handgun. 
25. The RSO on duty will be equipped with first aid supplies, basic tools, and radio for 

communications with other RSO and staff. 
26. Keep your area used clean - the RSO will enforce this. Please respect the equipment and clean up 

your area when you are through shooting. If you move something, PUT IT BACK.  If you break 
something, REPORT IT so it can be repaired for future use.  If you make a mess - CLEAN IT UP. 

 
J. Hours of Operation 

 
Monday – Tuesday: CLOSED 
Wednesday – Thursday: 10AM – 6PM, or dark, whichever comes first 
Friday – Saturday: 9AM – 6PM, or dark, whichever comes first  
 

K. Staff Meetings 

Public Hearing Item - Page 41



Page 17 of 59  

 
All staff and employees will attend the weekly staff meeting either in-person or via virtual access, such as 
Zoom. Meetings and schedules for the next 30 days will be posted by the manager by the 15th of the 
current month. 
 

L. Alcohol/ Drug Policy 
 
Shooters may not consume alcoholic beverages or drugs (including prescription and over-the-counter 
medications) that will affect his or her ability to participate with a maximum state of awareness and in a 
completely safe manner, before or during live fire activities. The Range safety officer will deny range 
access to anyone that is or appears to be in violation. 
 
M. Personnel Responsibilities 
 
Manager 

1. Maintain all range facilities. 
2. Ensure RSOs receive written range schedules no later than Thursday for the following week. 

Schedules should include matches, recreational fire, and any special instructions. 
3. Conduct CRSO and RSO training as needed using the NRA Range Safety Officer Training Program. 
4. Ensure proper range flags are displayed as required. Raise and lower range flags pre and post range 

operations. 
 
Range Safety Officers 
The manager must first approve anyone desiring to become an RSO. RSO status is accomplished by 
attending an RSP class given by an NRA certified instructor. Information on dates and times for these 
classes can be obtained via https://rso.nra.org/ 
 

1. Check in with the manager a half-hour prior to the first scheduled live fire. 
2. Present membership identification card with RSO stamp. 
3. Obtain the following: 
a. Wavier and Release from Liability agreement forms 
b. Range Use agreement forms 
c. Radio 
d. First-aid kit 
e. Range binder 
f. Flags 
g. Any special instructions 
4. Test the radio to ensure it works correctly. 
5. Conduct range inspection using the appropriate range checklist. Handgun/ shotgun range, Rifle 

range (Appendix 8) 
6. Check that all shooters have current receipts and/ or membership cards, and that all shooter and 

visitors fill out wavier and release from liability and range use agreements. Ensure at least two 
individuals (RSO + one) are on the range at all times. 

7. Conduct range safety briefing. (Appendix 9) 
8. Request permission to conduct live fire from the manger. 
9. Conduct live fire in accordance with the General Rules of this chapter. Failure of shooters to abide 

by the procedures listed in this chapter will result in immediate eviction from the range and 
possible suspension of future shooting privileges. Report all incidents to the manager. 

Public Hearing Item - Page 42

https://rso.nra.org/


Page 18 of 59  

10. Announce “Change in status in   minutes before calling the range cold. (Normally 10 minutes) 
11. Notify the manager by radio when live fire is finished and request a range inspection. 
12. Turn in all gear. 

 
Instructors 
The manager must first approve anyone desiring to become an instructor. All instructors must be RSO 
certified, instructor certified, certified in the course to be instructed, and certified on the firearm(s) to be 
utilized during instruction. 
 

1. Check in with the manager a half-hour prior to the first scheduled course. 
2. Present membership identification card with RSO stamp. 
3. Obtain the following: 
a. Wavier and Release from Liability agreement forms 
b. Range Use agreement forms 
c. “Hold Harmless” agreement forms 
d. Radio 
e. First-aid kit 
f. Range binder 
g. Flags 
h. Any other needed instructional materials 
4. Test the radio to ensure it works correctly. 
5. Conduct range inspection using the appropriate range checklist. Handgun/ shotgun range, Rifle 

range (Appendix 8) 
6. Check that all shooters have current receipts and/ or membership cards, and that all shooter and 

visitors fill out wavier and release from liability, range use, and “hold harmless” agreements. Ensure 
at least two individuals (RSO + one) are on the range at all times. 

7. Conduct range safety briefing. (Appendix 9) 
8. Request permission to conduct live fire from the manger. 
9. Conduct live fire in accordance with the General Rules of this chapter. Failure of shooters to abide 

by the procedures listed in this chapter will result in immediate eviction from the range and 
possible suspension of future shooting privileges. Report all incidents to the manager. 

10. Notify the manager by radio when live fire is finished and request a range inspection. 
11. Turn in all gear. 

 
Customer 

1. All shooters must check in with the designated RSO in the scheduled range. 
2. All shooters and spectators must fill out a wavier and release from liability and range use agreements. 
3. All shooters attending instructional courses at the range complex must fill out a “hold harmless” 

agreement. 
4. Shooters will conduct themselves in an orderly manner at all times and will be responsible for the 

conduct of any guests they bring. 
5. All shooters are responsible for their guns and ammunition while on the complex. 
6. Guns that are out of the case and not being fired must be benched. (Actions open and facing up, 

chambers empty, muzzles pointing downrange, and safeties on.) 
7. Only load guns on the firing line after the RSO has given the command to load. 
8. Do not point guns at anything other than authorized targets. 
9. Fire only at your own target. 
10. Give the command “Cease firing” if an unsafe condition exists. 
11. Follow all instructions from the RSO. 

Public Hearing Item - Page 43



Page 19 of 59  

12. Assist in policing the area of brass and any other debris. 
13. No pets are allowed on the range complex. 

 
N. Medical Support 

 
In the event of a medical emergency, call 911 and notify the staff immediately. 
 

O. Hold Harmless Agreement Form 
 
A “hold harmless” agreement form will be completed annually by each RSO and given to the manager by 
January 30th of the current year. (Appendix 7) 
 

P. Wavier and Release from Liability Agreement Form 
 
A wavier and release from liability agreement form will be completed by each customer prior to occupying 
the rang e for each visit and submitted to the staff. (Appendix 6) 
 

Q. Range Use Agreement Form 
 
A range use agreement form will be completed by each customer prior to occupying the rang e for each 
visit and submitted to the staff. (Appendix 5) 
 

R. Range Safety 
 
Range Commands 
 
To indicate emergency or hazardous conditions: 
 
"CEASE FIRE" 
To stop all shooting routinely or, in the case of an emergency, immediately.  Participants immediately 
stop shooting, continue to keep the muzzle pointed down range, remove finger from the trigger, unload 
and clear the firearm placing the firearm on the bench with chamber in view and wait for further 
instructions. 
 
"MISSFIRE" 
To notify the RSO and other participants that a round did not fire when the trigger was pulled and to alert 
other shooters along the line that a hazardous condition may exist. 
 
To prepare the range for live fire: 
 
"MOVE FORWARD" 
To get shooters into position to prepare to begin shooting. Shooters will move from behind the ready line 
to their assigned position.  DO NOT TOUCH FIREARM! Get comfortable, adjust your position make sure 
you are on the correct side of the bench. 
 
"PROTECTIVE GEAR ON" 

Public Hearing Item - Page 44



Page 20 of 59  

To prepare the shooter for a safe experience. Shooters should put on first their eye protection then ear 
protection. 
 
"YOU MAY PICK UP YOUR FIREARM" 
To prepare line for firing. Shooters will pick up their firearm, sight in on the target, make any final 
adjustments and prepare to load. 
 
"LOAD" 
To notify the shooters that they may load their first round. Shooters will load their first round and keep 
finger off the trigger and stand ready for the next command. 
 
"IS THE LINE READY?" 
To determine if all shooters along the line are ready. All shooters NOT ready should indicate their status 
to the RSO. Sufficient time will be allowed for the shooter to complete his/her preparation. 
 
"READY ON THE RIGHT?" 
To declare that the shooters have indicated they are ready on the right side of the range.  Any shooter 
not ready at this command may choose to either alert the RSO that he/she is not ready or to complete 
the process of getting ready before the final command has been given. 
 

"READY ON THE LEFT?" 
To declare that the shooters have indicated they are ready on the left side of the range.  Any shooter not 
ready at this command may choose to either alert the RSO that he/she is not ready or to complete the 
process of getting ready before the final command has been given. 
 
"READY ON THE FIRING LINE?" 
To notify all shooters that the range is about to be under live fire and that if anyone is not ready at that 
point, he/she should notify the RSO; Otherwise await the next command. Shooters simply await the next 
command. 
 
"COMMENCE FIRING" or "HOT RANGE" 
To declare the range formally open for live fire. The shooters may commence the prescribed course of 
fire. 
 
 
To STOP FIRING and declare the range SAFE:  
 
"SHOOTERS, YOU HAVE   MINUTES REMAINING" 
To alert all shooters that a general cease fire is about to be called and to allow the slower 
shooters to complete the course of fire. 
 
"CEASE FIRE" 
To stop all firing.  All shooters shall open the bolt/cylinder, clear the chamber, remove the magazine - 
unload the cylinder and lay the firearm down with the bolt/cylinder open and wait for further 
instructions. 
 
"COLD RANGE" 
To inform the firing line that the range is safe. The RSO is telling all shooters that all guns are 
unloaded. 

Public Hearing Item - Page 45



Page 21 of 59  

 
Other Common Commands: 
 
"ON THE FIRING LINE" 
To tell shooters to take their assigned place at their firing point and prepare to fire, but do not load. 
 
"CEASE FIRE - ACTIONS OPEN, SAFETIES ON!" 
To notify the shooters to stop firing immediately and all chambers and magazines are unloaded and 
shooters leave the firing line with the actions of their firearms open. 
 
"GO FORWARD, SCORE TARGETS AND PASTE" 
Authorizes shooters to move downrange to score, change, remove or repair target faces. 
 
"RANGE IS CLEAR, YOU MAY HANDLE YOUR FIREARMS" 
Shooters may approach the firing line and handle their firearms since no personnel are down range. 
 
"MOVE OUT OF POSITION AND REMOVE YOUR EQUIPMENT FROM THE FIRING LINE" 
Authorizes shooters to remove their gear. 
 
"POLICE YOUR ASSIGNED FIRING POINT" 
Shooters are to pick up their spent ammunition and clean their firing point of all debris. 
 
"AS YOU WERE" 
Means to disregard the previous command just given. 
 
"CARRY ON" 
Means to proceed with whatever was being done before the interruption occurred. 
 
"REMOVE PROTECTIVE GEAR" 
Shooters may remove protective gear. 
 
"MOVE BACK BEHIND THE READY LINE" 
Means to move behind the ready line and wait for further instructions from the RSO. 
 
"YOU MAY GO CHECK YOUR TARGETS" 
Shooters may move downrange to the target area. 
 

S. Firearms Carry & Handling 
 

1. Except when shooting on the range, all firearms outside a case "open carry" must always be 
unloaded, with the magazines/cylinders out and chamber empty. 

2. Firearms in a bag or case must remain in the bag or case when transporting them between 
the parking lot, clubhouse, and range. 

3. Hot Range Procedure:  proceed to a shooting bench as directed by the RSO. Uncase the firearm 
with the muzzle pointing downrange ensuring the action is open, only take out magazines and 
ammunition out of the case for the firearm to be shot. Only one firearm on the firing line bench at 
one time. 

4. Cease Fire Procedure: Remain behind the firing line and do not uncase any firearms until the 

Public Hearing Item - Page 46



Page 22 of 59  

cease fire has been completed and the range is back to a hot range status. Uncase the firearm 
with the muzzle pointing downrange ensuring the action is open, only take out magazines and 
ammunition out of the case for the firearm to be shot. Only one firearm on the firing line bench 
at one time. 

 

T. Cease Fire Procedure 
 

1. When a verbal "Cease Fire" is heard all shooting must stop immediately, unload firearm ensuring 
the chamber is empty and remove magazines. 

2. Fix actions open and insert empty chamber flag 
3. Place firearms on the bench with muzzles pointed downrange, or in a proper rack with muzzles 

pointing up. 
4. Before anyone moves downrange, all persons must move behind the firing line and 

acknowledge the cease fire verbally or visually to the RSO. 
5. Fly Cease Fire Flag (white flag) 
6. Absolutely no firearm handling during a cease fire.  Everyone is either downrange at the targets, 

picking up brass in front of the firing line, or behind the firing line. 
7. Brass forward of the firing line may be picked up during a cease fire, but the person must then 

return behind the firing line without stopping at the shooting bench. 
8. Anyone handling a firearm during a cease fire or carelessly sweeping people on a Hot Range 

should be reported to the RSO. 
 
AT ALL TIMES THE NRA GUN SAFETY RULES MUST BE OBSERVED: 

a. Always keep the gun pointed in a safe direction 
b. Always keep your finger off the trigger until ready to shoot 
c. Always keep the gun unloaded until ready to use 

 

U. Firing Line Rules 
 

1. Eye protection is mandatory at all times on the range to include staging areas. Designated 
spectator areas do not require eye protection, but it is recommended. 

2. Ear protection is mandatory at all time in all range designated areas during Hot Range (live fire) 
activities. Designated spectator areas do require ear protection. 

3. Each firing position is labeled to a corresponding target stand position. Shooters must only 
shoot in their prospective shooting lane. 

4. While firing off a bench or otherwise, bullets may not leave the impact area. The shooter must 
not be able to see above the berm (no blue sky). Anyone caught firing over the berm will be 
escorted off the range by the RSO after calling a Cease Fire. No warnings will be given. 

5. During a cease fire, all firearms are to be unloaded and empty chamber flags inserted into 
the chamber. 

6. No one is allowed forward of the firing line unless the range has been declared safe by the RSO. 
7. Once on the firing line, a firearm's muzzle must be pointed down range at all times. 
8. Loaded firearms must be pointed down range with barrel horizontal at all times. 
9. Only one firearm and matching ammunition is allowed on the bench at one time. 
10. Only shooting from the bench is allowed, unless approved by the RSO. 
11. Shoot only at designated targets. 
12. If there is a misfire be sure to keep the muzzle pointed down range (preferably on target) for at 

least 45 seconds, in case it is a hang fire. 

Public Hearing Item - Page 47



Page 23 of 59  

13. After a misfire or jam, the firearm must be cleared. A misfire is when a cartridge does not fire 
after the primer has been struck by the firing pin. A hangfire is a perceptible delay in the ignition 
of a cartridge after the primer has been struck by the firing pin. The normal procedure for 
handling misfires or hangfires is to: 

i. Keep the gun pointed downrange (safe direction). 
ii. Wait at least 30 seconds in case it is a hangfire. With muzzleloaders, wait at least two 

minutes. 
iii. Squib load is when there is less than normal pressure or bullet velocity after ignition of the 

cartridge and the bullet gets lodged in the barrel. The normal procedure for handling a squib 
load is: 

14. Stop firing immediately 
i. Keep the gun pointed downrange 

ii. Unload the gun - make sure the chamber is empty 
iii. Insert a cleaning rod down the barrel from the chamber end (if possible) to make sure 

the bullet is not lodged in the barrel. 
15. Only one shooter's target is allowed per frame, unless approved by the RSO. 
16. Smoking is not allowed under any circumstance on the range, staging areas, or spectator 

areas.  Smoking is only allowed in a designated area outside the clubhouse. 
17. IN ALL CASES THE RSO'S DECISIONS ARE FINAL AND BINDING. HIS/HER DECISIONS ARE BASED ON 

THE CURRENT SITUATION AS IT EXISTS, AND HIS/HER JUDGEMENT DICTATES. THE RSO'S DECISIONS 
MAY SUPERCEDE THE GENERAL PRINTED RULES OR SOP. 

 

V. Range Rules Specific to Black Powder Firearms 
 

1. No smoking around black powder firearms period. This includes any black powder firearms 
situated in a designated smoking area. 

2. No charging of muzzleloaders from powder cans or flasks. They are only to be charged from a 
powder measure, pre-measured charges, or pellets. 

3. Muzzleloaders are to be loaded at the tables behind the firing line, but they are to remain visibly 
uncapped (such as in the half-cock position, or in the case of flintlocks the pan unprimed with the 
frizzen open and hammer down) until they are on the firing line and ready to fire. 

4. Powder containers are not to be brought up to the firing line.  They should be kept on the staging 
area tables/benches behind the firing line. Close all powder containers when not in use. Only small 
quantities of priming powder are allowed on the firing line. 

5. Muzzles must remain pointed vertically until the loaded firearm is brough to the firing line.  Once 
primed or capped, the muzzle must remain at or below the horizontal position. 

6. Clearing a misfire 
i. Wait a minimum of two minutes to ensure that the gun will not go off due to hangfire. 
ii. Remove the cap or check the flint. Clear the flash channel to ensure the flash will reach the 

powder, then recap or prime.  Attempt to fire. 
iii. If it still fails to fire, use a hand-held CO2 discharger to blow the load downrange. There 

are adapters designed to fit every type of muzzleloader. 
iv. Check the bore for a load (insert ramrod into barrel to check if there is already a load in the 

barrel) 
v. Half-cock/position the gun for loading (pull the hammer to half-cock and position the gun.  

Stand the gun on the ground between your legs so that the muzzle is pointed up and away 
from your body. Never work directly over the muzzle.) 

 

Public Hearing Item - Page 48



Page 24 of 59  

W. NRA Hygiene Guidelines 
 
• Refrain from eating, drinking, smoking, applying makeup, or otherwise placing hands in proximity 

to the mouth or nose while on the range or cleaning a firearm. 
• Wash your hands and face with soap and water after leaving the range or cleaning area before 

eating, or drinking. 
• Change and wash clothing after a shooting or gun cleaning session to minimize exposure to airborne 

particulate lead or solvent and cleaning product residues. 
 

X. Emergencies and Incident Reporting 
 
In the event of an Emergency please follow these procedures: 
 
• Cease Fire Immediately. 
• Notify the RSO. 
• Follow all instructions given by the RSO. 
• Offer assistance if you are able. 
• Take charge of the situation.  Determine seriousness of injury. 
• Render aid. First-aid kit is located in the RSO duty pack. 
• Use RSO radio to notify manager on duty to call for help. Manager on duty will call 911 or the 

appropriate emergency number(s). 
• Direct help to location.  Stand post by the main gate to direct emergency personnel as needed. 
• There is an Automatic Defibrillator device located in the behind the desk of the main building. 
• Take notes as soon as practical.  Interview witnesses and get written statements. Safety Incident 

report sheets are located in the RSO duty pack. 
 

Y. First Aid Procedures 
 
All personnel rendering first aid should be aware of the precautions surrounding bloodborne pathogens 
in the event of an accident. The following guidelines should be followed if someone is injured and you 
come in contact with biohazardous materials including but not limited to: blood, secretions, 
cerebrospinal fluid, synovial fluid, pleural fluid, pericardial fluid, peritoneal fluid, amniotic fluid, anybody 
fluid visibly contaminated with blood, any un-affixed organ or tissue from a human living or dead, and 
the disposal of cleaning items and first aid dressings. 
Universal precautions should be used; all blood and body fluids listed above must be treated as 
potentially infectious. 
 
Government guidelines can be found at www.OSHA.gove, search for OSHA Occupational Exposure 
to Bloodborne Pathogens. 
 

Z. Personal Protective Equipment 
 
The following equipment should be used when coming in contact with biohazardous material: 
 

1. Gloves, eye and face protection 
2. Fluid-proof over garments 
3. Shoe coverings 

Public Hearing Item - Page 49

http://www.osha.gove/


Page 25 of 59  

4. Resuscitation mouthpieces for CPR 
 

AA. Procedure for Cleaning Surfaces Contaminated with Biohazardous 
Material 
 
Only those personnel trained and designated as the Bloodborne Pathogen Team should be in charge of 
the cleanup procedure. In addition to training, each individual should be inoculated for Hepatitis C. 
Your local physician is capable of administering the vaccine regimen. 
 

1. An approved Bloodborne Pathogen Cleanup Kit must be used for cleaning if at all possible. 
2. If a large amount of blood or other biohazardous material exists on surfaces or on equipment, the 

area must be roped off with "Caution Biohazard" tape.  The personnel in charge of the cleanup must 
adorn whatever amount of personal protective equipment is needed for protection. The 
biohazardous material must be wiped up with paper towels or sprinkled with liquid-congealing 
powder. The paper towels or powder must then be placed in a red biohazard bag. 

3. The surface, floor, or equipment must then be decontaminated using an approved germicidal 
liquid.  The solution must remain on the surface for ten minutes or as directed and then wiped off 
with water. In addition to commercially available germicides, a 1-part solution of sodium 
hypochlorite (common household bleach) to 10 parts water prepared daily is an effective 
germicide. 

4. For a small drop of blood or other biohazardous material that exists on a surface or equipment, 
wipe off with approved germicidal liquid. Do not use rubbing alcohol as a cleaning solution as it 
does not kill viruses. The solution must remain on equipment or surface for 10 minutes and then 
wipe off with water. 

 
Disposal of Contaminated Material (i.e., paper towels, personal protective equipment, saturated 
dressing): 
 
All contaminated materials including personal protective equipment must be placed in a red biohazard 
bag; the bag must be closed with a metal twist closure or tied in a knot. The bag must then be taken to a 
Biohazard Laboratory for proper disposal. 
 

BB. Facility Operating Procedures 
 
Main Building - Opening Procedure 
 
Designated manager/person will: 

1. Unlock the main door. 
2. Turn on lights and open window curtains in all customer areas. 
3. Make bank run for prior day/weekend business deposits as well as change orders. 
4. Put out rental guns. 
5. Stock ammunition and any other necessary retail items from back-stock. 
6. Wipe-down/clean retail areas, counters, floors, and bathrooms as needed. 
7. Check out radio for communications with RSOs and test as each RSO reporting for duty checks out 

his/her radio to ensure everyone has proper and working communications. 
8. Verify and make ready range rental/retail items: 

a. Lead sleds 
b. Shooting bags 

Public Hearing Item - Page 50



Page 26 of 59  

c. Spotting scopes 
d. Binoculars 
e. Bullseye Target Camera 
f. Eye protection 
g. Ear protection 
h. Targets 
i. Ammunition 

 
Store/Building - Closing Procedure 
 

1. Verify that all range rental items have been checked in, accounted for, and cleaned for the next 
business day. 

a. Lead sleds 
b. Shooting bags 
c. Spotting scopes 
d. Binoculars 
e. Bullseye Target Camera 
f. Eye protection 
g. Ear protection 
h. Targets 
i. Ammunition 

2. Check in communication equipment. Verify all equipment checked out has been checked-
in and are hooked up to be charged for the next business day use. 

3. Empty garbage cans taking all trash to the dumpster. 
4. Put rental guns away in vault. 
5. Close out cash drawer using the system's end of day closing process and prepare bank deposit to 

be deposited the next business day. 
6. Put cash drawer and bank deposit away in vault. 
7. Turn off all other equipment. 
8. Turn off lights and close window curtains in all customer areas. 
9. Ensure all outside doors are locked from the outside. 

 
Range - Opening Procedure 
 
All RSOs reporting for duty will: 

1. Check out RSO duty pack 
2. Ensure all items are in RSO duty pack: 

a. Copy of this SOP 
b. Incident Reports 
c. FULL first aid kit 
d. Tourniquet 
e. Pens/Pencils 
f. Sharpie Marker 
g. Note Pad 
h. Witness statement sheets 
i. Rubber Gloves 
j. Trauma Kit 
k. Range inspection sheets 

Public Hearing Item - Page 51



Page 27 of 59  

3. Check out communication equipment and test with staff on duty 
4. If not wearing an approved safety shirt, check out RSO vest from desk. 
5. Fill assigned range/bay water cooler(s) with sufficient bottled water and ice and place in designated 

area(s). 
6. If a private event scheduled for a designated range: 

a. Review "Event Checklist" and perform the appropriate tasks: 
i. Post appropriate "Event" signage on the range(s) announcing a closed range event 

ii. Ensure appropriate targets are made ready for event and placed on range(s) as 
necessary and outlined in event checklist 

iii. Ensure appropriate shooting line/stations are identified and made ready 
iv. Ensure appropriate supplies - garbage cans, brass buckets, 
v. Identify event spokesperson prior to event starting and coordinate duties of any 

volunteers and/or event staff 
vi. Give safety briefing for event with all participants to include those not shooting - 

SAFETY FIRST! 
7. Verify and make ready rental/retail items (all ammunition only available in store): 

a. Lead sleds 
b. Shooting bags 
c. Spotting scopes 
d. Binoculars 
e. Bullseye Target Camera 
f. Eye protection 
g. Ear protection 
h. Targets 

 

CC. Range - Operating Procedure 
 

1. Range inspection: 
a. Ensure that there are no hazards/obstructions between the firing line and the impact 

area. keep the area clean. 
b. Correct any problems before opening the range. 
c. If a problem is found that can't be corrected immediately you will have to determine if 

the range/bay can be run safely with the existing problem. For example: If a section of 
the primary impact berm is damaged or eroded away, the range could still be opened 
but the affected section/bench will not be used. However, if you determine that the 
range cannot be operated safely - DO NOT OPEN THE RANGE/BAY. Report the problem 
to the manager as soon as possible so that range operators/owners can address the 
problem; hang a sign so that every RSO coming to the range will be aware of the 
problem. 

2. Supplies: 
a. Extra targets, safety glasses, and ear protection will be made available to 

shooter(s) in limited quantities by the RSO for a fee. 
3. Make sure all target frames are in good working condition.  Replace backer boards as needed. 
4. For each shooter using the range: 

a. Shooter(s) must present a current day receipt for range use or member card to the 
RSO on duty. 

b. Shooter(s) must present a range safety video card in order to use any of the ranges and 
be assigned a bench by the RSO. Members will have seen the range safety video as part 

Public Hearing Item - Page 52



Page 28 of 59  

of the membership application process. 
c. Friends of employees are paying customers - not free loaders. Friends are to be treated 

as a customer and follow the same rules as a paying customer. 
d. Family of employees are defined as a spouse, and single sons and daughters of the 

employee and/or spouse under the age of twenty-one (21). Any single sons and 
daughters of the employee and/or spouse that is a full-time student under the age of 
twenty-five (25) shall be construed to be "family." Family of employees may shoot for 
no fees, but only if there are operating range benches available. Paying customers have 
priority. 

e. Upon successful current day receipt and safety video card - or member card - 
presentation, RSO assigns a bench to shoot from. 

f. Any rental items such as a lead sled, shooting bag, spotting scope, or other item, a 
receipt must be presented and surrendered to staff prior to staff issuing rental item. 

g. When a shooter(s) has completed their shooting session and rental items are returned 
to staff, brass policed and bench area cleaned up, the RSO will inform the desk clerk so 
shooter(s) can close-out their tab. 

 
5. In the event of an incident: 

a. ANY minor injury - slide bite, forehead scope event, or any other minor injury event that 
draws blood or otherwise injures a shooter or by-stander, an incident report will be filled 
out by the RSO and signed by the shooter(s) - or witness if shooter(s) is not able to sign. 

b. ANY Catastrophic or serious/fatal injury - RSO or ANY shooter/bystander on the range 
will call a CEASE FIRE!  RSO will radio all RSOs and staff on duty to CEASE FIRE on all 
range/bays and lock-down the entire facility while emergency and first responders 
perform necessary tasks.  Range closure may be necessary, and in the case of a range 
closure of this nature, SAFETY FIRST by following first responder and RSO directions 
followed by SAFE egress of shooters and members from the range to either the main 
store building or from the property as directed. 

c. ANY Accidental Discharge - RSO will fill out an incident report and have shooter(s) 
and/or witness(es) acknowledge and sign report. It will be up to the RSO to determine 
if the shooter(s) can remain on the range or if their shooting session is concluded. 

 
Making the Line Hot 
 

1. After all shooters are back from putting out target frames or changing targets and are back behind 
the benches and the firing line, double check to ensure that no one is down range. 

2. After confirming that the range is clear and it is safe to shoot, announce: "PUT ON YOUR EYE 
AND EAR PROTECTION. " 

3. After confirming that everyone on the range has put on their ear and eye protection, announce: 
"THE LINE IS HOT, YOU MAY COMMENCE FIRING WHEN YOU ARE READY." 

4. Fly Hot Range Flag (red flag) 
5. An RSO must always be monitoring the firing line condition. If the RSO must help a shooter and is 

on duty alone, the line must be shut down until he is free to continue his duty. 
 

Making the Line Safe 
 

1. A couple of minutes before calling a cease-fire, warn shooters of the upcoming target change by 
announcing:  "LAST ROUND, ONE MORE ROUND BEFORE CEASE-FIRE." 

2. Once you have determined that adequate time has elapsed, (couple of minutes for shooters to 

Public Hearing Item - Page 53



Page 29 of 59  

fire their last round), then announce: "WE ARE MAKING THE LINE SAFE. CEASE-FIRE, CEASE-FIRE. 
UNLOAD ALL FIREARMS AND REMOVE DETACHABLE MAGAZINES.  OPEN YOUR FIREARM'S 
ACTION, PUT THE SAFETY ON, AND STEP BACK AWAY FROM THE BENCHES BEHIND THE FIRING 
LINE. DO NOT TOUCH ANY FIREARM UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE.  STAY BEHIND THE FIRING LINE 
UNTIL IT HAS BEEN MADE SAFE." 

3. Go down the firing line and inspect all firearms. Confirm that: 
a. All firearms are unloaded with detachable magazines removed. 
b. Their actions are open with chambers empty and visible (chamber flags inserted if available) 

and safeties applied. 
c. If an action cannot be locked open, use an empty case, chamber flag, or other inert object 

to keep the action from fully closing. 
d. Muzzleloaders unloaded, visibly uncapped (or in the case of flintlocks the pan unprimed 

and the frizzen open and the hammer down). 
e. Everyone is standing back behind the firing line, away from the benches. 
f. No one is touching a firearm. 

4. Once you are satisfied that it is safe to go down range, fly the cease fire flag (white flag) and 
announce: "THE LINE IS SAFE. YOU CAN NOW GO DOWN RANGE AND CHANGE TARGETS. 
THERE IS TO BE NO HANDLING OF FIREARMS UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE." 

5. Remind shooters to: 
a. Stay away from the shooting benches and stay behind the firing line while people are 

forward of the benches down range. Spent cases around the benches are not to be 
picked up now. They can be picked up later when all shooters have returned back 
behind the firing line and the RSO gives the command to approach the benches. 

b. Take staplers, tape, and any other target items with them down range so as to minimize the 
time spent down range. 

c. Keep their safety glasses on down range at all times. 
d. That now is also a good time to pick up any brass that has fallen forward of the benches and 

pad and to deposit it in the designated brass buckets if they don't want it. Brass on the firing 
line can be picked up after the RSO gives the command to do so after all shooters have 
returned behind the firing line. 

e. Bring their target frames back if they are done shooting. 
 

Range - Closing Procedure 
 
All RSOs closing the range will: 

1. Make the line safe for the last time.  Verify firearms are empty and cleared prior to directing 
everyone to case their firearms before declaring the line safe and allowing shooters down 
range. 

2. Maintain observation of the line until all shooters have removed their firearms from the range. 
3. Put any equipment such as sandbags and rests in their storage location. 
4. Pick up all trash and dispose of properly. Sweep off shooting area if required. 
5. Place stools on top of shooting benches. 
6. Make sure all baffle doors are UP and secured. 
7. After all shooters have left the range, turn off all lights and electrical equipment. 
8. Return spotting scopes and other items to the store to be put away. 
9. Close and lock all doors of supply cabinets and other secured storage. 
10. Ensure that everyone has left the range. 
11. Ensure all items are in RSO duty pack and replace/refill items that were used for the shift: 

1. Copy of this SOP 

Public Hearing Item - Page 54



Page 30 of 59  

2. Incident Reports 
a. FULL first aid kit 
b. Tourniquet 
c. Pens/Pencils 
d. Sharpie Marker 
e. Note Pad 
f. Witness statement sheets 
g. Rubber Gloves 
h. Trauma Kit 

1. Range inspection sheets 
12. Check in RSO duty pack. 
13. Check in communications equipment and ensure that it is plugged in to recharge the batteries. 
14. Check in RSO vest, if issued one. 
15. Drain and put away assigned range/bay water cooler(s). 
16. If a match or private event was held for a designated range: 

a. Perform the appropriate tasks: 
i. Remove "Event" signage on the range(s) announcing a closed range event 

ii. Remove event targets and put them away. 
iii. Ensure shooting line/stations are cleaned up. 
iv. Ensure garbage cans and any other debris are emptied into the 

dumpster 
v. Ensure any full brass buckets are replaced with empty buckets.  All full brass 

buckets are to be put in the designated storage area. 
17. Verify and secure rental/retail items (all ammunition only available in store): 

a. Lead sleds 
b. Shooting bags 
c. Spotting scopes 
d. Binoculars 
e. Bullseye Target Camera 
f. Eye protection 
g. Ear protection 
h. Targets 

  

Public Hearing Item - Page 55



Page 31 of 59  

APPENDIXES 

Public Hearing Item - Page 56



Page 32 of 59  

APPENDIX 1: Facilities Use Agreement 
 

This F a c i l i t i e s  Use Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on   
(“Effective Date”) between The Timberneck Corporation (DBA: The Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range 
(“Auxiliary”) and                                                                                          (“User”). The Auxiliary and the User are 
sometimes referred to collectively as the “Parties.
 
Auxiliary, The Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range is located at: 4392 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 
23890 (“Range”). User,                                                                            is located at                                               
 
For and in consideration of the following promises, covenants and conditions, Auxiliary and User 
hereby agree as follows: 
 
Use of Facility 
 
Auxiliary hereby permits User to use the following premises: 
   
1)                                                                                                                  _                                         
 
2)                                                                                                                   _                                    
 
3)                                                                                                                   _                                  
 
which is located at, 4392 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 23890 (the “Facility”).  
 
User shall use the Facility for the following event(s) or purpose(s):   
 
1)                                                                                                         _                                              
 
2)                                                                                                         _                                              
 
3)                                                                                                         _                                                
 
 
(the “Event”) only and for no other event or purpose. User acknowledges that use of the 
Facility is conditioned on User and Auxiliary’s execution of this Agreement and User’s payment of the 
required Deposit and Facility Use Fee (if applicable). User acknowledges and understands that no 
binding or enforceable agreement regarding use of the Facility shall exist until and unless (1) this 
Agreement has been signed by User and received by Auxiliary and (2) User has paid the required 
Deposit and Facility Use Fee (if applicable). 
 
Date(s) and Time of Use 
 
User shall be permitted to use the Facility on the following dates: 
 
1)                                                (MMM/DD/YYYY)  

 
2)                                                (MMM/DD/YYYY) 

Public Hearing Item - Page 57



Page 33 of 59  

 
3)                                                (MMM/DD/YYYY) 
 
4)                                                (MMM/DD/YYYY) 

 
5)                                                (MMM/DD/YYYY) 

 
 
 

between the hours of 09:00 AM and 06:00 PM and on the day(s) of                                                                  (the 
“Event Date(s)”) only. 
 
Access and Event Times 
 
The Facility access and use must be within the time specified above. Date(s) and use times include 
individual/organization preparation, decorating, and or rehearsal time, as well as time after the Event to 
remove decoration, User equipment, and other items. 
 
Deposit and Facility Use Fee (if applicable) 
 
User agrees to pay to Auxiliary a Deposit of $             within five business days of the execution of this 
Agreement. User agrees to pay to Auxiliary a Facility Use Fee in the amount of $           for the use of the 
Facility. 
 
The Facility Use Fee must be received by the Auxiliary at least 30 days before the Event Date. If either 
the Deposit or Facility Use Fee is not timely received by the Auxiliary, this Agreement shall be 
automatically void and User shall have no right to use the Facility. 
 
The deposit is non-refundable and non-transferable. If the User cancels the Event, User shall forfeit 
the deposit. Cancellations must be received 15 business days prior to Event Date, or no refund of the 
Facility Use Fee will be provided.  
 
Responsible Party/Event Coordinating Deadline. 
 
The person(s) who completes and signs this Agreement shall be the Responsible Party. The 
Responsible Party shall coordinate all Event details with the Auxiliary and agrees to complete this 
coordination f o r  t h e  f o l l o w i n g :  
 
•                                                                                                                                                    _ 
 
•                                                                                                                                                    _ 
 
•                                                                                                                                                    _ 
 
The Responsible Party, or designated representative, must be the host and in attendance throughout the 
Event. The Responsible Party shall take all reasonable actions to assure event safety, to prevent damage 
to the Facility and equipment, and to see that these conditions and other policies and regulations, 

Public Hearing Item - Page 58



Page 34 of 59  

outlined in this Agreement are met.
 
User’s Obligations. 
 
a. User shall not violate any Federal, State, or local law, or rules of the Auxiliary, the Owners/ 
Investors of the Timberneck Corporation, or the Range. User shall not allow any Federal, State, local 
law, or rules of the Auxiliary, the Owners/ Investors of the Timberneck Corporation, or the Range  to be 
violated. 
 
b. User shall not make any alterations to the Facility, any fixtures, building systems, or equipment. At 
the end of the Event, the Facility shall be left in a clean, safe condition. The User shall remove from the 
Facility all property and materials belonging to the User. If User damages the Facility, Auxiliary shall 
have the option of either (i) requiring User, at User’s own expense and risk, to restore the Facility to 
the condition existing prior to the Event, or 
(ii) itself making the repairs and restorations to the Facility. Auxiliary shall have sole and complete 
discretion in deciding which option to exercise. If Auxiliary decides to itself make the repairs and 
restorations to the Facility, the costs for same shall be borne solely by User. User shall reimburse 
Auxiliary for any repairs or restoration necessary to repair damages to 
the Facility caused by User or the attendees of the Event no later than 30 business days after 
Auxiliary presents User with a written statement or invoice reflecting the nature and costs of the 
repairs.
 
c. User shall exercise care in the use of the Facility and adjacent Range areas and shall comply 
with guidelines to reduce excessive wear or damage. User agrees to keep the Facility and adjacent areas 
on the Range in a clean and orderly condition and to remove all waste material at the conclusion of 
the Event, unless Auxiliary agrees, in writing, to be responsible for cleanup, removal of waste or 
recycling. 
 
d. Specific limitations apply as to the use of tape, balloons, glitter, candles, markers, tack, nails, other 
such materials, and signage. Decorations must be fire retardant. User should consult with the 
Auxiliary for a full overview of allowable decorations and signage items and to appropriately 
accommodate User’s needs. Decorations/signage which causes damage or additional cleaning 
requirements will result in additional charges to the User. All decorations and all outdoor and indoor 
directional signage must be removed by the User immediately following the Event
 
User’s Property 
 
Neither the Auxiliary nor Range insure the personal property of the User its employees, agents, guests 
or attendees against damage or loss by any means. User assumes the risk of any such damage or loss. 
 
No Assignment or Subletting 
 
This Agreement is non-assignable and non-transferable. 
 
Right to Enter 
 
Auxiliary reserves the right to enter and inspect the Facility at any time for any purpose during the Event. 
User shall follow all directives from Auxiliary staff. 

Public Hearing Item - Page 59



Page 35 of 59  

Insurance Requirements 
 
User shall procure and maintain for the duration of the rental period insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the rental of 
the facilities and the activities of the renter, his guests, agents, representatives, employees, or 
subcontractors. The cost of such insurance shall be borne by User. 
 
Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering 
Commercial General Liability (CGL) on an “occurrence” basis, including products-completed 
operations, personal and advertising injury, with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
Other Insurance Provisions 
 
The general liability policy is to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 

a) For claims arising out of liability arising out of this Agreement and the User’s use of the Facility, 
the User’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Auxiliary and any insurance 
or self-insurance maintained by the Auxiliary shall be excess of the User’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 
 

b) The User’s Insurance Company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the Auxiliary for 
losses paid under the terms of any policy covering the facility rental or any activities of the User, its 
guests, agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers 
 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A-VII, unless 
otherwise acceptable to the Auxiliary. 
 
Verification of Coverage 
 
User shall furnish the Auxiliary with original certificates and amendatory endorsements effecting 
coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements must be actually received by the 
Auxiliary at least 15 days before the Event Date. If the certificates and endorsements are not timely 
delivered to and received by the Auxiliary, this Agreement shall be automatically and immediately void 
and User shall have no right to use the Facility. Auxiliary may in its sole discretion, decide not to 
approve or accept User’s insurance coverage in which event this Agreement shall be automatically 
and immediately void and User shall have no right to use the Facility
 
Special Events Coverage 
 
Special events coverage may be available for an additional fee to provide the liability insurance 
required by this Agreement. User can obtain additional information and cost from the Auxiliary. 
 
Right to Modify 
 
Auxiliary reserves the right to modify these insurance requirements at any time without any advance 
notice, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, prior events, insurer, coverage, 

Public Hearing Item - Page 60



Page 36 of 59  

or other special circumstances. 
 
Reassignment of Facilities 
 
Should the Facility become unavailable due to an emergency, the Auxiliary reserves the right to reassign 
the User to another Range facility or reschedule the event to the next available date. 
 
Termination/Cancellation 
 
This Agreement to use the Facility is granted subject to observance of t h e  F a c i l i t y ’ s  s t a n d a r d  
o p e r a t i n g  p r o c e d u r e s ,  p o l i c e s ,  a n d  regulations. The Auxiliary may revoke this Agreement 
effective immediately upon User’s failure to timely comply with any pre-Event requirement, for any 
violation of use conditions or regulations required by the Auxiliary or governmental agency, or at any 
time for misrepresentation. The Auxiliary may terminate any part of this Agreement without notice in 
the event of an emergency which, in the opinion and sole discretion of the Auxiliary, would make the 
Event unfeasible. Refunds of any Deposits and/or Facility Use Fees paid will be determined at the 
discretion of the Auxiliary, on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Modification of this Agreement 
 
This Agreement contains the entire agreement and any modifications, changes or amendments to 
this Agreement must be written and signed by all the Parties to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the 
above, the Parties to this Agreement incorporate by reference, as though fully set forth herein, those 
specific paragraphs initialed by the Parties in the attached Facilities Use Agreement Addendum. 
 
Acceptance of Terms 
 
I have read and understand the above terms and conditions and agree to abide by these terms and 
conditions. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________  
Printed Name 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ Date:________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ Date:________________________ 
Howell P. Godfrey Jr.  
President, The Timberneck Corporation 
  

Public Hearing Item - Page 61



Page 37 of 59  

 
APPENDIX 2: Safety Incident Report 
 
 
Documented by: Date:    
 
Address: Time of Incident:    

 
Telephone Number:  
 
Name of person(s) involved:    
 
                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

 

 

All "NO" answers or "Other" type of incident must be commented on in the space provided below. Provide 
as much detail as possible for the incident being reported. All incidents must be reported to management 
for investigation. 
 
1. Describe the nature and extent of the incident (specify part of body):                                                                      
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
2. Describe how the incident occurred:                                                                                                                         
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Indicate Type of Incident 

 Accidental Discharge  Personal Injury 
 
 Other 
 

 
 Near Miss 
 

 Property  

Put a mark (X) under the appropriate response Yes No 
Was the person(s) involved a member of BOSR?   
Was the proper protective equipment being worn?   
Was the incident the result of firearm/ equipment malfunction?   
Did the incident seem to be the result of improper/ disregard for/ lack of 
training/ lack of firearm and safety education? 

  

Was First Aid administered?   
Was 911 or other emergency personnel called to the scene?   
Was CPR or use of the defibrillator required?   
Were bodily fluids/ biohazardous materials properly cleaned up?   
First-Aid kit need refilled?   
Biohazard Kit need refilled?   

Public Hearing Item - Page 62



Page 38 of 59  

 
3. Disposition (specify name of hospital, telephone numbers, time of transport, etc.):                                                                                                                         
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
4. Notification of next of kin (specify time, person contacted, and method):                                                                                                                         
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
5. Location of incident and conditions of area:                                                                                                                         
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
6. Describe steps taken to preserve the scene (equipment, photographs, etc.):                                                                                                                         
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
7. Comments:                                                                                                                                                                     
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
8. Follow-up:                                                                                                                                                                       
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature: ______________________        DATE: ______________________________ 
 
 
(Add additional blank pages if necessary) 

Public Hearing Item - Page 63



Page 39 of 59  

APPENDIX 3: Eye Witness Form 
 
 
What did you see?                                                                                                                                                              
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
 
What did you hear?                                                                                                                                                              
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 

Public Hearing Item - Page 64



Page 40 of 59  

                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
What did you do?                                                                                                                                                              
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
 
 
 
 

  

Signed Date 

Public Hearing Item - Page 65



Page 41 of 59  

APPENDIX 4: Replacement and Repair Costs 
 
The following chart of costs for damages to facility equipment as the result of careless or accidental firearm 
discharges or other negligent/accidental actions are to be identified and used by the RSO when filling out 
the Safety Incident Report with fines/fees: 
 
What Fine/Fee 
Baffle Strike $10 
Target Stand Damage $50 + Replacement Cost 
Spotting Scope Damage $50 + Replacement Cost 
Binocular Damage $50 + Replacement Cost 
Chrono Damage $50 + Replacement Cost 
Bullseye Camera Damage $50 + Replacement Cost 
Facility Structures $200 + Actual Repair Costs 
All other equipment not listed above $50 + Replacement Cost 

 
  

Public Hearing Item - Page 66



Page 42 of 59  

APPENDIX 5: Emergency Report Sheet 
 
Effective Date:                                                
 
EMERGENCY COMMUNCATIONS 

 
IMMEDIATE RESPONES FOR INJURIES OR ILLNESS 

 
• Call a cease fire if the injured is near the firing line or downrange. Ensure that all guns are unloaded and 

clear. 
 

•                                                                will coordinate edging or pulling of targets, if possible, and securing the 
scene and the injured person’s gear. 
 

•                                                                will notify EMS at (434) 246-8224 from the nearest telephone/ radio 
located at 4362 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 23890 and provide the following information: 
 

1. Specific Location or Address of Incident with Directions 
 

a. Location: 
b. Address: 4362 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 23890 
c. Directions: 

1) Head north on State Rte. 735 toward Thorton Square 
2) Turn right onto VA-40 E 

Contact Point of 
Contact Address 

Primary 
Phone 

Number 

Secondary 
Phone 

Number 

Primary 
Frequency 

Secondary 
Frequency 

Waverly 
Rescue Squad  

115 Bank St, 
Waverly, VA 

23890 

(804) 834-
2835    

Sussex 
Sheriff’s Dept.  

20212 Thorton 
Square, Stony 

Creek, VA 23882 

(434) 246-
5000    

Waverly Vol. 
Fire Dept.  

119 Bank St. 
Waverly, VA 

23890 

(804) 834-
2324    

Sussex 
Emergency 
Operations 

Center 

 

15080 
Courthouse Rd, 

Sussex, VA 
23884 

(434) 246-
8224    

Range Control 
Howell 

Godfrey 
Sr. 

4362 General 
Mahone Hwy, 
Waverly, VA 

23890 

(757) 817-
7292 

(757) 871-
0357   

Cellular Phone 
Howell 

Godfrey 
Jr. 

 (757) 945-
6285 

(202) 465-
0920   

Public Hearing Item - Page 67



Page 43 of 59  

3) Turn left after McDonald’s (on the left) 
4) Continue to follow US-460 W 
5) Destination will be on the right 

 
2. Telephone number that you are calling from:                                                                                     

 
3. Your name:                                                                                                                                              

 
4. What happened and possible hazards for rescuers:                                                                                 

 
                                                                                                                                                                          
 
                                                                                                                                                                         
 

5. Condition of injured or ill:                                                                                                                            
 
                                                                                                                                                                          
 

6. First aid provided:                                                                                                                                           
 

• Wait for EMS to hang up first. Return to the injured and continue care until EMS arrives. 
 

•                                                                is currently certified in American Red Cross (ARC) Standard First Aid and 
CPR. He/ she will evaluate the situation for hazards, protect the injured, and provide first aid until relieved 
by more qualified personnel, e.g., physician or EMS. Person listed above will: 
 

1. Identify self to the injured. 
2. Inform injured of training. (American Red Cross Standard First Aid & CPR) 
3. Inform injured of aid offered. 
4. Receive verbal permission from injured prior to giving care. 
5. Refrain from giving care to a conscious injured person whom objects. 
6. Assume implied permission if the injured is unconscious or unable to respond. 
7. Move the injured only if life is endangered. 
8. Check injured for life threatening condition before providing care. Provide care only within level of 

training. 
9. Never dispense aspirin or medications; administer activated charcoal or syrup of Ipecac (or other 

treatments) unless directed by EMS or Emergency Operations Center. 
 

•                                                                will retrieve the first-aid kit located at the check-in desk and assist EMS 
personnel as needed. 
 

• If the incident involves chemical burns, an eye flush station is located at the check-in desk. 
 

• If the incident involves a gun injury,                                                       will notify police and preserve the scene 
as it appeared at the time of the incident. 
 

•                                                                 Will go to the range entrance and direct EMS personnel to the injured. 
 

Public Hearing Item - Page 68



Page 44 of 59  

COORDINATION 

 
•                                                                 Will supervise the situation and ensure fulfillment of emergency 

procedures by: 
1. Getting names of witnesses and taking statements. 
2. Providing EMS with treatment release forms, medical history information (maintained on employees and 

staff) and next of kin information for the injured. 
3. Notifying next of kin once EMS has examined the injured and prepared for transportation to a medical 

facility. 
4. Completing injury report forms. 
5. Notifying official of the organization range, club, etc. concerning activation of the emergency plan. 
6. Notifying insurance company (personal and/ or organization as appropriate). 
7. Filing copies of the injure report form with records as appropriate. 
8. Following up with physician for recommendations and release prior to allowing ill or injured to participate. 
9. Following up with physician for recommendations and release prior to allowing ill or injured to participate. 

 
HELICOPTER MEDICAL EVACUATION (MEDEVAC) 
 
 A suitable MEDEVAC site is available at (location and coordinate). Orange flags, smoke signals, 
chemical illumination are available for marking the landing site, and are stored at the check-in desk. 
                                                            Will mark the landing site and guide the MEDEVAC approach and landing. 
If smoke is displayed, initiate smoke downwind of the landing zone. 
 
RANGE EMERGENCY RESPONSE PACKET 
 
 An emergency response packet for this range dated                                       is on file with EMS, police, 
and the fire departments. The packet contains phone numbers, aerial photographs, maps, designations of 
possible routes, helicopter and medical evacuation sites and hazards, assembly area(s), floor plans of 
buildings indicating gas lines/ mains, electrical sources, and specified locations of hazardous materials with 
listings of types and quantities. 

Public Hearing Item - Page 69



Page 45 of 59  

APPENDIX 6: Range Use Agreement 
 

 

 
CUSTOMER INFORMATION (PLEASE WRITE LEGIBLY): 

 
NAME:                                                                                                                     
 
ADDRESS:                                                                                                               
 
CITY:                                                  STATE:                           ZIP:                        
 
TELEPHONE:                                                                                                           
 
EMAIL ADDRESS:                                                                                                   
 
ID TYPE:                                                   NUMBER:                                              
 
HAVE YOU EVER BEEN CONVICTED OF A FELONY?  YES  NO 
 
IS THERE ANY LEGAL REASON THAT PROHIBITS YOU FROM POSSESSING A 
FIREARM?  YES  NO 
 
HOW WOULD YOU RATE YOUR LIVE FIREARMS EXPERIENCE?  
 
1ST TIMER  BEGINNER  INTERMEDIATE  EXPERT 
 
HOW DID YOU HEAR ABOUT US?  
 
RADIO     EMAIL     SOCIAL MEDIA     WEBSITE     DROVE BY FACILITY     WORD-OF-MOUTH 
OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY):                                                                                                                    
 

1) Fill Out Both Sheet (Front & Back) 2) Watch Video 3) Get in Line at 
the Check-In Desk 

Public Hearing Item - Page 70



Page 46 of 59  

BY COMPLETING THIS FORM, YOU AGREE TO GIVE THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE PERMISSION TO 
CONTACT YOU USING THE EMAIL ADDRESS PROVIOED. YOU MUST BE AT LEAST 18 YEARS OF AGE TO COMPLETE THIS 
FORM. YOUR PHONE, ADDRESS AND EMAIL ADDRESS WILL BE KEPT CONFIDENTIAL AND NOT PROVIOED TO 3RD PARTIES. 
 
 

  

 
DATE: __/__/____     CHECK IN TIME: _______     CHECK OUT TIME: ______ 
SAFETY BRIEFING VERIFIED BY: ____________________________________ 
ASSIGNED RANGE #: _______________           LANE #: _________________ 
GUN ID: _______ GUN ID: ________ GUN ID: ________ GUN ID: ________ 

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Public Hearing Item - Page 71



Page 47 of 59  

APPENDIX 7: Waiver and Release from Liability Agreement 
 
I,_____________________________, HEREBY WAIVE AND RELEASE, indemnify, hold harmless and forever discharge THE 
BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION and its agents, managers, members, 
sponsors , employees , officers, directors, affiliates, successors and assigns, of and from any and all claims, demands, 
debts, contracts, expenses , causes of actions, lawsuits, damages and liabilities , of every kind and nature, whether 
known or unknown, in law or equity, that I ever had or may have, arising from or in any way related to my participation 
in any of the events or activities conducted by, on the premises of, or for the benefit of, THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR 
SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION, provided that this waiver of liability does not apply to any acts 
of gross negligence, or intentional, willful or wanton misconduct. 
 
I UNDERSTAND THAT THE ACTIVITIES THAT I WILL PARTICIPATE IN ARE INHERENTLY DANGEROUS, THAT FIREARMS BY 
THEIR VERY NATURE ARE UNPREDICTABLE AND MAY CAUSE SERIOUS OR GRIEVOUS INJURIES, INCLUDING BODILY 
INJURY, DAMAGE TO PERSONAL PROPERTY AND/OR DEATH. I UNDERSTAND THAT CERTAIN RISKS, DANGERS, AND 
INJURIES DUE TO INADEQUATE OR DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT, AND ALL OTHER POTENTIAL DANGERS 
 
INHERENT TO ACTIVITIES INVOLVING FIREARMS EXIST. On behalf of myself, my heirs, assigns and next of kin, I waive all 
claims for damages, injuries and death sustained by me or to my property that I may have against the aforementioned 
released party to such activity whether caused by the ordinary negligence of the released party or otherwise, with the 
exception of acts of gross negligence, or intentional, willful or wanton misconduct as indicated above. 
 
By this Waiver, I assume any risk, and take full responsibility and waive any claims of personal injury, death or damage 
to personal property associated with THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK 
CORPORATION, including but not limited to target shooting, using the facilities or equipment in any manner, form or 
fashion, and engaging in any other related activities. In the event that I cause injury to another person or their property 
at THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION, I agree to indemnify and hold 
harmless THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION and its agents, 
managers, members, sponsors, employees, officers, directors, affiliates, successors and assigns from any and all claims 
for injuries, damages brought by that injured person as a result of my acts or omissions whether negligent or otherwise. 
 
I hereby expressly consent to THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION and 
its agents, managers, members, sponsors, employees, officers, directors, affiliates, successors and assigns, the 
irrevocable and perpetual right to use my picture, image, voice and other reproductions of the same, (whether by still 
camera image or video film) in any manner for marketing, advertising purposes or for the purpose of trade. I waive and 
release any claim I may have against THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK 
CORPORATION and its agents, managers, members, sponsors , employees , officers , directors, affiliates , successors and 
assigns for defamation , invasion of privacy or publicity and any other claims in connection with such use by THE 
BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION and its agents, managers , members, 
sponsors , employees , officers, directors, affiliates , successors and assigns. 
 
This WAIVER AND RELEASE contains the entire agreement between the parties, and supersedes any prior written oral 
agreements between them concerning the subject matter of this WAIVER AND RELEASE. The provisions of this WAIVER 
AND RELEASE may be waived, altered, amended or repealed, in whole or in part, only upon the prior written consent of 
all parties. 
 
The provisions of this WAIVER AND RELEASE will continue in full force and effect even after the termination of the 
activities conducted by, on the premises of, or for the benefit of THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and 
THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION, whether by agreement, by operation of law, or otherwise. 
 
I have read, understand and fully agree to the terms of this WAIVER AND RELEASE. I understand and confirm that by 
signing this WAIVER AND RELEASE I have given up considerable future legal rights. I have signed this Agreement freely, 
voluntarily, under no duress or threat of duress, without inducement, promise or guarantee being communicated to me. 
My signature is proof of my intention to execute a complete and unconditional WAIVER AND RELEASE of all liability to 

Public Hearing Item - Page 72



Page 48 of 59  

the full extent of the law. I am 18 years of age or older and mentally competent to enter into this waiver. 
 
 
 
 
 
Printed Name: _______________________  DATE: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature: ___________________________  
 
 
 
 
 
THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE DATE: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Received by: _______________________  

Public Hearing Item - Page 73



Page 49 of 59  

APPENDIX 8: Release, Wavier, Indemnification, Hold Harmless, and Assumption of 
Risk Agreement 
 

WHERE AS, in consideration of being permitted to attend a course for instruction in guns, for the 
instruction in guns, for use of premises, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Undersigned agrees to the following: 
 

Undersigned agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend                                             (hereinafter 
referred to as  “Instructor”), from any and all fault, liabilities, costs, expenses, claims, demands or lawsuits 
arising out of, related to or connected with: Undersigned’s presence at and/ or participation in the course of 
instruction; the discharge of guns by Undersigned; Undersigned’s presence on or use of the range, buildings, 
land and premises (“Premises”); and, any and all acts or omissions of Undersigned. 
 

Undersigned furthermore waives for himself/ herself and for his/ her executors, personal 
representatives, administrators, assignees, heirs and next of kin, any and all rights and claims for damages, 
losses, demands and any other actions or claims whatsoever, which he/ she may have or which may arise 
against Instructor (including but not limited to the death of Undersigned and/ or any and all injuries, 
damages or illnesses suffered by Undersigned or Undersigned’s property), which may, in any way 
whatsoever, arise out of, be related to or be connected with: the course of instruction: the Premises: 
Undersigned’s property (whether or not entrusted to Instructor); and, the discharge of guns. Instructor shall 
not be liable for, and Undersigned, on behalf of himself/ herself and on behalf of his/ her executors, personal 
representatives, administrators, assignees, heirs and next of kin, hereby expressly releases the Instructor 
from any and all such claims and liabilities. 
 

Undersigned hereby expressly assumes the risk of taking part in the course for instruction in guns and 
taking part in the activities on the Premises, which include, but are not limited to, instruction in the use of 
guns, the discharge of guns and the firing of live ammunition. 
 

Undersigned hereby acknowledges and agrees that Undersigned has read this instrument and 
understands its terms and is executing this instrument voluntarily. Undersigned furthermore hereby 
acknowledges and agrees that he/ she has read, understands and will at all times abide by all range rules and 
procedures and any other rules and procedures stated by the Instructor. 
 

Undersigned expressly agrees that this instrument is intended to be as broad and inclusive as permitted 
by law, and that if any provision of this instrument is held invalid or otherwise unenforceable, the 
enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be impaired thereby. No remedy conferred by any of the 
specific provisions of this instrument is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every 
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy now or hereafter existing at law or 
in equity or by statute or otherwise. The election of any one or more remedy hereunder by the Instructor 
shall not constitute and wavier of Instructor’s right to pursue other available remedies. This instrument binds 
Undersigned and his/ her executors, personal representatives, administrators, assignees, heirs and next of 
kin. 
 
UNDERSIGNED: 
 
Printed Name: _______________________  DATE: ______________________________ 
 
Signature: _______________________         

Public Hearing Item - Page 74



Page 50 of 59  

APPENDIX 9: Range Inspection Checklist 
 

 
Inspected by: _______________________  DATE: _________                            __ 
 
 
Range Type: _____________________         
 
 

 
 
Comments:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                     

 Yes 
 

No 

Controlled Access/ Fencing/ Gates Closed   
Flags or Signs Displayed   
Left and Right Range Limits Displayed   
Backstop/ Impact Area Inspected   
Number Boards Painted and Visible   
Target Frames/ Mounts in Good Repair   
Firing Line Marked   
Firing Points Numbered/ Clean   
Shooting Benches/ Tables Inspected   
Sandbags/ Gun Rests on Hand   
Ready Line/ Area Marked   
Spectator Area Designated   
Scoring Area Established   
Supplies Available   
RSO Control Area Centralized   
Emergency Communications Working   
First-Aid Kit Filled/ Accessible   
PA System/Bullhorn Working   
Range Rules Posted   
Bulletin Board Hung   
Gun Racks Available   
Empty Trash Receptacles Available   
Brass/ Dud Buckets Labeled   
Wash Area Identified   
Lockable Storage   

Public Hearing Item - Page 75



Page 51 of 59  

APPENDIX 10: Range Safety Brief 
 

Follow this outline when conducting range safety briefings. Issue copies of the shooting range rules to all 
range users. Conduct the briefing on the range immediately prior to range use. Stand where posted rules, 
demonstrations and explanations of range equipment can be included in the briefing. Involve range users. 
Have them read rules from posters and handouts. Ask questions to reinforce understanding. If guns are used 
during the briefing, the RSO must follow the NRA Gun Safety Rules. 
 
A. Purpose of The Shooting Event 
 

• State the purpose, e.g., recreational shooting. 
• Provide an overview of the event. 
• State the total number of shots and time available. 

 
Range Personnel 
 

• State where range personnel will be located. 
• Introduce range personnel. 
• Explain that their role is to ensure safety. 
• Indicate how they may be identified. E.g., orange vest and hat. 

 
B. Range Layout and Limits 
 

• Conduct a range orientation on, or within view of, the range. 
 
C. Range Safety Rules 
 

1. NRA Gun Safety Rules 
i. Three Fundamental NRA Rules for Safe Gun Handling 

Ask: What is the first rule for safe gun handling? 
1. ALWAYS keep the gun pointed in a safe direction. 

Ask: What does a “safe direction” mean? 
The gun is pointed so that even if it were to go off, it would not cause injury or 
damage to anyone or anything. 

Ask: What is the second rule for safe gun handling? 
2. ALWAYS keep your finger off the trigger until ready to shoot. 

Ask: Unless shooting, where should the shooter’s finger rest? 
The finger should rest alongside the gun, i.e., on the frame, receiver, or trigger 
guard. 

Ask: What is the third rule for safe gun handling? 
3. ALWAYS keep the gun unloaded until ready to use. (Emphasize that safeties can 

fail. Safe gun handling rules should be followed all the time!) 
 

2. Rules for Safe Use 
 
i. Know your target and what is beyond. 

ASK: What is meant by “know your target and what is beyond?” 

Public Hearing Item - Page 76



Page 52 of 59  

1. The shooter must be sure that projectiles will safely impact into the backstop 
ii. Be sure the gun is safe to operate. 

iii. Know how to use the gun safely. 
 

ASK: What is meant by “know how to use the gun safely?” 
1. Shooters need to know how the gun operates, its basic parts, how to safely open 

and close the action, and how to remove ammunition or projectiles. 
iv. Use only the correct ammunition for your gun. 

 
ASK: What is meant by “use only the correct ammunition?” 

1. Only ammunition designed for a particular gun can be safely fired in that gun. 
Shooters should ensure that the caliber marked on the barrel, ammo box, and 
cartridge case match. This is especially true for antique guns. 

v. Wear eye and ear protection as appropriate. 
 

ASK: Why should range users wear both eye and ear protection? 
1. Many guns are loud, and the noise can cause hearing damage. Guns can also emit 

debris, hot gas, and cartridge cases that could cause eye injuries. 
2. Users of air gun ranges, including spectators, need eye protection to prevent 

injuries from ricochets. 
vi. Never use alcohol or drugs or while shooting. 

 
ASK: What type of substance is implied by “never use alcohol or drugs…?” 

1. Any substance that may impair normal mental or physical bodily functions. 
Examples include prescription and non-prescription drugs, e.g., cold medicines that 
may cause drowsiness, nervousness, balance problems, etc. 

2. Anyone taking any medication or substance that may impair normal mental or 
physical bodily functions is not allowed on the range. 

 
3. General Range Safety Rules 

 
ASK range users to read rules as you (RSO) point to range posters or refer to handouts. 

1. Know and obey all range commands. 
2. Know where others are at all times. 
3. Shoot only at authorized targets. 
4. Do not handle a gun or stand at the firing line where guns are present while other 

are downrange. 
5. Stop shooting immediately upon the command of “Cease Firing”. 

ASK: Why is it important to shoot only at authorized targets? 
1. Shooting at different targets, e.g., steel targets or at different distances or angels, 

may result in hazardous conditions. 
ASK: What actions should shooters perform during a cease fire? 

1. Stop shooting immediately. 
2. Await further instructions from the RSO. 

 
ii. Stoppages 

 
Explain that there are three common ammunition stoppages. 

Public Hearing Item - Page 77



Page 53 of 59  

1. A misfire is when a cartridge does not fire after the primer has been struck by the firing 
pin. 

2. A hangfire is when a perceptible delay in the ignition of the cartridge after the primer 
has been stuck by the firing pin. 

3. The normal procedure for handling misfires or hangfires is to: 
1. Keep the gun pointed down range (safe direction) 
2. Wait at least 30 seconds in case it is a hangfire. With black powder guns, wait at least 

two minutes. 
4. A squib load is when there is less than normal pressure or bullet velocity after ignition of 

the cartridge. The bullet may or may not exit the barrel. Squib loads are identified by 
difference in recoil or noise. 

5. The normal procedure for handling a squib load is: 
1. Keep the gun pointed downrange (safe direction). 
2. Unload the gun – make sure the chamber is empty. 
3. Insert a cleaning rod down the barrel from the chamber end (if possible) to make 

sure the bullet is not lodged in the barrel. 
 

4. NRA Hygiene Guidelines 
 
• Explain that NRA hygiene guidelines are intended to minimize exposure to airborne 

particulate lead and cleaning product residues. 
• Emphasize that everybody exposed at the range or cleaning area – even if he/ she did not 

participate in the shooting session – should follow these guidelines. 
• Remind range users of these guidelines prior to, during, and immediately after occupying the 

range. 
 

i. Refrain from eating, drinking smoking, applying makeup, or otherwise placing hands in 
proximity to the mouth or nose while on the range or cleaning a gun. 

ii. Wash your hands and face with cold water after leaving the range or cleaning area before 
eating or drinking. 

iii. Change and wash clothing after a shooting or gun cleaning session to minimize exposure to 
airborne particulate lead or solvent and cleaning product residues. 

 
5. Site-Specific Range Rules 

 
ASK: range users to read rules as you (RSO) point to range posters or refer to handouts. 

1. NO SHOOTING OVER BACKSTOP IMPACT BERMS EVER! 
2. Armor-piercing and tracer ammunition is not allowed. 
3. Muzzleloading guns are not allowed. 
4. Targets must be placed at the shooter’s eye level to ensure bullets hit the impact area. 
5. Leave dropped ammunition on the floor until the stage of fire is completed and guns are 

benched or grounded. 
6. Notify the RSO when there is a gun stoppage or malfunction. 
7. Dy firing is ONLY permitted at the firing line and ONLY when authorized. 
8. All guns must remain unloaded with actions open except when on the firing line and 

authorized to be loaded. 
9. When guns are benched or grounded, keep the actions open and ejection ports facing 

upward so chambers are visible. 

Public Hearing Item - Page 78



Page 54 of 59  

10. Ammunition is not permitted in the cleaning area. 
 

ASK: Why are shooters required to leave dropped ammunition on the floor until firing is 
completed and guns are benched or grounded? 

1. This policy prevents shooters from unintentionally pointing the gun at other users while 
retrieving dropped ammunition, or inadvertently moving in front of the firing line. 
 

ASK: Why are shooters required to notify the RSO of gun stoppage or malfunctions? 
1. Notification is critical for safety. 

 
D. FIRING LINE COMMANDS 

 
State and explain standard range commands that will be used for specific shooting events, e.g., 
formal competition rules are specified in NRA Rule Books. 
 

i. “CEASE FIRE”: To stop all shooting routinely or, in the case of an emergency, 
immediately.  Participants immediately stop shooting, continue to keep the muzzle 
pointed down range, remove finger from the trigger, unload and clear the firearm 
placing the firearm on the bench with chamber in view and wait for further 
instructions. 

ii. "MISSFIRE": To notify the RSO and other participants that a round did not fire when 
the trigger was pulled and to alert other shooters along the line that a hazardous 
condition may exist. 

iii. "MOVE FORWARD": To get shooters into position to prepare to begin shooting. 
Shooters will move from behind the ready line to their assigned position.  DO NOT 
TOUCH FIREARM! Get comfortable, adjust your position make sure you are on the 
correct side of the bench. 

iv. "PROTECTIVE GEAR ON": To prepare the shooter for a safe experience. Shooters 
should put on first their eye protection then ear protection. 

v. "YOU MAY PICK UP YOUR FIREARM": To prepare line for firing. Shooters will pick up 
their firearm, sight in on the target, make any final adjustments and prepare to load. 

vi. "LOAD": To notify the shooters that they may load their first round. Shooters will load 
their first round and keep finger off the trigger and stand ready for the next 
command. 

vii. "IS THE LINE READY?": To determine if all shooters along the line are ready. All 
shooters NOT ready should indicate their status to the RSO. Sufficient time will be 
allowed for the shooter to complete his/her preparation. 

viii. "READY ON THE RIGHT?": To declare that the shooters have indicated they are ready 
on the right side of the range.  Any shooter not ready at this command may choose to 
either alert the RSO that he/she is not ready or to complete the process of getting 
ready before the final command has been given. 

ix. "READY ON THE LEFT?": To declare that the shooters have indicated they are ready 
on the left side of the range.  Any shooter not ready at this command may choose to 
either alert the RSO that he/she is not ready or to complete the process of getting 
ready before the final command has been given. 

x. "READY ON THE FIRING LINE?": To notify all shooters that the range is about to be 
under live fire and that if anyone is not ready at that point, he/she should notify the 
RSO; Otherwise await the next command. Shooters simply await the next command. 

xi. "COMMENCE FIRING" or "HOT RANGE": To declare the range formally open for live 

Public Hearing Item - Page 79



Page 55 of 59  

fire. The shooters may commence the prescribed course of fire. 
xii. "SHOOTERS, YOU HAVE x MINUTES REMAINING": To alert all shooters that a general 

cease fire is about to be called and to allow the slower shooters to complete the 
course of fire. 

xiii. "COLD RANGE": To inform the firing line that the range is safe. The RSO is telling all 
shooters that all guns are unloaded. 

xiv. "ON THE FIRING LINE": To tell shooters to take their assigned place at their firing 
point and prepare to fire, but do not load. 

xv. "GO FORWARD, SCORE TARGETS AND PASTE": Authorizes shooters to move 
downrange to score, change, remove or repair target faces. 

xvi. "RANGE IS CLEAR, YOU MAY HANDLE YOUR FIREARMS": Shooters may approach the 
firing line and handle their firearms since no personnel are down range. 

xvii. "MOVE OUT OF POSITION AND REMOVE YOUR EQUIPMENT FROM THE FIRING 
LINE": Authorizes shooters to remove their gear. 

xviii. "POLICE YOUR ASSIGNED FIRING POINT": Shooters are to pick up their spent 
ammunition and clean their firing point of all debris. 

xix. "AS YOU WERE": Means to disregard the previous command just given. 
xx. "CARRY ON": Means to proceed with whatever was being done before the interruption 

occurred. 
xxi. "REMOVE PROTECTIVE GEAR": Shooters may remove protective gear. 

xxii. "MOVE BACK BEHIND THE READY LINE": Means to move behind the ready line and 
wait for further instructions from the RSO. 

xxiii. "YOU MAY GO CHECK YOUR TARGETS": Shooters may move downrange to the target 
area. 
 
ASK: What two range commands may be issued by shooters? 

i. “Cease firing” and “Stop” 
ASK: What does “misfire” mean? 

ii. That the gun failed to fire and a hazardous condition may exist. The misfire could 
actually be a hangfire, which is a delay in the ignition of the cartridge. 

ASK: What actions are taken during a misfire? 
iii. Due to the possibility of a hangfire, the shooter keeps the gun pointed downrange 

and waits at least 30 seconds for modern guns, or at least two minutes for 
muzzleloading guns, prior to correcting the malfunction. 

ASK: Where and when may shooter dry fire? 
iv. Only at their firing points and only when authorized to do so. 

 
E. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES 

 
1. Take charge of the situation. (Determine seriousness of injury and assigned duties). 
2. Render aid. First-aid kit should be centrally located. 
3. Call for help via radio or telephone. Emergency phone numbers and information list 

should be centrally located. 
4. Direct help to location. 
5. Take notes. Emergency report sheet should be located in range SOP’s binder (See 

Appendix 3). 
  

Public Hearing Item - Page 80



Page 56 of 59  

APPENDIX 11: Fence Patrol Log 
 

Date Time Person Report of Discrepancies 
 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
  

Public Hearing Item - Page 81



Page 57 of 59  

APPENDIX 12: Range Layout 
 
Site Layout 

 
  

Public Hearing Item - Page 82



Page 58 of 59  

Rifle Range 
 

 
  

Public Hearing Item - Page 83



Page 59 of 59  

Handgun/ Shotgun Range 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Public Hearing Item - Page 84



. 

Notice of Public Hearings 

Sussex County  

 
 

Pursuant to Section 15.2-2204 of the Virginia Code, notice is hereby given that the Board of 

Supervisors will hold a public hearing at its regular meeting on Thursday, January 19, 2023 

beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center, 15098 

Courthouse Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884 to consider the following:   

 

Conditional Use Permit #2022-04: The applicant, Howell Godfrey Jr. under CUP #2022-04 

seeks a conditional use permit for a shooting range on approximately 20 acres of land. The intent 

is to have an outdoor shooting range that is available for public use. The property is located on 

the north side of Rt. 460 approximately 2 miles northwest from the Town of Waverly.  

 

A copy of the application, along with supporting documentation are available for review on the 

County website as well as in the Planning & Zoning Department located at 20135 Princeton 

Road, Sussex, Virginia, during regular business hours Monday through Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 

5:00 p.m., Phone number (434) 246-1042 or 1043. 

 

Due to the ongoing COVID health crisis, if attending in person face coverings are encouraged 

and social distancing measures should be followed. Comments may also be submitted in writing 

to bwalkup@sussexcountyva.gov or via mail to the Department of Planning, 20135 Princeton 

Road, Sussex, VA 23884, no later than noon on Thursday, January 19, 2023. Any persons 

needing assistance or accommodations under the provisions of the American Disabilities Act 

should contact Sussex County Administration at 434-246-1000 at least seven (7) days in advance 

of the hearing. 

 
Submitted by: Beverly Walkup, Director of Planning 

 

 

Public Hearing Item - Page 85



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.01 

Subject:  Sussex County Towns Economic Development Planning Grant 

Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023 
============================================================================== 
Summary:   An opportunity for consultant services recently arose through a conversation with 
Jeff Sadler of Complete Community Economies. Mr. Sadler is the consultant advising the Town of 
Waverly on several economic development efforts, including the Town’s new Revolving Loan 
Fund and its recent Industrial Revitalization Fund (IRF) grant award to repurpose and revitalize 
several decades-long vacant buildings in downtown Waverly for a brewery. 

The proposed work would include identification of areas of need to accommodate future 
economic growth in Sussex County and garner federal and/or state support for capacity building 
in all four Towns to address those identified needs and capitalize on growth. There are state and 
federal resources available to build and support stakeholder led community improvement 
efforts; however, the applications for such resources require submitting some sort of basic 
community plan. This proposal is to research current conditions and identify a few attainable 
goals that will build the ability of the four Towns to address their current and future needs. These 
goals will be part of a very basic plan built around Town revitalization and used to apply for state 
and federal grants to begin addressing the needs. 

Given the Board’s recent discussion of efforts to engage with and promote opportunities in all 
four of its Towns, this proposal could be an appropriate vehicle to address that goal in a 
comprehensive way. 

The attached document contains the proposal submitted by Mr. Sadler which also includes his 
resume. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Board of Supervisors accept the proposal submitted 
by Mr. Sadler. 

Attachments: Proposal: Towns of Sussex Capacity Improvement  
============================================================================= 
ACTION:  That the Board   

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 
Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 
D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Action Items - Page 1



Complete Community Economies, LLC 

PROPOSAL 

Towns of Sussex Capacity Improvement 

Sussex County, Virginia

Contact: Jeff Sadler, Principal 

804-400-6872

jefsadler@gmail.com 

4443 Knob Road, Richmond, VA 23235 

Action Items - Page 2

mailto:jefsadler@gmail.com


Complete Community Economies, LLC 2 

Purpose: 

The purpose of the proposed work is to identify areas of need to accommodate 

future economic growth in Sussex County and garner federal and/or state 

support for building the capacity of the four Towns of Sussex (Jarratt, Stony 

Creek, Wakefield, and Waverly) to address those needs and capitalize on the 

growth. 

There are state and federal resources available to build and support 

stakeholder (citizen) led community improvement efforts. However, they 

require some sort of basic community plan to submit successful applications. 

There is currently no need for a Master Plan or the costs associated with 

that. This proposal is to research current conditions and identify a few 

attainable goals that will build the ability of the four Towns to address their 

current and future needs.  

These goals will be part of a very basic plan built around Town Revitalization 

and used to apply for state and federal grants to begin addressing the needs. 

The most immediate grant application would be a Spring application to 

USDA Rural Development for a Rural Community Development Initiative 

(RCDI) grant of up to $300,000. Other potential grant sources are Virginia 

Department of Housing & Community Development (DHCD) and Virginia 

Housing. 

Background: 

Jeff Sadler formed Complete Community Economies, LLC in 2019 after viewing how 

industrial-based economic development, housing stock replenishment, 

downtown/neighborhood revitalization, and small business/entrepreneurial support are 

often not connected in local strategies. His background as a local Main Street Executive 

Director and as the head of Virginia’s Community Revitalization Office at DHCD gave him 

insights on what works and what doesn’t from localities of all sizes from around the state, 

as well as the practical knowledge about how to make change happen. 

Action Items - Page 3



Complete Community Economies, LLC 3 

As a Certified Economic Developer (CEcD) and the former State Director for Virginia Main 

Street, Jeff has made contacts around the country from whom to draw examples of 

success. Of particular note for this project, Jeff conceptualized, designed and applied for a 

successful Rural Community Development Initiative grant from USDA Rural 

Development that focused on building local capacity in each of 6 smaller communities 

throughout Virginia. This program was expressly focused on identifying specific needs in 

each community and building the communities’ structures to address those needs on their 

own and by accessing state and federal assistance including entrepreneur support in, and 

researching and developing best practices for incubators and co-working spaces. 

Through the states Building Entrepreneurial Economies program and its grants, Jeff was 

instrumental in the start-up and expansion of successful local and regional 

entrepreneurial support programs such as Staunton/Shenandoah Creative Community 

Fund (SCCF), and Charlottesville Investment Collaborative (CIC). Additionally, he 

assisted with Culpeper’s concept of developing a “lite tech” start-up cluster and leveraging 

private investment funds with state and federal loans and equity.  

One of Jeff’s current strengths is creating building feasibilities that are geared towards 

improving the community with an eye for filling a niche that is both un/underserved, as 

well as adding to the community’s draw. As the Program Manager for Virginia’s Industrial 

Revitalization Fund and Enterprise Zone programs, Jeff has seen projects of every size 

and scope and he is acknowledged as a leader in accessing gap financing and building 

“financing stacks” for difficult projects. His specialty is adaptive reuse of historic buildings 

in the $500,000 - $5,000,000 project size. 

Lastly, Jeff has been active in helping grow the housing stock in some of Virginia’s smaller 

communities and has spoken at each of the past two Virginia Governor’s Housing 

Conferences on different approaches to replenishing the amount of fit housing in 

communities. 

Complete Community Economies is currently engaged in Petersburg, Waverly, and 

Martinsville. Jeff is also in a partner on a $2 million historic rehab project in Martinsville 

and has investor contacts in several Virginia markets. 

Action Items - Page 4

https://www.sccfva.org/
https://cicville.org/


Complete Community Economies, LLC 4 

Outputs: 

No later than 90 days after a fully executed contract, Complete Community Economies. 

LLC will provide Sussex County, Virginia with a basic county revitalization plan focused 

on the four Towns of Sussex. This plan will primarily be looking at making these areas 

attractive choices for residents through building public and private amenities and 

strengthening the communities’ ability to effect change through their own efforts. 

It will include 

• An Executive Summary Report, including overview of the strengths and weaknesses

of each of the four Towns.

• A more detailed report on each Town based on local interviews and visual

inspection of the built environment. This will include specific recommendations for

preliminary improvements that fit within a County-wide perspective.

• Identification of potential grant sources.

• Application to USDA Rural Development for a RCDI grant award.

Methodology: 

With more than two decades in the community revitalization and historic building 

adaptive reuse business, Jeff Sadler has worked with many consultants and contractors of 

all types, and unfortunately, abilities. Through this, he has learned from the successes 

and failures of other projects and can provide a quality product without fluff, obfuscation 

or delay. For this project, Jeff will oversee all activities and will engage community leaders 

and other interested parties directly and personally. 

This project is meant to be quick and will rely on Jeff’s experience with revitalization 

throughout Virginia to create an actionable report that can begin to be implemented by 

Summer of 2023. Note that the report is meant to be qualitative in nature, not 

quantitative. This means that it will address the immediate conditions of the Towns and 

provide a plan for addressing those issues, which may include applying for other grant to 

build a quantitative case for future investments.  

An example of this would be that this report may determine that the housing stock is 

outdated and may not be sufficient to support economic growth. The recommendation may 

then be to apply to Virginia Housing for a Planning Grant to hire a housing specialist to 

document housing demand. That report would be used to attract investors to build or rehab 

housing to modern standards. 

Action Items - Page 5



Complete Community Economies, LLC 5 

Complete Community Economies will engage partners at the local, regional, state and 

federal levels to identify potential resources. 

All tasks will be completed by Jeff Sadler, except for final report layout and any 

photography or specialized skills that may arise. 

Timeline: 
If contracted for this project, within 10 days, Jeff will meet in person or via phone/zoom 

with the Sussex County staff to get an initial overview of the current conditions and past 

efforts. He will work with the County’s team to better understand the economic landscape 

and community vision, and any Community Economic Development Strategies, in order to 

incorporate these into the work. 

Within 30 days, Jeff will perform a site visit to each Town. A visual inspection will be 

made and initial interviews with Town officials will commence. Part of these interviews 

will be to determine which key stakeholders should be contacted. Additional interviews 

and basic research should come from these initial conversations. 

Within 60 days, the overall plan should come together and a draft report with bulleted 

recommendations will be presented for comment. A final report will be completed within 

15 days of the received comments. 

This report will be used to prepare an application to the USDA Rural Development for 

their annual Rural Community Development Initiative grant. 

Action Items - Page 6



Complete Community Economies, LLC 6 

Pricing: 

Complete Community Economies, LLC operates with an “all-in” pricing 

structure and full transparency. This means that while the pricing is based 

on the estimated time for the project, it includes travel costs, per diems, 

incidentals, materials, outside experts, most smaller, miscellaneous costs, 

and all overruns for activities covered in the initial scope of work.  

PROPOSED CONTRACT FEE: 

Report: $4800 

Application to USDA-RD RCDI Grant: $3600 

TOTAL: $8400 

Combined Discounted Price: $7200 

Action Items - Page 7



Complete Community Economies, LLC 7 

Jeffrey W. Sadler, CEcD 
4443 Knob Road, Richmond, Virginia 23235 

804-400-6872  ~ jefsadler@gmail.com

Professional Experience: 

Principal/Lead Consultant, Complete Community Economies, LLC 

August 2019 – Present 

 Martinsville – Henry County, VA, 2019-present:

o Formed a non-profit Main Street organization and developed “Transformation Strategies” to

revitalize their Uptown District

o Managed the successful 501c3 application process and ran the meetings for the first year as

acting Executive Director.

o Identified other smaller commercial districts, corridors and neighborhoods in need of

revitalization

o Oversaw the development of both a housing study and hospitality study to document demand

for LMI housing (40% AMI – 200% AMI) and Hotel rooms

o Developed feasibility plans to attract investment for two blighted industrial properties to

support Transformation Strategies

o Manage an ongoing housing development partnership with City, Harvest Foundation, United

Way, Va Housing, and Nationwide Homes resulting in 12 new construction workforce houses

o Identified and assisted with successful applications for more than $1,000,000 in grants to

advance the revitalization and housing needs of the region

o Assisted City and County with attracting developers for four derelict properties, which will

result in more than 140 new residential units

 Williamsburg, VA, 2020 – 2022:

o Formed a stakeholder-led Main Street organization to represent the interests of the larger

Williamsbur Downtown

o Managed the successful 501c3 application process and ran the meetings for the first year as

acting Executive Director

 Petersburg, VA, 2020 – Present:

o Work as liaison between the developer of the $16 million “Hotel Petersburg” and City and

State staff and elected officials to close a $2.6 million financing gap

o Wrote and shepherded through approval by the EDA of a Gap Financing Revolving Loan

Fund

o Gained initial capitalization of the Revolving Loan Fund with $2 million of ARPA funds

o Applied for and received $600,000 in Industrial Revitalization Funds

 South Boston, VA, 2020

o Convened a Town Council Strategic Planning process that resulted in a clear list of priorities

for Town Staff

Key Skills 

Community/Neighborhood Revitalization Organizational Development 

Main Street Policy Drafts, Review & Revision 

Enterprise/Opportunity Zones & Tax Districts Community Engagement 

Program Design & Management Investment Incentives 

Project Development & Management Entrepreneurial Ecosystems

Action Items - Page 8

mailto:jefsadler@gmail.com


Complete Community Economies, LLC 8 

 Waverly, VA, 2022

o Established a Town Tourism Zone

o Established a Town Revolving Loan Fund

o Applied for $300,000 from state Industrial Revitalization Fund to assist with rehabilitation a

blighted downtown building into 9 apartments, meeting space and a retail brewery.

 Culpeper Rennaisance, Inc, Culpeper VA, 2021

o Facilitated a Board retreat and Strategic Planning process, that determined consensus items

of focus for continuing community success

Associate Director, Community Revitalization Office November 2015 – July 2019 

Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development 

 Directed Virginia’s Community Revitalization Office, which housed the Virginia Main Street,

Enterprise Zone, Community Business Launch, Industrial Revitalization Fund, Virginia Individual

Development Account, and Port Host Communities Revitalization Fund programs.

 Lead Virginia’s efforts to designate Opportunity Zones.

 Served as a lead contact point for communities to learn about Opportunity Zones and how to plan

appropritely to capture OZ oriented investments.

 Responsible for defining, prioritizing and communicating strategic objectives and developing team

goals to achieve the objectives.

 Curate, cultivate and tend meaningful relationships with local partners, including local government

elected and professional staff; local and regional planning organizations, tourism groups, non-profit

organizations, and other stakeholders.

 Objectively analyze and assess program function/ROI and research new approaches for

implementation.

 Model effective meeting and conversation techniques to create shared knowledge pools, especially in

tense or conflict scenarios. earning mutual understanding of diverse viewpoints and influencing

positive, lasting change.

Principal/Lead Consultant,      March, 2014 – November, 2015 

LeadActLocal, LLC 

Assist communities and organizations to lead, think, plan, and act in ways that build networks and improve outcomes. 

Program Manager,       March 2008 – May 2013 

Virginia Department of Housing & Community Development (DHCD), Richmond, VA.  

Responsible for modernizing and integrating three programs within DHCD: Virginia Main Street (VMS), 

Virginia Enterprise Zones (VEZ) and Virginia Enterprise Initiative (VEI) in order to deliver better results to 

partner organizations and localities. 

General Manager, September 2003 – March 2008 

Toad’s Place of Richmond/Turning Point Development, Richmond, VA. 

 Developed a comprehensive business plan and private placement equity offering to build, open and

operate Richmond’s first 1,500 person capacity, indoor concert/events venue.

 Oversaw $1.7 million build out and historic rehabilitation of the venue portion of the Lady Byrd Hat

Factory, using financing comprised of private equity and debt, historic tax credits, leasehold

improvement allowances and Enterprise Zone Tax Credits.

Executive Director,  June 2002 – September 2003 

Community Partnership for Revitalization, Rocky Mount, VA. 

Action Items - Page 9



Complete Community Economies, LLC 9 

Managed a non-profit Main Street organization charged with revitalizing Rocky Mount, VA. 

Sole Proprietor, May 2001 – June 2007 

SugarFree Productions, LLC, Richmond, VA.   

Concert promotions, Festival management, Event planning and implementation 

Artist management and consulting 

Awards and other Activities: 

Virginia Business Magazine, 100 People to Meet in 2020 

Virginia Veteran Entrepreneurship Work Group, Spring 2017 

Richmond Planning Commission: Commissioner, July 2013 – 2016 

Virginia Community Economic Network (Formerly VA Microenterprise Network): Treasurer, 

September 2013 – 2016 

Virginia Small Business Development Centers Advisory Board: Member, October 2013 - 2016 

Richmond CenterStage: Co–Chairperson; Sit In/Stand Out committee to commemorate the 50th 

Anniversary of the Richmond Sit Ins. September 2008 – February 2010 

Richmond’s Top 40 Under 40, Style Weekly, 2007 

Freelance Writer: 9x Magazine, 1997-2006; Style Weekly, 2004-2006 

Presenter: National Main Street Conference, 2011, 2012, 2022 

Kentucky Preservation Conference, 2012 

SWVA Creative Economies Conference, 2013 

Downtown Intersections (VA Main Street), 2017 

Virginia Governor’s Housing Conference, 2021, 2022 

Danville Housing Summit, 2022 

Action Items - Page 10



Complete Community Economies, LLC 10 

References: 

Lee Prillaman 

Founding President, Uptown Partnership (Martinsville) 

817-992-9084

LeelandPrillaman@gmail.com 

Dave McCormack 

Waukeshaw Development 

Dave@waukeshaw.com 

804-677-5728

Jim Cherney 

Cherney Development 

336-362-3003

jcherney@cherneydevelopment.com 

Tom Raab 

Town Manager, South Boston, Virginia 

434-575-4222

traab@southbostonva.us 

Action Items - Page 11

mailto:LeelandPrillaman@gmail.com


BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.02

Subject: Historic Courthouse Analysis Findings and Recommendations, Phase 2 
Recommendations – Russell Pearlman, Wooten Company; and Andrew Moore, Glave 
& Holmes 

Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Russell Pearlman of the Wooten Company and Andrew Moore/other representatives 
of Glave & Holmes will present their findings and recommendations related to the analysis of the 
historic courthouse.  This work was approved the Board of Supervisors at the July regular meeting 
and is considered the first phase in determining how to move forward with building renovation 
and construction within the courthouse complex.  The architects will also discuss proposed Phase 
2 steps, including the possible addition of the historic Bannister House located across the road 
from the historic courthouse.  Based on their findings and recommendations, the board should 
determine if it wishes to move forward in the process. 

Recommendation:  No specific action is recommended at this time. 

Attachment:  None 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  None 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Action Items - Page 12



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.03 

Subject: County Building Improvement Recommendations to House EMS – Russell Pearlman, 
Wooten Company & Jeffrey Gary, Public Works Director 

Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  Russell Pearlman of the Wooten Company will provide an overview of his 
recommendations on necessary upgrades to the Sussex County office building in Waverly that is 
currently providing temporary housing for contracted EMS staff, based on his inspection of the 
facility in March.  Staff has not moved forward with recommending any upgrades to this point 
because of ongoing good faith efforts to discuss possible use of the Waverly Rescue Squad 
building for EMS housing; however, the Waverly Rescue Squad did not provide a price for a 
proposed two-year lease of the building by November as requested by the County Administrator. 
This inspection was the result of concerns expressed by the Town of Waverly for use of the office 
building to provide housing for EMS employees.  Mr. Pearlman’s findings are related to 
separation of sleeping quarters from the rest of the building and are outlined in the attached 
letter.  

Public Works Director Jeff Gary will brief the board on receiving bids for this work, estimated to 
be approximately $85,000. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends appropriation of the necessary funds to bring the county 
building into compliance with all applicable codes, as outlined in the letter from Russell Pearlman. 

Attachment:  Copy of Wooten letter  

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  That the Board appropriates the necessary funds to bring the county building into 
compliance with all applicable codes, as outlined in the letter from Russell Pearlman. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 

Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Action Items - Page 13



120 N. Boylan Avenue

Raleigh, NC 27603

(919) 828-0531

March 29, 2022

Mr. Richard Douglas

County Administrator

Sussex County

PO Box 1397

Sussex, VA 23844

Dear Richard:

Re: Sussex County Rescue Squad

Emergency Medical Services Building at 233 L, South County Drive, Waverly, Virginia

It was a pleasure meeting with you, Reid, Matt, Lee, Jeff, Eric, Michael, and David, on the 10th of this

month in Sussex and Southampton counties. We have reviewed the Use and Occupancy matter for the

above building and our analysis is recorded below.

Mr. Lee D. Copeland, Zoning Administrator and Public Safety Director of the Town of Waverly had the

following concern:

5. The VCC, Sections 301.1, and 302 (concerns Use and Occupancy Classification).

The VCC, Sec 304 Business Use Group B, 310 Residential Use R, and 310.3 Residential

Group R-2, concerns the descriptions of Uses for the different Use Groups. VCC Section

508 concerns Mix Use Groups and the required two-hour Fire Separations between the R

and B Use Groups.

We have determined the following:

1. The building is classified as Business Group B:

a. Business Group B occupancy includes, among others, the use of a building or structure, or a

portion thereof, for office, professional or service-type transactions, including storage of

records and accounts.

2. The two sleeping areas would be most closely classified as Residential Group R-3:

a. Congregate living facilities (transient) with 10 or fewer occupants.

3. The sleeping areas would be considered an Accessory Occupancy:

a. Aggregate accessory occupancies shall not occupy more than 10 percent of the floor area of

the story in which they are located.

b. You have two sleeping rooms

Action Items - Page 14



Mr. Richard Douglas

Page 2 of 2

March 29, 2022

i. Large bedroom12 feet by 20.6

ii. Small bedroom:10 feet by12

iii. 6.1% of the 6,015 Square foot building.

4. The Accessory sleeping areas shall be separated from the Business Group B Occupancy by Fire

Partitions.

a. Fire Partitions shall have a fire-resistance rating of not less than 1 hour.

b. In this building, the Fire Partitions shall extend from the top of the floor slab to a fire-

resistance-rated ceiling rated not less than 1 hour and shall be securely attached thereto.

c. The Fire Partitions shall be fireblocked per code (718.2) at the ceiling level

5. You can achieve the required rating on your ceilings and walls with

a. Two layers of 5/8” Type-X Sheetrock

b. Applied as two layers to one side of wood studs or

c. Applied in one layer to both sides of wood studs

6. Penetrations into or through your fire partitions and rated ceilings must be protected per code (714)

a. Grills for HVAC

b. Light fixtures

c. Electrical boxes

d. Data boxes

7. Fire-rated door assemblies to include the door, frame, hardware shall be rated at 20 minutes.

a. In the partitions noted above

8. In your Group R-3 accessory occupancies provisions shall be made for emergency escape and

rescue openings.

a. You will need operable windows complying with the code (1030).

If I may clarify any of the above for you, don’t hesitate to reach out. Do confirm with Matt Westheimer,

Building Official for Surry and Sussex Counties, that your installation complies with the above.

Prepared by,

THE WOOTEN COMPANY

Russell D. Pearlman, AIA

rdp

Action Items - Page 15



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.04 

Subject:  Resolution Designating Shilton R. Butts as County Clerk 

Board Meeting Date:  January 19 2023 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   Attached for your consideration is a resolution that designates Shilton Ricks Butts as 
Clerk to the Sussex County Board of Supervisors, a designation currently held by the County 
Administrator.  Ms. Ricks Butts currently administers most roles of the County Clerk, so this 
resolution formally recognizes that role.  Ms. Ricks Butts is an active member of the Virginia 
Municipal Clerks Association (VMCA) and the International Institute of Municipal Clerks (IIMC).  
She is currently pursuing her Certified Municipal Clerk designation, with a goal of completing the 
program within the next two years.  In consultation with the Board Chair, it is requested that Ms. 
Ricks Butts be given a $1,500 annual salary increase in recognition of designating her as Clerk to 
the Board of Supervisors. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of resolution designating Shilton Ricks Butts as 
Clerk to the Sussex Board of Supervisors and approval of a $1,500 annual salary increase effective 
December . 

Attachment: Resolution #22-153 Appointing Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  That the Board approves Resolution #22-153 Appointing Shilton Ricks Butts as Clerk to 
the Sussex County Board of Supervisors and approve a $1,500 annual salary increase. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Action Items - Page 16



Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Resolution #22-153 

Appointing Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

Resolved by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the Board hereby appoints 

Shilton Ricks Butts as the Clerk to the Board pursuant to  § 15.2-1538 of the Code of Virginia. 

Be it Further Resolved, that in her role as Clerk to the Board of Supervisors, Ms. Ricks 

shall have the all the duties and be vested with all the authority set out in § 15.2-1539 of the Code 

of Virginia. 

Adopted by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors this ____day of ______________ , 2023. 

By: ______________________ 

 Susan Seward, Chair 

Action Items - Page 17


	#1 1 19 2023 BOS Agenda
	#2 Consent Agenda
	#2.01 12 20 2022 Special meeting minutes
	#2.01-11 17 22  Regular BOS meeting minutes
	#2.02-1 December 2022 Warrants  Vouchers
	#2.02-1 November 2022 Warrants  Vouchers
	November

	#2.03 Treasurer's Report
	#2.03-1 Treasurer's Report & Financial Update
	#2.04-1 BD Cover
	#2.04-2 December 2022 Report
	#2.04-3 Building Department Monthly November 2022 Report
	#2.04-4 PD Cover
	#2.04-5 November and December 2022 Monthly
	#2.04-6 Public Works
	#2.04-7 PW December 2022 Tonnage Report
	#2.04-8 November 2022 Tonnage Report (2)
	#2.04-9 October 2022 Tonnage Report (1)
	#2.04-10 SD Cover PDF
	#2.04-11 SD DEC 2022 BOS Report
	#2.04-12 Sheriff's Office Monthly Report
	#2.05-1 Davenport Debt Capacity Analysis Budget Amendment amended
	#2.05-2 Davenport-Debt Capacity
	#2.06-1 Board Action Form  Leave Carryover 2022
	#2.06-2 Sheriff Letters
	#2.06-3 Sheriff Internal Leave
	#2.07-1 FY24 Budget Schedule
	#2.07-2 FY24 Budget Planning Calendar
	#2.08-1 DMV Select Resolution amended (002)
	#2.08-2 Draft Resolution. 12.2.2022
	#2.08-3 Budget Amend 2022
	#2.09-1  Carver & Glyndon Lanes
	#2.09-2 Carver Lane and Glyndon Lane (002)
	#2.10-1 MtgActionForm - VATourismARPAGrant
	#2.10-2 Plan Narrative - Sussex County
	#2.10-3 Budget Breakdown - Sussex County (002)
	Sheet1

	#2.11-1  Reschedule meeting
	#2.12-1  AWD Request for Refund
	#2.12-2  CoR Ltr
	#2.13-1  P-Card
	#2.13-2 Sussex Draft-Final
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	DEFINITIONS / RESPONSIBILITIES 3
	PROGRAM OVERVIEW 4
	CARDHOLDER GUIDELINES 5
	REQUESTING A P-CARD 5
	CARD ISSUANCE/ADMINISTRATION 5
	CARD CONTROLS AND LIMITS 5
	PURCHASE GUIDELINES 6
	MAKING A PURCHASE 6
	PURCHASE ORDER REQUIRED 6
	ALLOWABLE TYPE OF EXPENSES 7
	UNAUTHORIZED CARD USE 7
	PURCHASE CARD VIOLATIONS 7
	ABUSE/NEGLIGENT USE 7
	MISUSE OF CARD 7
	REVOCATION PROCEDURE 7
	ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS 8
	RECONCILIATION AND PAYMENT PROCESS 8
	DISPUTED TRANSACTION RESOLUTION 8
	LOST OR STOLEN CARDS 8
	LOST RECEIPTS 8
	P-C ARD ADMINISTRATIVE FORM …9
	DISPUTES 9
	LOST OR STOLEN P-CARD 9
	LOST RECEIPT 9
	AGREEMENT TO ACCEPT P-CARD 10
	PURCHASE CARD REQUEST FORM 11
	DEFINITIONS / RESPONSIBILITIES
	Purchasing Card (P-Card) Program
	P-Card
	Works
	Cardholder
	Department Head
	Program Administrator/Director of Finance

	PROGRAM OVERVIEW
	This program is NOT intended to avoid or bypass appropriate purchasing or payment procedures.  The County’s Small Purchase Policies, as applicable, must be complied with when purchasing goods or services on behalf of the County.  This program is inten...
	THE P-CARD IS NOT TO BE USED FOR PERSONAL PURCHASES UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES

	CARDHOLDER GUIDELINES
	REQUESTING A P-CARD
	CARD ISSUANCE/ADMINISTRATION
	County funds are committed each time the P-Card is used. This is a responsibility that needs to be taken seriously.

	PURCHASE GUIDELINES
	MAKING A PURCHASE
	The person whose name is on the P-Card is the only one authorized to use the card. This person is also responsible for ensuring that all charges are in compliance with these guidelines.
	Please take precautions to store and maintain receipts until it is time to submit them.
	PURCHASE ORDER REQUIRED

	ALLOWABLE TYPE OF EXPENSES
	UNAUTHORIZED CARD USE
	PURCHASE CARD VIOLATIONS
	ABUSE/NEGLIGENT USE
	MISUSE OF CARD
	REVOCATION PROCEDURE

	ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS
	RECONCILIATION AND PAYMENT PROCESS
	 P-Card transactions may be restricted at year-end
	LOST OR STOLEN CARDS
	LOST RECEIPTS
	DISPUTES
	LOST OR STOLEN P-CARD
	LOST RECEIPT

	AGREEMENT TO ACCEPT P-CARD
	County of Sussex
	Purchase Card (P-Card) Request Form
	Department:
	Employee’s Signature Date


	#2.14-1  VW
	#2.14-02 Vict Wit - Unallowable Costs

	#3 Recognitions
	#3.01-1 Nan Ellen Bland Seeley amended
	#3.01-2 Nan Seeley
	#3.02-1 Hudson Retirement
	#3.02-2 RESOLUTION charles hudson
	#3.02-3 Charles Dan Hudson
	#3.03-1 Deputy Bonner Community Assistance (002) amended
	#3.03-2 Bonner Incident (002)
	#3.04-1 MADD Award
	#3.05-1 Airfield 4-H Update

	#4 Public Hearing
	#4.01-1 Board Action Form
	#4.01-2 CUP #2022-04- Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range application
	CUP #2022-04 1
	BOSR_RANGE_SOP v3 (2)
	CHAPTER 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION
	A. Preamble
	B. Organizational Chart

	CHAPTER 2: SAFETY PLAN
	A. Safety Planning
	B. Planning for Safety
	C. The Safety Plan
	D. Perimeter Gates, Fencing, and Signs
	E. Firearms Check
	F. Ammunition Check
	G. Safety Plan Reference

	CHAPTER 3: RANGE OPERATIONS
	A. Purpose
	B. General
	Definitions

	C. Facilities for Use
	D. Range Use Requirements
	Restrictions

	E. Allowable Firearms
	F. Range Safety Officers
	G. Range Rules
	Liability Waiver and Age Restrictions

	H. Range Training Requirements
	I. General Range Rules
	J. Hours of Operation
	K. Staff Meetings
	L. Alcohol/ Drug Policy
	M. Personnel Responsibilities
	Manager
	Range Safety Officers
	Instructors
	Customer

	N. Medical Support
	O. Hold Harmless Agreement Form
	P. Wavier and Release from Liability Agreement Form
	Q. Range Use Agreement Form
	R. Range Safety
	Range Commands

	S. Firearms Carry & Handling
	T. Cease Fire Procedure
	U. Firing Line Rules
	V. Range Rules Specific to Black Powder Firearms
	W. NRA Hygiene Guidelines
	X. Emergencies and Incident Reporting
	Y. First Aid Procedures
	Z. Personal Protective Equipment
	AA. Procedure for Cleaning Surfaces Contaminated with Biohazardous Material
	BB. Facility Operating Procedures
	Main Building - Opening Procedure
	Store/Building - Closing Procedure
	Range - Opening Procedure

	CC. Range - Operating Procedure
	Making the Line Hot
	Making the Line Safe
	Range - Closing Procedure


	APPENDIXES
	APPENDIX 1: Facilities Use Agreement
	User’s Obligations.
	APPENDIX 2: Safety Incident Report
	APPENDIX 3: Eye Witness Form
	APPENDIX 4: Replacement and Repair Costs
	APPENDIX 5: Emergency Report Sheet
	EMERGENCY COMMUNCATIONS
	IMMEDIATE RESPONES FOR INJURIES OR ILLNESS
	COORDINATION
	HELICOPTER MEDICAL EVACUATION (MEDEVAC)
	RANGE EMERGENCY RESPONSE PACKET

	APPENDIX 6: Range Use Agreement
	APPENDIX 7: Waiver and Release from Liability Agreement
	APPENDIX 8: Release, Wavier, Indemnification, Hold Harmless, and Assumption of Risk Agreement
	APPENDIX 9: Range Inspection Checklist
	APPENDIX 10: Range Safety Brief
	A. Purpose of The Shooting Event
	B. Range Layout and Limits
	C. Range Safety Rules
	A.
	B.
	C.
	D. FIRING LINE COMMANDS
	E. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

	APPENDIX 11: Fence Patrol Log
	APPENDIX 12: Range Layout
	Site Layout
	Rifle Range
	Handgun/ Shotgun Range





	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-1 MtgActionForm - EconDevPlanningGrantTowns
	#6.01-2 Towns of Sussex Proposal
	#6.02-1 Historic Courthouse
	#6.03-1 County Buildings
	#6.03-2 ToSussexCo_RD220329
	#6.04-1 Clerk as Designation
	#6.04-2 Sussex County Board of Supervisors




